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hcA Chiranjeev Jain has qualified Chartered Accountancy Course in
2005 and has completed all the levels of this course in his very first attempt. He is
among the top rank holders Delhi University having done his graduation from Sri
Ram College of Commerce. He scored more than 90% in accounts at1all levels of CA
and university examinations. He has done Diploma in Information SystenAudit
conducted by the ICAI. He has also done Masters in Businéss Administration (MBA)
with specialization in Finance.

After completing Academic & Professional Education, he has worked with Deloitte
Haskin & Sells as a chartered accountant and developed immense skills in the
practical application of various accounting standards. Finally he exposed himself
to the practice as chartered accountant and adapted ko teaching accounts (the
subject he loves the most) as his career.

He possesses a vast experience in teachingacéguntancy to students of CA CPT, IPCC
& Final. He is also into CorporatesIrainingtin the industry and has addressed a
number of courses and_semipars organized by Professional Institutions. He has
served as an examiner of accounts atiICATPCC and Final level. He is an expertin both
Indian Accounting StandardsiandJFRS.

He has conducted faceyto face “classes at Hyderabad, Bangalore, Kolkata and
Ahmadabad apartfrom VSAT classes in the Southern region with ETEN CA. His easy
way of te@ehing Accountancy from the very basic and his motivational lectures are
very famous among CA students’ fraternity.
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Must Join This Group in Telegram:
Join us on Telegram -
CA FINAL: https://t. me/FRdiscussionGroup

Website: http://www.cachiranjeevjain.com/

Instagram: https://www.instagram.com/bestfrclasses/

Facebook page for IPCC: https://www.facebook.com/cachiranjeevijain/

Facebook page for Final: https://www.facebook.com/ChiranjeevJainCA/

Youtube Subscribe: https://www.youtube.com/channel/lUC3nJTVd-3Tw64gCpbnxITIA?view as=subscriber

Twitter: https://twitter.com/ChiranjeevCa

LinkedIn: https://www.linkedin.com/in/chiranjeev-jain-b72660149/
For Admission

For Face 2 Face Classes: 7731 007 722

For Pendrive Classes: 87662 46684

For Virtual Classes @ Hyderabad: 87662 46684

For Franchisee: 7731 00 7722

FR Subject Related Doubts: Mail at: hello@cachiranjeevjain.com
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PosITIVE FEEDBACK ABOUT SIR’S CLASSES

Shalaka Tiwari - Shastri, Hyderabad

| have taken the classes for CA Final FR from Chiranjeev Jain sir and
I believe he is an great teacher and a amazing mentor.

His methodology of teaching is unique, while in class there's no
concept untaught. He teaches whole heartedly and makes sure that
you get your basics right.

I have no other words to express this better.

1 will say, just join him and u will see the results !!

Amit Jain, Kolkata

Hi Students, | am CA Amit Kumar Jain, practicing in Gurgaon. | am
one of the old students of CA Chiranjeev Sir, and belong to his
first CA final batch in kolkata. Today, on Teacher's Day, | would
love to convey my gratitude to him for his wonderful coaching
classes. The learnings shared by him both related to course and
related to practical life after CA, has been very useful in my
journey. He is one of the best CA Final teacher in India and |
recommend all students to join him.

Navneet Singh, Hyderabad

When | started my journey to become a Chartered accountant, the
only fear | had was will I be able to have that conceptual knowledge
which is needed the most in a profession like ours.!!

Now after completing my CA | can tell you that starting from
Accounts in CPT then with Accounts in IPCC and to end with
Financial reporting in CA Final, the conceptual understanding of the
subject which | gained from you helped me become what | am now..
Thank you Sir once again to be available whenever asked for and
help me achieve my dream of becoming a CA.

Obaid Khan, Hyderabad

To begin with a quote "It takes a big heart to help shape little
minds.”

Thank You Sir, for being an Amazing faculty throughout CA
journey. Now that | completed my journey, | feel immensely
honoured for being your student and learning the concepts
precisely in a manner that helpsin application too.

Words might fall short to express the gratitude, for you have
been an Amazing teacher, mentor and a friend.

Just a small appreciation post from a student, moreover from a
Fan of your ideas and teaching.

Isan Singh, Kolkata

i have taken FR classes from CA Chiranjeev Jain Sir....He is best in
this subject.... It’s because of Sir | get to know so much about
accounts especially IND AS,

I have also taken accounts from him in CA IPCC and | scored very
good marks in IPCC even though | was average in accounts subject.
He teach from base which makes easy for average students to score
high in exams. He gives through conceptual knowledge do that
students will able to write worst paper in exams with ease.

Thanks sir for ur valuable teaching.

Arihant Kothari, Hyderabad

Thanks to the man with great caps,a perfect guide who has really
helped us at every point and gave his helpful hands without any
complaints .. You be the best sir @O0

It is to thankyou for those priceless teachings ©I m really
thankfull for all you good words that kept me motivated and
focussed towards my goal . | feel lucky to get a place under your
umbrella .. Whatever be the results your imprints will always be
there sir .Thanks a lot sir 1©

Ashutosh Lahoti, Hyderabad

Thank you sir for providing us the best lectures with an'ease. It was
an amazing time spending with you. I'm very lucky to learn the
subject of Accountancy that.too of IPCC level under your guidance.
You made this subject very easy with your experience and teaching
quality. Actually your friendly nature towards the students made it
more easier to understand the subject. Even your scoldings were
like roses without thornes.

Thank you so much sir for helping us get through our targets. Will
be missing those class fun but hope to see you soon in CA final
classes.

OProud to be CHIRANJEEVIAN

Niharika Phalod, Hyderabad

"A good teacher can inspire hope, ignite the imagination and
instill a love of learning"

1 would truly like to appreciate the great effort you have put into
tutoring and enlightening my way. Because of your guidance and
patience, I've come this far in my CA journey. Thankyou for
always being there in all my confusions and helping me deal with
all the stress during ipcc days!

Accounts couldn't be more easier and all the credit goes to your
easy techniques.

Thankyou for being my mentor. I'm truly blessed to be your
student! Wish you a very happy teachers day Sir. ©

Nikita Simran, Hyderabad

I'm so grateful to be your student. Thank you for instilling in me the
passion for learning. You've put in selfless efforts in shaping our
career! We're truly blessed to have a mentor like you © Lastly |
would like to say-Now | see the world in a different light

| can discriminate between wrong and right, | perceive things in a
different style, | have learnt to go the extra mile, | have a deeper
understanding of things Dear teacher you have truly given me wings

Thank you for everything sir

Shalaka Tiwari - Shastri, Hyderabad

| have taken the classes for CA Final FR from Chiranjeev Jain sir
and | believe he is an great teacher and a amazing mentor.

His methodology of teaching is unique, while in class there's no
concept untaught. He teaches whole heartedly and makes sure
that you get your basics right.

| have no other words to express this better.

1 will say,just join him and u will see the results !!

Chinna Poojari, Bangalore

|| Venkata Sumanth, Vijaywada

www.cachiranjeevjain.com
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Sir,. It's very glad to have these words to you..u r d person who
stands with me not only as my guru but as a family member during
my tough times.. The way you teach us makes ourself to Mold
towards subject conceptually...Coz of u only | have got AIR's in IPCC
and CMA.... Being ur student makes me proud...gives me confidence
that I can achieve all thru success.....finally thank you is not enough
for ur services...Just will show thanks in the form of results in our
exams....

Not only the subject your personality as a Chartered Accountant tis
the Perfect Example for all Budding CA's.

One word about my guru ."CA Chiranjeevi sir is the BAADSHAH OF
IND AS " in india.

Teachers usually make us study... Chiranjeev Jain sir made us
enjoy the subject...We stepped out of the class with tonnes of
confidence and belief

Thank you very much sir....

We never found in vyour class, a teacher- student
relationship...We always felt that we are being taught by a best
friend and well-wisher...

We will be grateful forever sir....

With tonnes of love...

One word about Chiranjeevi Jain sir ....

You taught us from your Heart...not from book...

Afsar Shaik, Hyderabad

Sir...trust me...before starting of this batch....| wondered how ur
gonna complete this in 70 days...wr as other faculies r taking for 3
or 4 mnths....but finally | got my answer....u gave us the main thing
what we want actually i.e, conceptual clarity....thank u soo much
sir

Ashish Soni, Hyderabad
Sir you can inspire hope, ignite the imagination, and instill a love of

learning..motivating...Thank You Sir ## CJ Sir the Best#

Ankitha Baldwa, Hyderabad

Thank you so much sir u be the best lecturer of my life - Apka
padane ka style baat karne ka style Apki shyaris Kya baat sir,
missing all my memorable moments of ur class

Chaitanya, Hyderabad

Your way of teaching is something different that we will be in a
thought that you are teaching slow but we’ll get to know your
fast once we missed your class and seeing the notes the next day.
Really loved the class very much sir. Thankuuuuu so much sir.
The real life stories you teaches in class are inspired. Sir, we will
go through many teachers in life sir. But only few we can
remember lifelong. You’re one among them and one you got the
position with 70 days time while with everyone | spent not less
than 2 years. Once again Thank you sir.

Sir, | may not score 90+ in exam, But I’'m sure I'll give my 200% for
getting 90+. Because we have only two options. Either 90+ or 90+.

Sakshi Sharma, Hyderabad

| have been taught by so many teachers but amongst them all you
made the greatest impact by not only teaching by guiding us too.
The loving ways of teachers like you is difference between teaching
and educating thanks for teaching us, educating us, and
empowering us thanks a lot sir

Khushi Srivastava, Hyderabad

| pursued 61 in accounting just because of ChiranjeevJain Sir. His
notes are not less than a face to face teaching...he covers each and
every minute stuff...lucky to be his student.

Soujanya V,M, Bangalore

| have attended his classes and he is very knowledgeable..He
teaches the complex things in a very simple manner...He is a good
guide for a student ...Because of him | got exemption in IPCC
accounts...Students who are interested in conceptual learning
can join his classes without any second thought...!

The chart prepared by him is simple and easily
understandable...Very much useful for the students for last
minute revision...

Thank you sir for all the teaching and guidance...!!

Rakhi Jha, Hyderabad

#SIRJi # THANKYOU, I joined Yeshas just because you were
teaching us ACCOUNTS #Your the most coolest & friendly faculty
#You always motivated us #You always guided us on right path
#Yet | can't believe that today was our last IPCC class # | personally
never ever saw a great faculty like YOU # We all gonna miss you so
much@ #You always helped us SIR JI # You were just like our
friend's #A BIG BIG THANK YOU SIR JI # See you soon in CA-FINAL

#WILL MISS YOU SIR JI#LOVE YOU TONS & TONS v\7

Shams Afaq, Hyderabad

| have done my schooling from science stream,so at the start of
CPT only | was nervous, if | will be able to do accounts. But my
whole nervousness was transformed into interest of learning by
Chiranjeev Sir. He created a strong foundation for me with
conceptual clarity. It was his easy going approach even when the
concepts were challenging, | scored 44/60 in CPT and then 76/100
in IPCC. | will always be grateful to you. You are phenomenal.
Keep up the good work!

Nithin Mundada, Hyderabad

The way you teach.. The knowledge you share.. The care you
take..The love you shower..Makes you.. The world's best sir....It's
my pleasure to have such a nice sir with charming smile..and | have
never seen such a sir like

Jaya Chandra, Visakhapatnam

Sir's notes is very helpful during revision and he teaches from basics
on which we generally don't pay much attention. The way he links
each topic is good and he has much clarity in how to teach complex
topics.

Naveen Pspk , Hyderabad

Scored 75 in Accounts..its just because of Mr.CA chiranjeevjain
sir...initially | was bothered about DAT subject as | was from
science background... But then | met with sir classes it changed
whole scenario ....&d result is dis....tq sir tq so much....

For more Feedback

Visit www.cachiranjeevjain.com

www.cachiranjeevjain.com
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (IND AS 37)

Q3

QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

X Shipping Ltd. is required by law to overhaul its shipping fleet once in every 3 years. The
company’s finance team was of the view that recognising the costs only when paid would
prevent matching of revenue earned all the time with certain costs of large amounts which
are incurred occasional. Thereby, it has formulated an accounting policy of providing in its
books of account for the future cost of maintenance (overhauls, annual inspection etc.) by
calculating a rate per hours sailed on sea and accumulating a provision over time. The
provision is adjusted when the expenditure is actually incurred. Is the accounting policy of X
Shipping Ltd. correct?

A provision is made for a present obligation arising out of a past event. Overhauling does not
arise out of past event. Even a legal requirement to overhaul does not make the cost of
overhaul a liability, because no obligation exists to overhaul the ships independently of the
company’s future actions - the company could avoid the future expenditure by its future
actions for example by selling the ships. So there is no present obligation.

As per the standard, financial statements deal with the financial position of an entity at the
end of its reporting period and not its possible position/in the future. Therefore, no provision
is recognised for costs that need to be incurred to operate in the future. The only liabilities
recognised in an entity’s balance sheet are those that exist at the end of the reporting period.

Therefore, the accounting policy of X Shipping Ltd. is not correct. The company should adopt
the component approach iniind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, for accounting for the
refurbishment cost.

X Chemical Ltdxis operating in the vicinity of a river since 20 years. A community living near X
Chemical Ltd. claims that its operations has caused contamination of drinking water. X
Chemical Ltd. has received notice from the governmental environmental agency that official
investigations will be made into claims of pollution caused by the entity. If it is found that X
Chemical Ltd. has caused contamination, then penalties and fine would be levied on it.

X Chemical Ltd. believes that it has implemented all environmental safety measures to an
extent that it is unlikely to cause pollution. Management is not sure whether it has all the
information about the entire 20 years. Therefore, neither management nor external experts
are able to assess X Chemical Ltd.’s responsibility until the investigation has completed.

In such situation, how should management of X Chemical Ltd. account for a liability?

As per the standard, in the present case, the available evidence does not support a conclusion
that a present obligation exists. However, there is a possible obligation which exists and will
be confirmed upon completion of investigations. Therefore, management should disclose the
contingent liability for potential penalties and fines that may be imposed if contamination is
proved.

X Ltd. has entered into an agreement with its selling agent Y, in accordance with which X Ltd.
has to pay a base percentage of commission on export sales and an additional commission is
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to be paid if the export incentives are received. As per the accounting policy of X Ltd., it
recognises export incentives when actually realised, on account of the uncertainty in realising
such incentives. Export incentives have not been received for the year 20X1-20X2, however X
Ltd. is hopeful of receiving the export incentives in the year 20X2-20X3. In the financial
statements for 20X1-20X2, should X Ltd. provide for both base commission and additional
commission?

So far as the base percentage of sales commission is concerned, it is a present obligation
arising out of past events. The obligating event takes place when the sales are made and also
since commission is based on percentage of sale, reliable estimation can also be made.
Therefore, the base percentage of sales commission should be provided.

However, in respect of additional commission, it is to be paid when the export.incentives are
recognised and export incentives are recognised only when it is received. Therefore, the
obligating event will arise only when export incentives are received. Hence, no provision for
additional commission is to be made in financial year 20X1-20X2. The expectation of X Ltd. to
receive the export incentives in next year would not make any difference as on 31 March
20X2.

X Sugars Ltd. has entered into a sale contract of Rs..3,00,00,000 with Y Choclates Ltd. for the
supply of sugar during 20X1-20X2. As per the contract'the delivery is to be made within 2
months from the date of contract. In case of failure to deliver within the schedule, X Sugars
Ltd. has to pay a compensation of Rs. 30,00,000.to Y Chocolates Ltd.

During the transit, the vehicle carrying'the sugar met:accident and X Sugar Ltd. lost the entire
consignment. It is, however covered by an insurance policy. According to the report of the
surveyor, the amount is collectible, subject to the deductible clause [i.e., 15% of the claim] in
the insurance policy. The cost of goods lost was Rs. 2,50,00,000.

Before the financial yearend, X Sugars.Ltd. received informal information from the insurance
company that their claim had been processed and the payment had been dispatched for 85%
of the claimamount. Meanwhile Y Chocolates Ltd. has made demand of Rs. 30,00,000 since
the goods were not delivered on time.

What provision or disclosure would X Ltd. need to make at year end?

As per the standard, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity should
disclose a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting
period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect, measured using the
principles set out in Ind AS 37.

So X Sugars Ltd. would need to disclose the contingent asset of Rs. 2,12,50,000 (Rs.
2,50,00,000 x 85%) at the end of the financial year 20X1-20X2.

It would also need to make a provision of Rs. 30,00,000 towards the clam of Y Chocolates Ltd.

An entity sells 1,000 units of a product with warranties under which the entity will repair any
manufacturing defects that become apparent within the first six months after purchase. If a
minor defect is detected in a product, estimated repair costs of Rs. 100 will result. If a major
defect is detected in a product, estimated repair costs of Rs. 400 will result. The entity’s
experience together with its future expectations indicate that 75 per cent of the goods sold
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have no defects, 20 per cent of the goods sold have minor defects and 5 per cent of the goods
sold have major defects.

When the provision involves a large population of items, the best estimate of the amount
reflects the weighting of all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The expected value of the cost of repairs is

(75% x 1,000 units sold x nil) + (20% x 1,000 units x Rs. 100) + (5% x 1,000 units x Rs. 400) =
Rs. 40,000.

Therefore a provision of Rs. 40,000 would be appropriate.

X Solar Power Ltd., a power company, has a present obligation to dismantle its plant after 35
years of useful life. X Solar Power Ltd. cannot cancel this obligation or transfer to third party.
X Solar Power Ltd. has estimated the total cost of dismantling at Rs. 50,00,000, the present
value of which is Rs. 30,00,000. Based on the facts and circumstances, X Solar Power Ltd.
considers the risk factor of 5% i.e., the risk that the actual outflows would be more from the
expected present value. How should X Solar Power Ltd. account for the obligation?

The obligation should be measured at the present value of outflows i.e., Rs. 30,00,000.
Further a risk adjustment of 5% i.e., Rs. 1,50,000 (Rs. 30,00,000 x 5%) would be made.

So, the liability will be recognised at = Rs. 30,00,000 + Rs.1,50,000 = Rs. 31,50,000.

X Chemicals Ltd. engaged in the chemical industry causes environmental damage by dumping
waste in the river near its factory. It does not clean up because there is no environmental
legislation requiring cleaning up and X Chemicals Ltd. is causing damage for last 40 years. As
at March 31, 20X2, the State Legislature has passed a path breaking legislation requiring all
polluting factories to.clean-up the river water already contaminated. The formal Gazette
notification of the law is pending. How should X Chemicals Ltd. deal with this situation?

The obligating event is'the contamination of water and because of the virtually certainty of
legislation requiring cleaning up, an outflow of resources is certain. It is possible to arrive at
best estimated cost for the cleanup activity. So, a provision should be recognised in the books
of X Chemicals Ltd. for 20X1-20X2.

X Beauty Solutions Ltd.is selling cosmetic products under its brand name ‘B’, but it is getting
its product manufactured from Y Ltd. It has an understanding with Y Ltd. that if the company
becomes liable for any damage claims, due to any injury or harm to the customer of the
cosmetic products, 30% will be reimbursed to it by Y Ltd. During the financial year 20X1-20X2,
a claim of Rs: 30,00,000 demanded by customers from X Beauty Solutions Ltd. How should X
Beauty Solutions Ltd. account for the claim that becomes payable?

X Beauty Solutions Ltd. will get reimbursement of Rs. 9,00,000 (Rs. 30,00,000 x 30%) from Y
Ltd. So, X Beauty Solutions Ltd. should make a provision of Rs. 21,00,000 (Rs. 30,00,000 - Rs.
9,00,000) in financial year 20X1-20X2 and disclose a contingent liability of Rs. 9,00,000. The
contingent liability is recognised keeping in view the fact that in case Y Ltd. does not pay, then
X Beauty Solutions Ltd. will be liable for the whole claim.

X Telecom Ltd. has income tax litigation pending before appellate authorities. Legal advisor’s
opinion is that X Telecom Ltd. will lose the case and estimated that liability of Rs. 1,00,00,000
may arise in two years. The liability is recognised on a discounted basis. The discount rate at
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which the liability has been discounted is 10% and it is assumed that discount rate does not
change over the period of 2 years. How should X Telecom Ltd. calculate the amount of
borrowing cost?

The discount factor of 10% for 2 years is 0.827. X Telecom Ltd. will initially recognise provision
for Rs. 82,70,000 (Rs. 1,00,00,000 x 0.827).

The discount factor of 10% at the end of year 1 is 0.909. At the end of year 1, provision amount
would be Rs. 90,90,000 (Rs. 1,00,00,000 x 0.909).

As per the standard, the difference between the two present values i.e., Rs. 8,20,000 is
recognised as a borrowing cost in year 1.

At the end of the Year 2, the liability would be Rs. 1,00,00,000.

The difference between the two present values i.e., Rs. 9,10,000 (Rs. 1,00,00,000 - Rs.
90,90,000) is recognised as borrowing cost in year 2.

X Packaging Ltd. has two segments, packaging division and paper division. In March 20X1, the
board of directors approved and announced a formal plan to sell the paper division in June
20X1. Operating losses of the paper division are estimated to be approximately Rs. 50,00,000
during the period from April 1, 20X1 to the expected date of disposal. Management of X
Packaging Ltd. wants to include the future operating loss of Rs. 50,00,000 in a provision for
restructuring in the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 20X1. Can X
Packaging Ltd. include these operating losses.ina provision for restructuring?

Standard states that provision should not be made for future operating losses. Since Ind AS
37 prohibits the recognition of future operating losses, so X Packaging Ltd. should not include
these future operating losses in'a provision for restructuring even though these losses relate
to the disposal group.

X Metals Ltd. had entered into a hon-cancellable contract with Y Ltd. to purchase 10,000 units
of raw material at Rs. 50 per unit at a contract price of Rs. 5,00,000. As per the terms of
contract, X Metals Ltd. would have to pay Rs. 60,000 to exit the said contract. X Metals Ltd.
has discontinued manufacturing the product that would use the said raw material. For that X
Metals Ltd. has identified a third party to whom it can sell the said raw material at Rs. 45 per
unit.

How should X:Metals Ltd. account for this transaction in its books of account in respect of the
above contract?

These circumstances do indicate an onerous contract. The only benefit to be derived from the
purchase contract costing Rs. 5,00,000 are the proceeds from the sale contact, which are Rs.
4,50,000. Therefore, a provision should be made for the onerous element of Rs. 50,000, being
the lower of cost of fulfilling the contract and the penal cost of cancellation of Rs. 60,000.

X Cements Ltd. has three manufacturing units situated in three different states of India. The
board of directors of X Cements Ltd., in their meeting held on January 10, 20X1, decided to
close down its operations in one particular state on account of environmental reasons. A
detailed formal plan for shutting down the above unit was also formalised and agreed by the
board of directors in that meeting, which specifies the approximate number of employees
who will be compensated and expenditure expected to be incurred. Date of implementation
of plan has also been mentioned. Meetings were also held with customers, suppliers, and
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workers to communicate the features of the formal plan to close down the operations in the
said state, and representatives of all interested parties were present in those meetings. Do
the actions of the board of directors create a constructive obligation that needs a provision
for restructuring? [ICAI SM]

As per Ind AS 37, the conditions prescribed are:
(a) there should be detailed formal plan of restructuring;

(b) which should have raised valid expectations in the minds of those affected that the entity
would carry out the restructuring by announcing the main features of its plans to
restructure.

The board of directors did discuss and formalise a formal plan of winding up the operation in
the above said state. This plan was communicated to the parties affected and created a valid
expectation in their minds that X Cements Ltd. would go ahead with its-plansto close down
operations in that state. Thus, there is a constructive obligation that needs to be provided at
year-end.

In 2017, an entity involved in nuclear activities recognises a provision for decommissioning
costs of Rs. 300 million. The provision is estimated. using the assumption that
decommissioning will take place in 60-70 years’ time. However, there is a possibility that it
will not take place until 100-110 years’itime, in wWhich case the present value of the costs will
be significantly reduced. Draft the note.

A provision of Rs. 300 million has been/recognised fordecommissioning costs. These costs are
expected to be incurred between 2077 and 2087; however, there is a possibility that
decommissioning will not take place until 2117-2127. If the costs were measured based upon
the expectation that they would not be incurred until 2117-2127 the provision would be
reduced to Rs. 136 million. The provision has been estimated using existing technology, at
current prices, and discounted using a real discount rate of 2%.

An entity is‘involved in a dispute with a competitor, who is alleging that the entity has
infringed patents and is seeking damages of Rs. 100 million. The entity recognises a provision
for its best estimate of the obligation, but discloses none of the information required by the
standard. Draft the note.

Litigation is.in process against the company relating to a dispute with a competitor who
alleges that the company has infringed patents and is seeking damages of Rs. 100 million. The
information usually required by Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, is'not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice seriously the
outcome of the litigation. The directors are of the opinion that the claim can be successfully
resisted by the company.

X Ltd. is operating in the telecom industry. During the Financial Year 20X1-20X2, the Income
Tax authorities sent a scrutiny assessment notice under Section 143(2) of the Income-tax Act,
1961, in respect to return filed under Section 139 of this Act for Previous Year 20X0-20X1
(Assessment Year 20X1-20X2) and initiated assessment proceedings on account of a
deduction claimed by the company which in the view of the authorities was inadmissible.

During the financial year 20X1-20X2 itself, the assessment proceedings were completed and
the assessing officer did not allow the deduction and raised a demand of Rs. 1,00,00,000
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against the company. The company contested such levy and filed an appeal with the Appellate
authority. At the end of the financial year 20X1-20X2, the appeal had not been heard. The
company is not confident whether that the company would win the appeal. However, the
company was advised by its legal counsel that on a similar matter, two appellate authorities
of different jurisdictions had given conflicting judgements, one in favour of the assessee and
one against the assessee. The legal counsel further stated it had more than 50% chance of
winning the appeal. Please advise how the company should account for these transactions in
the financial year 20X1-20X2.

Ind AS 37 provides that in rare cases it not clear whether there is a present obligation, for
example, in a lawsuit, it may be disputed either whether certain events have occurred or
whether those events result in a present obligation. In such a case, an entity should determine
whether a present obligation exits at the end of the reporting period by taking account of all
available evidence, for example, the opinion of experts.

In the present case, the company is not confident that whether it would win the appeal. By
taking into account the opinion of the legal counsel, it is not sure that whether the company
would win the appeal. On the basis of such evidence, it.is more likely than not that a present
obligation exists at the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the entity should recognise a
provision. The company should provide for a liability of Rs. 1,00,00,000.

An entity is a telecom operator. Layingof cables across the world is a requirement to enable
the entity to run its business. Cables are also laid under the sea and contracts are entered into
for the same. By virtue of laws of the countries through which the cable passes, the entity is
required to restore the sea bed at the end of the contract period. What is the nature of
obligation that the entity has in such a case?

Paragraph 14 of Ind AS 37 states “A provision shall be recognised when:
(a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

(b) itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; and

(c) areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If these conditions are
not met, no provision shall be recognised.”

Further, with regard to past event paragraph 17 of Ind AS 37 states “A past event that leads
to a present obligation is called an obligating event. For an event to be an obligating event, it
is necessary that the entity has no realistic alternative to settling the obligation created by
the event. This is the case only:

(a) where the settlement of the obligation can be enforced by law; or

(b) in the case of a constructive obligation, where the event (which may be an action of the
entity) creates valid expectations in other parties that the entity will discharge the
obligation.”

On the basis of the above, provision should be recognised as soon as the obligating event
takes place because the entity is under legal obligation to restore the sea bed, provided the
other recognition criteria stated in paragraph 14 reproduced above are met. Moreover, the
amount of the provision would depend on the extent of the obligation arising from the
obligating event. In the instant case, an obligating event is the laying of cables under the sea.
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To the extent the cables have been laid down under the sea, a legal obligation has arisen and
to that extent provision for restoration of sea bed should be recognised.

Entity A is a dealer in washing machines. Entity A offers to its customers a scheme whereby it
states that after a period of 3 years, the entity offers to buy back the washing machine at a
fixed price which is expected to be less than the fair value of the machine at the end of three
years. The credit emanating the refrom will be required to be used by the customer for buying
a new washing machine, i.e., new washing machine will be sold at a discounted price.

Past experience indicates that customers generally opt for this scheme. At the time of sale of
the first washing machine should entity A recognise any provision in this regard?[ICAlI SM]

In the instant case, assuming that the entity recognises the entire revenue on the sale of first
washing machine, a provision for expected cost of meeting the obligation of selling the second
machine at discounted price should be recognised because sale of first washing machine is
the past event.

Moreover, past experience indicates that customers generally opt for this scheme, therefore,
probability of outflow of resources is more likely than not. Since it is a normal practice which
the entity follows, reliable estimate of the amount.of meeting the obligation can also be
made.

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q18. U Ltd. is a large conglomerate with a_ number of subsidiaries. It is preparing consolidated
financial statements as on 31st March 2018 as per the notified Ind AS. The financial
statements are due to be authorised for.issue on 15th May 2018. It is seeking your assistance
for some transactions that have taken place in some of its subsidiaries during the year.

G Ltd. is a wholly owned subsidiary of U Ltd. engaged in management consultancy services.
On 31st January.2018, the board of directors of U Ltd. decided to discontinue the business of
G Ltd. from 30th April 2018. They.made a public announcement of their decision on 15th
February 2018

G Ltd. does not have many.assets or liabilities and it is estimated that the outstanding trade
receivables and payables would be settled by 31st May 2018. U Ltd. would collect any
amounts. still owed by G Ltd’s customers after 31st May 2018. They have offered the
employees of G Ltd. termination payments or alternative employment opportunities.

Following are some of the details relating to G Ltd.

) On the date of public announcement, it is estimated by G Ltd. that it would have to
pay 540 lakhs as termination payments to employees and the costs for relocation of
employees who would remain with the Group would be Rs. 60 lakhs. The actual
termination payments totalling to Rs. 520 lakhs were made in full on 15th May 2018.
As per latest estimates made on 15th May 2018, the total relocation cost is Rs. 63
lakhs.

G Ltd. had taken a property on operating lease, which was expiring on 31st March
2022. The present value of the future lease rentals (using an appropriate discount
rate) is Rs. 430 lakhs. On 15th May 2018, G Ltd. made a payment to the lessor of Rs.
410 lakhs in return for early termination of the lease.
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The loss after tax of G Ltd. for the year ended 31st March 2018 was Rs. 400 lakhs. G Ltd. made
further operating losses totalling Rs. 60 lakhs till 30th April 2018.

How should U Ltd. present the decision to discontinue the business of G Ltd. in its
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as per Ind AS?

What are the provisions that the Company is required to make as per Ind AS 37?

A discontinued operation is one that is discontinued in the period or classified as held for sale
at the year end. The operations of G Ltd were discontinued on 30th April 2018 and therefore,
would be treated as discontinued operation for the year ending 31st March 2019. It does not
meet the criteria for held for sale since the company is terminating its business and does not
hold these for sale.

Accordingly, the results of G Ltd will be included on a line-by-line basis in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of the profit from continuing operations of U Ltd
for the year ending 31st March 2018.

As per para 72 of Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’,
restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business. A constructive obligation to
restructure arises when:

(a) an entity has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring

(b) has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring
by starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected
by it.

The Board of directors of U Ltd have decided to terminate the operations of G Ltd. from 30th
April 2018. They have.made a formal announcement on 15th February 2018, thus creating a
valid expectation that the termination will be implemented. This creates a constructive
obligation on the company and requires provisions for restructuring.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring
that are necessarily entailed by the restructuring and are not associated with the ongoing
activities of the entity.

The termination payments fulfil the above condition. As per Ind AS 10 ‘Events after Reporting
Date’, events that provide additional evidence of conditions existing at the reporting date
should be reflected in the financial statements. Therefore, the company should make a
provision for Rs. 520 lakhs in this respect.

The relocation costs relate to the future conduct of the business and are not liabilities for
restructuring at the end of the reporting period. Hence, these would be recognised on the
same basis as if they arose independently of a restructuring.

The operating lease would be regarded as an onerous contract. A provision would be made
at the lower of the cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure
to fulfil it. Hence, a provision shall be made for Rs. 410 lakhs.

Further operating losses relate to future events and do not form a part of the closure
provision.

Therefore, the total provision required = Rs. 520 lakhs + Rs. 410 lakhs = Rs. 930 lakhs
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Q 19. During the year, QA Ltd. delivered manufactured products to customer K. The products were
faulty and on 1st October, 2016 customer K commenced legal action against the Company
claiming damages in respect of losses due to the supply of faulty product. Upon investigating
the matter, QA Ltd. discovered that the products were faulty due to defective raw material
procured from supplier F. Therefore, on 1st December, 2016, the Company commenced legal
action against F claiming damages in respect of the supply of defec tive raw materials.

QA Ltd. has estimated that it's probability of success of both legal actions, the action of K
against QA Ltd. and action of QA Ltd. against F, is very high.

On 1st October, 2016, QA Ltd. has estimated that the damages it would have to pay K
would be Rs. 5 crores. This estimate was revised to Rs. 5.2 crores as on'31st:March, 2017 and
Rs. 5.25 crores as at 15th May, 2017. This case was eventually settled ‘'on 1st June, 2017,
when the Company paid damages of Rs. 5.3 crores to K.

On 1st December, 2016, QA Ltd. had estimated that it would receive/damages of Rs. 3.5
crores from F. This estimate was revised to Rs. 3.6 crores as at 31st March, 2017 and Rs. 3.7
crores as on 15th May, 2017. This case was eventually settled on 1st June, 2017 when F paid
Rs. 3.75 crores to QA Ltd. QA Ltd. had, in its financial'statements for the year ended 31 st
March, 2017, provided Rs. 3.6 crores as the financial'statements were approved by the Board
of Directors on 26th April, 2017.

(i) Whether the Company is required to make provision forthe claim from customer K as per
applicable Ind AS? If yes, please give the rationale for the same.

(ii) If the answer to (a) above is yes,what is.the entry to be passed in the books of account
as on 31st March, 20177 Give-brief reasoning for your choice.

(A) Statement of Profit and Loss A/c Dr. Rs. 5.2 crores

To Current Liability A/c Rs. 5.2 crores
(B) Statement of Profit and Loss A/c Dr. Rs. 5.3 crores

To Non-Current Liability A/c Rs. 5.3 crores
(C) Statement ofProfit and Loss A/c Dr.Rs. 5.25 crores

To Current Liability A/c Rs. 5.25 crores

What will the accounting treatment of the action of QA Ltd. against supplier F as per
applicable Ind AS?

Yes, QA Ltd. is required to make provision for the claim from customer K as per Ind AS 37
since the claim is a present obligation as a result of delivery of faulty goods manufactured.
Also, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligations. Further, a reliable estimate of Rs. 5.2 crore can be
made of the amount of the obligation while preparing the financial statements as on 31st
March, 2017.

(i) Option (A) : Statement of Profit and Loss A/c Dr. Rs. 5.2 crore
To Current Liability A/c Rs.5.2 crore
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(iii) As per para 31 of Ind AS 37, QA Ltd. shall not recognise a contingent asset. Here the
probability of success of legal action is very high but there is no concrete evidence which
makes the inflow virtually certain. Hence, it will be considered as contingent asset
only and shall not be recognized.

Q 20. Sun Limited has entered into a binding agreement with Moon Limited to buy a custom-made
machine for Rs. 4,00,000. At the end of 2017-18, before delivery of the machine, Sun Limited
had to change its method of production. The new method will not require the machine
ordered which is to be scrapped after delivery. The expected scrap value is nil. Given that the
asset is yet to be delivered, should any liability be recognized for the potential loss? If so, give
reasons for the same, the amount of liability as well as the accounting entry. ~[Nov 2018]

As per Ind AS 37, Executory contracts are contracts under which
e neither party has performed any of its obligations; or
e both parties have partially performed their obligations to an equal extent.

The contract entered by Sun Ltd. is an executory contract, since the delivery has not yet taken
place.

Ind AS 37 is applied to executory contracts only if they are onerous.

Ind AS 37 defines an onerous contract asa contractiin which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
under it.

As per the facts given in the question, Sun Ltd. will not require the machine ordered. However,
since it is a binding agreement, ‘the entity cannot exit / cancel the agreement. Further, Sun
Ltd. has to scrap the machine after delivery at nil scrap value.

These circumstances do indicate that the agreement/contract is an onerous contract.
Therefore, a provision should be made for the onerous element of Rs. 4,00,000 ie the full cost
of the machine.

Onerous Contract Provision Expense A/c Dr. 4,00,000

To Provision for Onerous Contract Liability A/c 4,00,000
(Being asset:to be received due to binding agreement recognized)
Profit and Loss Account (Loss due to onerous contract)  Dr. 4,00,000

To Onerous Contract Provision Expense A/c 4,00,000

(Being loss due to onerous contract recognized and asset derecognsied)

QUESTIONS FROM OTHER SOURCE

Q21 Atthe end of the financial year ending on 31st December, 2007, a company finds that there
are twenty law suits outstanding which have not been settled till the date of approval of
accounts by the Board of Directors. The possible outcome as estimated by the Board is as
follows:

Probability Loss (Rs)
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In respect of five cases

- Win

Next ten cases

- Win

- Lose (Low damages) 1,20,000
- Lose (High damages) 2,00,000
Remaining five cases

- Win 50%
- Lose (Low damages) 30% 1,00,000
- Lose (High damages) 20% 2,10,000

Outcome of each case is to be taken as a separate entity. Ascertain the amount of contingent
loss and the accounting treatment in respect thereof. [May 2010]

In this case, the probability of winning of first five cases is.100% and hence, question of
providing for contingent loss does not arise. The probability of winning of next ten cases is
60% and for remaining five cases is 50%. As per IND AS 37, we make a provision if the loss is
probable. As the loss does not appear to:be probable and the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is not remote rather there is reasonable possibility
of loss, therefore disclosure by way of note should be made. For the purpose of the disclosure
of contingent liability by way of note, amount may be calculated as under:

Expected loss in next ten cases.= 30% of Rs 1,20,000 + 10% of Rs 2,00,000

=Rs 36,000 + Rs 20,000 =Rs 56,000

Expected loss.in remaining five cases = 30% of Rs 1,00,000 + 20% of Rs 2,10,000

=Rs 30,000 + Rs 42,000 = Rs 72,000

To disclose contingent liability on the basis of maximum loss will be highly unrealistic.

Therefore, the better approach will be to disclose the overall expected loss of Rs 9,20,000 (Rs
56,000 X 10 +Rs 72,000 X 5) as contingent liability.

An engineering goods company provides after sales warranty for 2 years to its customers.
Based onjpast experience, the company has been following policy for making provision for
warranties on the invoice amount, on the remaining balance warranty period:

Less than 1 year : 2% provision
More than 1 year: 3% provision
The company has raised invoices as under:

Invoice Date Amount Rs.
19th January, 2011 40,000
29th January, 2012 25,000
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15th October, 2012 90,000

Calculate the provision to be made for warranty under Accounting Standard 29 as at 31%t
March, 2012 and 31%*March, 2013. Also compute amount to be debited to Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended 315* March, 2013. [May 2013]

Provision to be made for warranty under IND AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets’

As at 31st March, 2012 = Rs. 40,000 x .02 + Rs. 25,000 x .03 = Rs. 800 + Rs. 750 = Rs. 1,550
As at 31st March, 2013 = Rs. 25,000 x .02 + Rs. 90,000 x .03 = Rs. 500 + Rs. 2,700 = Rs. 3,200
Amount debited to Profit and Loss Account for year ended 31st March, 2013 Rs.
Balance of provision required as on 31.03.2013 3,200
Less: Opening Balance as on 1.4.2012 (1,550)
Amount debited to profit and loss account 1,650

Sun Ltd. has entered into a sale contract of Rs. 5 crores with X Ltd. during 2009-10 financial
year. The profit on this transaction is Rs 1 crore. The delivery of goods to take place during
the first month of 2010-11 financial year. In case of failure of Sun Ltd. to deliver within the
schedule, a compensation of Rs 1.5 crores is to be paid to X Ltd. Sun Ltd. planned to
manufacture the goods during the last month of 2009-10 financial years. As on balance sheet
date (31.3.2010), the goods were not manufactured and it was unlikely that Sun Ltd. will be
in a position to meet the contractual obligation. Should Sun Ltd. provide for contingency as
per IND AS 377

IND AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” provides that when an
enterprise has a present obligation, as a result of past events, that probably requires an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation, a
provision should be recognised. Sun Ltd. has the obligation to deliver the goods within the
scheduled time as per the contract. It is probable that Sun Ltd. will fail to deliver the goods
within the schedule_and it is also possible to estimate the amount of compensation.
Therefore, Sun'Ltd. should provide for the contingency amounting Rs 1.5 crores as per IND AS
37.

Mini Ltd. took a factory premises on lease on 1.4.07 for Rs. 2,00,000 per month. The lease is
operating lease. During March, 2008, Mini Ltd. relocates its operation to a new factory
building. The lease on the old factory premises continues to be live upto 31.12.2010. The lease
cannot be cancelled and cannot be sub—let to another user. The auditor insists that lease rent
of balance 33 months upto 31.12.2010 should be provided in the accounts for the year ending
31.3.2008. Mini Ltd. seeks your advice.

In accordance with IND AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, if an
enterprise has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract should be
recognized and measured as a provision. In the given case, the operating lease contract has
become onerous as the economic benefit of lease contract for next 33 months up to
31.12.2010 will be nil. However, the lessee, Mini Ltd., has to pay lease rent of Rs 66,00,000
(i.e.2,00,000 p.m. for next 33 months). Therefore, provision on account of Rs.66,00,000 is to
be provided in the accounts for the year ending 31.03.08. Hence auditor is right

A company is in a dispute involving allegation of infringement of patents by a competitor
company who is seeking damages of a huge sum of Rs. 900 lakhs. The directors are of the
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opinion that the claim can be successfully resisted by the company. How would you deal the
same in the annual accounts of the company?

A contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. The possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote in the given situation, since the directors of WZW Ltd. are of the opinion
that the claim can be successfully resisted by the company. Therefore, the company shall not
disclose the same as contingent liability.

M/s. Shishir Ltd., a public Sector Company, provides consultancy and engineering services to
its clients. In the year 2014-15, the Government set up a commission to decide about the pay
revision. The pay will be revised with respect from 1-1-2012 based on the recommendations
of the commission. The company makes the provision of Rs. 1250 lakhs for pay.revision in the
financial year 2014-15 on the estimated basis as the report of the commission is yet to come.
As per the contracts with client on cost plus job, the billing is done on the actual payment
made to the employees and allocated to jobs based on hours booked by these employees on
each job.

The company discloses through notes to accounts:

“Salaries and benefits include the provision of Rs. 1250 lakhs in respect of pay revision. The
amount chargeable from reimbursable jobs will:be billed as per the contract when the actual
payment is made.”

The Accountant feels that the company.should also book/recognize the income by Rs. 1250
lakhs in Profit & Loss Account as per the terms of the contract. Otherwise, it will be the
violation of matching concept & understatement of profit. Comment on the opinion of the
Accountant with reference to relevant Accounting Standards.

As per IND AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, where some or all
of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement should be recognized when, and only when, it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will "be received if the enterprise settles the obligation. The
reimbursement should be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognized for the
reimbursement should not exceed the amount of the provision.

Accordingly, potential loss to an enterprise may be reduced or avoided because a contingent
liability is matched by a related counter-claim or claim against a third party. In such cases, the
amount of the provision is determined after taking into account the probable recovery under
the claim if no significant uncertainty as to its measurability or collectability exists.

In thiscase, the provision of salary to employees of Rs. 1,250 lakhs will be ultimately collected
from the client, as per the terms of the contract. Therefore, the liability of Rs. 1,250 lakhs is
matched by the counter claim from the client. Hence, the provision for salary of employees
should be matched with the reimbursable asset to be claimed from the client. It appears that
the whole amount of Rs. 1,250 lakhs is recoverable from client and there is no significant
uncertainty about the collection. Hence, the net charge to profit and loss account should be
nil.

The opinion of the accountant regarding recognition of income of Rs. 1,250 lakhs is not as per
IND AS 37 and also the concept of prudence will not be followed if Rs. 1,250 lakhs is
simultaneously recognized as income. Rs. 1,250 lakhs is not the revenue at present but only
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reimbursement of claim for which an asset is created. However the accountant incorrect to
the extent as that non- recognition of Rs. 1,250 lakhs as income will result in the
understatement of profit. To avoid this, in the statement of profit and loss, expense relating
to provision may be presented net of the amount recognized for reimbursement.

Quick Ltd. is a company engaged in the trading of spare parts used in the repair of
automobiles. The company has been regular in depositing the tax, as such there is no liability
of Income Tax etc. for the Financial Year 2012-13.

The figures for the year are as under:

Income chargeable to tax Rs. 211.64 lakhs
Total income after adjustments Rs. 228.48 lakhs
Tax thereon Rs. 74.13 lakhs
TDS deducted during the year Rs. 30.45 lakhs
Tax paid for the year Rs. 43.68 lakhs

The company has prepared its Balance Sheet as per above figures. However, during the
assessment proceeding held before the finalization of the Balance Sheet the Income Tax
Officer has issued demand of Rs. 7.52 lakhs, insisting that this amount of TDS has not been
uploaded online and thus is not acceptable as deduction:.

The company has in reply to the same filed a rectification with the Assessing Officer. The
company is trying to collect the TDS certificates, but Rs. 2.39 lakhs deducted by XY LTD., is not
traceable. The rectification is lying pending with the Assessing Officer.

Please suggest the treatmentof Rs. 2.39 lakhs and Rs. 7.52 lakhs in Balance Sheet.

As per IND AS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, a contingent
liability is: (a) a possible.obligationthat arises from past events and the existence of which will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the enterprise; or (b) a present obligation that arises
from past events but is not recognised because: (i) it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or (ii) a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. An obligation is a present
obligation if, based on the evidence available, its existence at the balance sheet date is
considered probable, i.e., more likely than not.

Inthe given case, TDS shall be allowed by the IT department on submission of duplicate TDS
certificates. Since the company is making efforts and is hopeful for its ultimate collection,
contingent liability will be made for Rs. 2.39 lakhs in the books of account.

Further as per the standard, where it is more likely that no present obligation exists at the
balance sheet date and the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote, no contingent liability is disclosed.

TDS certificates for Rs. 5.13 lakhs (Rs. 7.52 lakhs less Rs. 2.39 lakhs) have been submitted and
the company has filed a rectification with the Assessing Officer. Therefore, the possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote; the company shall not
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disclose it as contingent liability. This amount should be disclosed by way of a note to the
accounts.

A company, incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013, have main objective
to promote the trade by organizing trade fairs / exhibitions. When company was organizing
the trade fair and exhibitions it decided to charge 5%contingency charges for the
participants/outside agencies on the income received from them by the company, while in
the case of fairs organized by outside agencies,5% contingency charges are levied separately
in the invoice, the contingency charges in respect of fairs organized by the company itself are
inbuilt in the space rent charged from the participants. Both are credited to Income and
Expenditure Account of the company.

The intention of levying these charges is to meet any unforeseen liability, which may.arise in
future. The instances of such unforeseen liabilities could be on account of injury/loss of life to
visitors/ exhibitors, etc., due to fire, terrorist attack, stampede, natural calamities and other
public and third party liability. The chances of occurrence of these events are high because of
large crowds visit the fair. The decision to levy 5% contingency charges was based on
assessment only as actual liability on this account cannot be estimated.

The following accounting treatment and disclosure was:made by the company in its financial
statements:

1. 5% contingency charges are treated as income and:matching provision for the same is
also being made in accounts.

2. Asuitable disclosure to this effect is also made in the notes forming part of accounts.
Required:

(i) Whether creation of provision for contingencies under the facts and circumstances of the
case is in conformity‘with IND AS 37.

(ii) If the answer of (i) is\"No" then what should be the treatment of the provision which is
already created in the balance sheet. [RTP]

IND AS:37 "Provisions,Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets “states that a provision
should be recognised when (a) An enterprise has a present obligation as a result of a past
event and.(b) Itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and (c) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. If these conditions are not met, no provision should be recognised.

From the above, it is clear that in the contingencies considered by the company, neither a
present obligation exists as a result of past event, nor are liable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Accordingly, a provision cannot be recognised for such
contingencies under the facts and circumstances of the case.

"Provision" is the amount retained by the way of providing for any known liability. Since the
contingencies stipulated by the company are not known at the balance sheet date, the
provision in this regard cannot be created. Therefore, the provision so created by the
company shall be treated as a ‘Reserve’.
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Q 29:

Lucky P Limited has been assessed to Income-tax, in which a demand of Rs. 10 lacs has-been
made. The company has gone in appeal. The company has deposited Rs. 6.00 lacs against the
demand, on being pursued by the department. The company has been advised by its counsel
that there is 80% chance of losing in respect of one of the grounds which may end up
confirming the demand of Rs. 4.00 lacs, while on other grounds, there is fair chance of winning
the appeal. How the company should treat the same while preparing the final accounts for
the year ending 31st March, 20157

In the given case, there is a present obligation of demand of Rs.10 lacs raised by the Income-
tax department. As per the advise by the counsel, the outflow of resources up to Rs. 4 lacs is
more likely to happen to settle the obligation since there is 80% probability of losing on one
ground. Therefore, a provision of Rs. 4 lacs shall be made in the books of.account for the year
ended 31st March, 2015.

However, in respect of other grounds, there are fair chances of winning the appeal. Thus, no
provision is required to be made for the remaining amount of Rs..6,00,000 and it should be
shown as contingent liability in the books of the company while preparingthe final accounts
for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

The company paid Rs. 6 lacs against demand on being pursued by the department but created
a provision of Rs. 4 lacs only. Hence it is expecting to get a refund in due course. Till the final
settlement of the case, Rs. 6 lacs paid against income tax' demand will appear under the
heading ‘Non-current/Current Loans and Advances’ and ‘Provision for taxation’ under the
heading Long/Short term Provisions’, based on the expected date of settlement.
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Events after the Reporting Period
(IND AS10)
QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

Question 1

A case is going on between ABC Ltd., and GST department on claiming some exemption for the year
20X1-20X2. The court has issued the order on 15th April, 20X2 and rejected the claim.of the company.
Accordingly, the company is liable to pay the additional tax. The financial statements of the company
for the year 20X1-20X2 have been approved on 15th May, 20X2. Should the company account for
such tax in the year 20X1-20X2 or should it account for the same in the year 20X2-20X3?

Answer: An event after the reporting period is an adjusting event, if. it provides evidence of a
condition existing at the end of the reporting period. Here, this condition is satisfied. Court order
received after the reporting period provides the evidence of the liability existing at the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the event will be considered as an‘adjusting event and, accordingly, the
amounts will be adjusted in financial statements for 20X1-20X2.

Question 2:

A company has inventory of 100 finished cars on31st March, 20X2, which are having a cost of Rs.
4,00,000 each. On 30th April, 20X2, as per the.new government rules, higher road tax and penalties
are to be paid by the buyers for such cars (which were already expected to come) and hence the
selling price of a car has come down and.the demand for such cars has dropped drastically. The
selling price has come down to Rs. 3,00,000 each. The financial statements of the company for the
year 20X1-20X2 are not yet ‘approved. Should the company value its stock at Rs. 4,00,000 each or
should it value at Rs. 3,00,000 each? Ignore estimated costs necessary to make the sale. [ICAI SM]

Solution: Events after-the reporting period provide the evidence about the net realisable value of the
cars at the end of the reporting period and, therefore, the amount of Rs. 3,00,000 should be
considered for the valuation of stock.

Question 3:

ABC Ltd:; has purchased a new machinery during the year 20X1-20X2. The asset was finally installed
and made ready for use.on 15th March, 20X2. However, the company involved in installation and
training, which was also the supplier, has not yet submitted the final bills for the same.

The supplier. company sent the bills on 10th April, 20X2, when the financial statements were not yet
approved. Should the company adjust the amount of capitalisation in the year 20X1-20X2 or in the
year 20X2-20X3?

Answer: As per the provisions of the contract, the cost of installation and training of new machine is
an integral part of the cost of asset purchased. Therefore, even if the details are available after
reporting period, they provide proof about the circumstances that existed at the end of reporting
period. Therefore, the cost of installation and training will be considered for capitalisation in the year
20X1-20X2.

Question 4:
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ABC Ltd., declares the dividend on 15th July, 20X2 as the results of year 20X1-20X2 as well as Q1
ending 30th June, 20X2 are better than expected. The financial statements of the company are
approved on 20th July, 20X2 for the financial year ending 31st March, 20X2. Will the dividend be
accounted for in the financial year 20X2-20X3 or will it be accounted for in the year 20X1-20X2?

Answer: The dividend is declared in the year 20X2-20X3. Therefore, the obligation towards dividend
did not exist at the end date of reporting period i.e., on 31st March, 20X2. Therefore, it will be
accounted for in the year 20X2-20X3 and not in 20X1-20X2, even if financial statements for 20X1-
20X2 were approved after the declaration of dividend. It will, however, be disclosed in the notes in
the financial statements for the year 20X1-20X2 in accordance with Ind AS 1

Question 5:

ABC Ltd. has announced its Interim results for Quarter 1, ending 30th June 20X2 on 5th July 20X2.
However, till that time the AGM for the year 20X1-20X2 was not held. The accounts for 20X1-20X2
were approved by the board of directors on 15th July 20X2. What will be/the period after the
reporting date as per the definition of Ind AS 10?

Answer: As per Ind AS 10, even if partial information is published, still the reporting period will be
considered as the period between end date of reporting period:and approval of accounts. In the
above case the accounts are approved on 15th July. Therefore, the period after the reporting date
would be 31st March to 15th July.

Question 6:

ABC Ltd. is in the legal suit with the excise department. Company gets a court order in its favour, on
15th April 20X2, which resulted into reducing the excise liability as on 31st March 20X2. The
management has not considered the effect of the transaction as the event is favourable to the
company. Company’s view is favourable events after the reporting date should not be considered as
it would hamper the realization concept of accounting. Comment in the light of Ind AS 10? [ICAI SM]

Answer: As per Ind AS 10, even favourable event needs to be considered. What is important is
whether the conditions exists as onthe end of the reporting period and there is a conclusive evidence
for the same.

Question 7:

ABC Ltd. is trading company-in Laptops. On 31st March 20X2 company has 50 laptops which were
purchased at Rs. 45,000 each. Company has considered the same price for calculation of closing
inventory. On 15th April 20X2, advanced version of same series of laptops is introduced in the market.
Therefore, the price of the current laptops crashes to Rs. 35,000 each. Company does not want to
value the stock as Rs. 35,000 as the event of reduction took place after the 315tMarch 20X2 and the
reduced prices were not applicable as on 31st March 20X2. Comment

Answer: As per Ind AS 10, the decrease in the net realizable value of the stock after reporting period
should be considered as adjusting event.

Question 8:

JCB manufactures and sales earth moving machines. The machines are dispatched on 25th March
20X2 for exports. The machines reached the customer on 15th April 20X2. The details of the price of
sale, foreign exchange rate etc. are available on 4th April 20X2. The accounts were approved by the

www.cachiranjeevjain.com Page 46




QUESTIONS BANK +91-7731007722

management on 15th May 20X2. Shall company consider it as the sale of 20X1-20X2 and adjust the
accounts for the information received on 4th April or not?

Answer: As per Ind AS 10, any information received after the reporting period for determining
purchase of cost or sale of asset, related to earlier financial year, should be considered as an adjusting
event.

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Question 9:

XYZ Ltd. was formed to secure the tenders floated by a telecom company for publication of
telephone directories. It bagged the tender for publishing directories for Pune circle for 5 years.
It has made a profit in 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and 2016-2017. It bid in tenders for
publication of directories for other circles — Nagpur, Nashik, Mumbai, Hyderabad but as per the
results declared on 23rd April, 2017, the company failed to bag any of these. lts only activity till
date is publication of Pune directory. The contract for publication of directories for Pune will expire
on 31st December 2017. The financial statements for the F.Y. 2016-17 have been approved by
the Board of Directors on July 10, 2017. Whether it is appropriate to prepare financial statements
on going concern basis? [RTP May 2019]

Answer:

With regard to going concern basis to be followed for preparation of financial statements, Ind AS 10
provides as follows:

“An entity shall not prepare its financial ‘statements on a going concern basis if management
determines after the reporting period either that.it intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading,
or that it has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Deterioration in operating results and financial position after the reporting period may indicate
a need to consider whether the going concern assumption is still appropriate. If the going concern
assumption is no donger appropriate, the effect is so pervasive that this Standard requires a
fundamental change in the basis of accounting, rather than an adjustment to the amounts
recognised within the original basis of accounting.”

In accordance with the above, an entity needs to change the basis of accounting if the effect of
deterioration in operating results and financial position is so pervasive that management determines
after the reporting period either that it intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or that it
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

In the instant case, since contract is expiring on 31st December 2017 and it is confirmed on 23rd
April, 2017, i.e., after the end of the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements, that no further contact is secured, implies that the entity’s operations are expected to
come to an end. Accordingly, if entity’s operations are expected to come to an end, the entity
needs to make a judgement as to whether it has any realistic possibility to continue or not. In case,
the entity determines that it has no realistic alternative of continuing the business, preparation of
financial statements for 2016-17 and thereafter on going concern basis may not be appropriate.
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Valuation of Inventories
(IND AS 2)
UESTIONS FRoOM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

Cost of Inventory

Venus Trading Company purchases cars from several countries and sells them to Asian
countries. During the current year, this company has incurred following expenses:

. Trade discounts on purchase

. Handling costs relating to imports

. Salaries of accounting department

. Sales commission paid to sales agents

. After sales warranty costs

. Import duties

. Costs of purchases (based on supplier’s invoices)

. Freight expense

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

. Insurance of purchases
10. Brokerage commission paid to indenting agents

Evaluate which costs are allowed by/Ind AS 2 for inclusion in the cost of inventory in the books
of Venus.

ltems number.1, 2,6, 7, 8,9, 10 are allowed by Ind AS 2 for the calculation of cost of
inventories. Salaries of accounts department, sales commission, and after sale warranty costs
are not considered to be the cost of inventory. Therefore, they are not allowed by Ind AS 2
for inclusion in cost of inventory and are expensed off in the profit and loss account.

Night Ltd. sells beer to customers; some of the customers consume the beer in the bars run
by Night Limited. While leaving the bars, the consumers leave the empty bottles in the bars
and the company takes possession of these empty bottles. The company has laid down a
detailed internal record procedure for accounting for these empty bottles which are sold by
the company by calling for tenders. Keeping this in view:

(i) Decide whether the stock of empty bottles is an asset of the company;

(ii) If so, whether the stock of empty bottles existing as on the date of Balance Sheet is to be
considered as inventories of the company and valued as per IND AS 2 or to be treated as
scrap and shown at realizable value with corresponding credit to ‘Other Income’?

Tangible objects or intangible rights carrying probable future benefits, owned by an
enterprise are called assets. Night Ltd. sells these empty bottles by calling tenders. It means
further benefits are accrued on its sale. Therefore, empty bottles are assets for the company.
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As per IND AS 2 “Valuation of Inventories”, inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Stock of empty bottles existing on the Balance Sheet date is the inventory
and Night Ltd. has detailed controlled recording and accounting procedure which duly signify
its materiality. Hence stock of empty bottles cannot be considered as scrap and should be
valued as inventory in accordance with IND AS 2.

In a manufacturing process of Vijoy Limited, one by-product BP emerges besides two main
products MP1 and MP2 apart from scrap. Details of cost of production process are here under:

Item Unit Amount Output (unit) Closing stock as
(Rs.) on 31-03-2012

Raw material 15,000 1,60,000 MP1-6,250 800

Wages - 82,000 MP2- 5,000

Fixed overhead 58,000 BP-1,600

Variable overhead - 40,000 -

Average market price of MP1 and MP2 is Rs. 80 per_unit and Rs. 50 per unit respectively, by
product is sold @ Rs. 25 per unit. There is a profit of Rs. 5,000 on sale of by-product after
incurring separate processing charges of Rs. 4,000.and packing charges of Rs. 6,000, Rs. 6,000
was realised from sale of scrap.

Calculate the value of closing stock of MP1 and MP2 as'on 31-03-2012. [ICAI SM]

As per IND AS 2 ‘Inventories’, most by-products as well as scrap or waste materials, by their
nature, are immaterial. They are often measured at net realizable value and this value is
deducted from the cost of the:main product.

1. | Calculation of net'realizable value of by-product, BP Rs
Selling price of by-product BP (1,600 units x RRs. 25 per unit) 40,000
Less:/Separate processing charges of by- product BP (4,000)
Packing charges (6,000)
Net realizable value of by-product BP 30,000
Calculation of cost of conversion for allocation between joint products MP1 and

MP2

Rs. Rs.
Raw material 1,60,000
Wages 82,000
Fixed overhead 58,000
Variable overhead 40,000
3,40,000
Less: NRV of by-product BP ( See calculation 1) (30,000)
Sale value of scrap (6,000) (36,000)
Joint cost to be allocated between MP1 and MP2 3,04,000
Determination of “basis for allocation” and allocation of joint cost to MP1 and

MP2

MP1 MP2
Output in units (a) 6,250 units 5,000 units
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Sales price per unit (b)

Rs. 80

Rs. 50

Sales value (a x b)

Rs. 5,00,000

Rs.2,50,000

Ratio of allocation

2

1

Joint cost of Rs. 3,04,000 allocated in the ratio of 2:1
(c)

Rs. 2,02,667

Rs. 1,01,333

Cost per unit [c/a]

Rs. 32.43

Rs. 20.27

Determination of value of closing stock of MP1 and
MP2

MP1

MP2

Closing stock in units

800 units

200 units

Cost per unit

Rs.32.43

Rs. 20.27

Value of closing stock

Rs. 25,944

Rs.4,054

Mars Fashions is a new luxury retail company located in Lajpat Nagar, New Delhi. Kindly advise
the accountant of the company on the necessary accounting treatment for the following
items:

(a) One of Company’s product lines is beauty products, particularly cosmetics such as
lipsticks, moisturizers and compact make-up kits: The company sells hundreds of different
brands of these products. Each product is quite similar, is purchased at similar prices and
has a short lifecycle before a new:similar product is introduced. The point of sale and
inventory system is not yet fully functioning in'this department. The sales manager of the
cosmetic department is unsure of the cost of each product but is confident of the selling
price and has reliably informed you that the Company, on average, make a gross margin
of 65% on each line.

Mars Fashions also sells handbags. The . Company manufactures their own handbags as
they wish to be assured of the quality and craftsmanship which goes into each handbag.
The handbags are manufactured in India in the head office factory which has made
handbags for the last fifty years. Normally, Mars manufactures 100,000 handbags a year
in their'lhandbag division which uses 15% of the space and overheads of the head office
factory. The division.employs ten people and is seen as being an efficient division within
the overall company.

In accordance with Ind AS 2, explain how the items referred to in a) and b) should be
measured.

The retail method can be used for measuring inventories of the beauty products. The cost of
the inventory is determined by taking the selling price of the cosmetics and reducing it by the
gross margin of 65% to arrive at the cost.

The handbags can be measured using standard cost especially if the results approximate cost.
Given that The company has the information reliably on hand in relation to direct materials,
direct labour, direct expenses and overheads, it would be the best method to use to arrive at
the cost of inventories.

UA Ltd. purchased raw material @ Rs. 400 per kg. Company does not sell raw material but
uses in production of finished goods. The finished goods in which raw material is used are
expected to be sold at below cost. At the end of the accounting year, company is having

www.cachiranjeevjain.com Page 50




QUESTIONS BANK +91-7731007722

10,000 kg of raw material in inventory. As the company never sells the raw material, it does
not know the selling price of raw material and hence cannot calculate the realizable value of
the raw material for valuation of inventories at the end of the year. However, replacement
cost of raw material is Rs. 300 per kg. How will you value the inventory of raw material?

As per Ind AS 2 “Inventories”, materials and other supplies held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when there has been a
decline in the price of materials and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will
exceed net realizable value, the materials are written down to net realizable value. In such
circumstances, the replacement cost of the materials may be the best available measure of
their net realizable value. Therefore, in this case, UA Ltd. will value the inventory of raw
material at Rs. 30,00,000 (10,000 kg. @ Rs. 300 per kg.).

Sun Ltd. has fabricated special equipment (solar power panel) during 2014-15 as per drawing
and design supplied by the customer. However, due to a liquidity crunch, the customer has
requested the company for postponement in delivery schedule and requested the company
to withhold the delivery of finished goods products and discontinue the production of balance
items.

As a result of the above, the details of customer balance and the goods held by the company
as work-in-progress and finished goodsias on 31-03-2016 are as follows:

Solar power panel (WIP) Rs. 85 lakhs

Solar power panel (finished products) Rs. 55 lakhs

Sundry Debtor (solar power panel) Rs. 65 lakhs

The petition for winding up@against the customer has been filed during 2015-16 by Sun Ltd.

Comment withtexplanation. on provision to be made of Rs. 205 lakh included in Sundry
Debtors, Finished Goods and Work-in-progress in the financial statements of 2015-16.

From the fact given in the question it is obvious that Sun Ltd. is a manufacturer of solar power
panel. As per IND AS 2 ‘Valuation of Inventories’, inventories are assets (a) held for sale in the
ordinary course of business; (b) in the process of production for such sale; or (c) in the form
of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of
services. Therefore, solar power panel held in its stock will be considered as its inventory.
Further, as per the standard, inventory at the end of the year are to be valued at lower of cost
or NRV.

As the customer has postponed the delivery schedule due to liquidity crunch the entire cost
incurred for solar power panel which were to be supplied has been shown in Inventory. The
solar power panel are in the possession of the Company which can be sold in the market.
Hence company should value such inventory as per principle laid down in IND AS 2i.e. lower
of Cost or NRV. Though, the goods were produced as per specifications of buyer the Company
should determine the NRV of these goods in the market and value the goods accordingly.
Change in value of such solar power panel should be provided for in the books. In the absence
of the NRV of WIP and Finished product given in the question, assuming that cost is lower,
the company shall value its inventory as per IND AS 2for Rs. 140 lakhs [i.e solar power panel
(WIP) Rs. 85 lakhs + solar power panel (finished products) Rs. 55 lakhs].
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Note: Alternatively, if it is assumed that there is no buyer for such fabricated solar power
panel, then the NRV will be Nil. In such a case, full value of finished goods and WIP will be
provided for in the books.

As regards Sundry Debtors balance, since the Company has filed a petition for winding up
against the customer in 2015-16, it is probable that amount is not recoverable from the party.
Hence, the provision for doubtful debts for Rs. 65 lakhs shall be made in the books against the
debtors amount.

Mercury Ltd. uses a periodic inventory system. The following information relates to 20X1-
20X2.

Date Particular Unit Cost p.u. Total Cost
April Inventory 200 2,000
May Purchases 50 550
September Purchases 400 4,800
February Purchases 350 4,900
Total 1,000 12,250

Physical inventory at 31.03.20X2 400 units. Calculate ending inventory value and cost of sales
using:

(a) FIFO

(b) Weighted Average
FIFO inventory 31.03.20X2
Cost of Sales

350 @14 =

50@12=

12,250-5,500 =

Weighted average cost per item

Weighted average inventory at 31.03.20X2

Cost of sales 20X1-20X2

12,250/1000 = 12.25
400x 12.25 = 4,900
12,250-4,900 = 7,350

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q8 On 31 March 20X1, the inventory of ABC includes spare parts which it had been supplying to
a number of different customers for some years. The cost of the spare parts was Rs. 10 million
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and based on retail prices at 31 March 20X1, the expected selling price of the spare parts is
Rs. 12 million. On 15 April 20X1, due to market fluctuations, expected selling price of the spare
parts in stock reduced to Rs. 8 million. The estimated selling expense required to make the
sales would Rs. 0.5 million. Financial statements were authorised by Board of Directors on
20th April 20X1.

As at 31st March 20X2, Directors noted that such inventory is still unsold and lying in the
warehouse of the company. Directors believe that inventory is in a saleable condition and
active marketing would result in an immediate sale. Since the market conditions have
improved, estimated selling price of inventory is Rs. 11 million and estimated selling expenses
are same Rs. 0.5 million.

What will be the value inventory at the following dates:
(a) 31st March 20X1
(b) 31st March 20X2 [RTP May 2018]

As per Ind AS 2 ‘Inventories’, inventory is measured at lower of ‘cost’ or ‘net realisable value’.
Further, as per Ind AS 10: ‘Events after Balance Sheet‘Date’, decline‘in net realisable value
below cost provides additional evidence of events/occurring at the balance sheet date and
hence shall be considered as ‘adjusting events’.

(a) In the given case, for valuation of inventory as on.31 March 20X1, cost of inventory
would be Rs. 10 million and net realisable value would be Rs. 7.5 million (i.e. Expected
selling price Rs. 8 million- estimated selling expenses Rs. 0.5 million). Accordingly,
inventory shall be measured at Rs. 7.5 million i.e. lower of cost and net realisable value.
Therefore, inventory write down of Rs. 2.5 million would be recorded in income
statement of that year.

As per para 33 ofdnd AS 2, a new assessment is made of net realizable value in each
subsequent period. It Inter alia states that if there is increase in net realizable value
because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of write down is reversed
so that new carrying amount is the lower of the cost and the revised net realizable
value. Accordingly, as at 31 March 20X2, again inventory would be valued at cost or
net realisable value whichever is lower. In the present case, cost is Rs. 1 million and
net realisable value would be Rs. 10. 5 million (i.e. expected selling price Rs. 11 million
— estimated selling expense Rs. 0.5 million). Accordingly, inventory would be recorded
at Rs. 10 million and inventory write down carried out in previous year for Rs. 2.5
million shall be reversed.

On 5th-April, 20X2, fire damaged a consignment of inventory at one of the Jupiter’s Ltd.’s
warehouse. This inventory had been manufactured prior to 31st March 20X2 costing Rs.
8 lakhs. The net realisable value of the inventory prior to the damage was estimated at Rs.
9.60 lakhs. Because of the damage caused to the consignment of inventory, the company was
required to spend an additional amount of Rs. 2 lakhs on repairing and re- packaging of the
inventory. The inventory was sold on 15th May, 20X2 for proceeds of Rs. 9 lakhs.

The accountant of Jupiter Ltd. treats this event as an adjusting event and adjusted this event
of causing the damage to the inventory in its financial statement and accordingly re-measures
the inventories as follows: Rs. lakhs
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Cost 8.00
Net realisable value (9.6 -2) 7.60
Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value) 7.60

Analyse whether the above accounting treatment made by the accountant in regard to
financial year ending on 31.0.20X2 is in compliance of the Ind AS. If not, advise the correct
treatment alongwith working for the same.

The above treatment needs to be examined in the light of the provisions given inInd
AS 10 ‘Events after the Reporting Period’ and Ind AS 2 ‘Inventories’.

Para 3 of Ind AS 10 ‘Events after the Reporting Period’ defines “Events after thereporting
period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the
reporting period and the date when the financial statements”are approved by the Board of
Directors in case of a company, and, by the corresponding approving authority in case of
any other entity for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
(adjusting events after the reporting period); and

(b) those that are indicative of conditions that ‘arose after the reporting period (non-
adjusting events after the reporting period).

Further, paragraph 10 of Ind AS 10 states that:

“An entity shall not adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to reflect non-
adjusting events after the reporting period”.

Further, paragraph 6 of Ind AS 2 defines:

“Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion.and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale”.

Further, paragraph 9 of Ind AS 2 states that:
“Inventories shall be measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value”.

Accountant of Jupiter Ltd. has re-measured the inventories after adjusting the event in
its financial:'statement which is not correct and nor in accordance with provision of Ind
AS 2 and Ind AS 10.

Accordingly, the event causing the damage to the inventory occurred after the reporting date
and.as per the principles laid down under Ind AS 10 ‘Events After the Reporting Date’ is a
non-adjusting event as it does not affect conditions at the reporting date. Non-adjusting
events are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed where their effect is
material.

Therefore, as per the provisions of Ind AS 2 and Ind AS 10, the consignment of inventories
shall be recorded in the Balance Sheet at a value of Rs. 8 lakhs calculated below:

Rs.” lakhs

Cost
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Net realisable value 9.60

Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)8.00XYZ Limited has a plant with the
normal capacity to produce 10,00,000 units of a product per annum and the expected fixed
overhead is Rs. 30,00,000, Fixed overhead, therefore based on normal capacity is Rs. 3 per
unit.

Determine Fixed overhead as per Ind AS 2 'Inventories' if
(i) Actual production is 7,50,000 units.
(i) Actual production is 15,00,000 units. [May 2018]

Actual production is 7,50,000 units: Fixed overhead is not going to change with the change in
output and will remain constant at Rs. 30,00,000, therefore, overheads on actual basis is Rs.
4 per unit (30,00,000 / 7,50,000).

Hence, by valuing inventory at Rs. 4 each for fixed overhead purpose, it will be overvalued
and the losses of Rs. 7,50,000 will also be included in closing inventory leading to a higher
gross profit then actually earned.

Therefore, it is advisable to include fixed overhead per unit on normal capacity to actual
production (7,50,000 x 3) Rs. 22,50,000 and balance Rs. 7,50,000 shall be transferred to Profit
& Loss Account.

Actual production is 15,00,000 units: Fixed overhead is.not going to change with the change
in output and will remain constant at/Rs.:30,00,000; therefore, overheads on actual basis is
Rs. 2 (30,00,000 / 15,00,000).

Hence by valuing inventory at Rs. 3 each for fixed overhead purpose, we will be adding the
element of cost to inventory.which actually has not been incurred. At Rs. 3 per unit, total fixed
overhead comes to Rs.745,00,000 whereas, actual fixed overhead expense is only Rs.
30,00,000. Therefore;it.is advisable to include fixed overhead on actual basis (15,00,000 x 2)
Rs. 30,00,000.
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Property, Plant and Equipment
(IND AS 16)
QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

Entity A has an existing freehold factory property, which it intends to knock down and
redevelop. During the redevelopment period the company will move its production facilities
to another (temporary) site. The following incremental costs will be incurred:

1. Setup costs of Rs. 5,00,000 to install machinery in the new location:
2. Rent of Rs. 15,00,000

3. Removal costs of Rs. 3,00,000 to transport the machinery from the old location to the
temporary location.

Can these costs be capitalised into the cost of the new building?

Constructing or acquiring a new asset may result in incremental costs that would have been
avoided if the asset had not been constructed or acquired: These costs are not to be included
in the cost of the asset if they are not directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The costs to be incurred by the company.do not meet the requirement of IND
AS 16 and therefore, cannot be capitalised.

Entity A, which operates a major-chain of supermarkets, has acquired a new store location.
The new location requires significant renovation expenditure. Management expects that the
renovations will last for 3 months during which the supermarket will be closed.

Management has prepared the budget for this period including expenditure related to
construction and remodelling costs, salaries of staff who will be preparing the store before its
opening and related utilities costs. What will be the treatment of such expenditures?

Management should capitalise the costs of construction and remodelling the supermarket,
because they are necessary to bring the store to the condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. The supermarket cannot be opened
without. incurring the remodelling expenditure, and thus the expenditure should be
considered part of the asset.

However, the cost of salaries, utilities and storage of goods are operating expenditures that
would be incurred if the supermarket was open. These costs are not necessary to bring the
store to the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and should be expensed.

An amusement park has a 'soft' opening to the public, to trial run its attractions. Tickets are
sold at a 50% discount during this period and the operating capacity is 80%. The official
opening day of the amusement park is three months later. Management claim that the soft
opening is a trial run necessary for the amusement park to be in the condition capable of
operating in the intended manner. Accordingly, the net operating costs incurred should be
capitalised. Comment.
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Ans:

The net operating costs should not be capitalised, but should be recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Even though it is running at less than full operating capacity (in this case 80% of operating
capacity), there is sufficient evidence that the amusement park is capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Therefore, these costs are specific to the start-up and,
therefore, should be expensed as incurred.

MS Ltd. has acquired a heavy machinery at a cost of Rs. 1,00,00,000 (with no breakdown of
the component parts). The estimated useful life is 10 years. At the end of the sixth year, one
of the major components, the turbine requires replacement, as further.maintenance is
uneconomical. The remainder of the machine is perfect and is expected to last for the next
four years. The cost of a new turbine is Rs. 45,00,000.

Can the cost of the new turbine be recognised as an asset, and, if so, what treatment should
be used?

The new turbine will produce economic benefits to MS Ltd., and the cost is measurable.
Hence, the item should be recognised as an asset. The originalinvoice for the machine did not
specify the cost of the turbine; however, the cost of the replacement — Rs. 45,00,000 — can
be used as an indication (usually by discounting) of the likely cost, six years previously.

If an appropriate discount rate is 5% per annum, Rs. 45,00,000 discounted back six years
amounts to Rs. 33,57,900 [Rs. 45,00,000/(1.05)6],.e., the approximate cost of turbine before
6 years.

The current carrying amount of the turbine which is required to be replaced of Rs. 13,43,160
would be derecognised from the books. of account, (i.e., Original Cost Rs. 33,57,900 as
reduced by accumulated depreciation for past 6 years Rs. 20,14,740, assuming depreciation
is charged on straight-line basis.)

The cost of the new turbine, Rs. 45,00,000 would be added to the cost of machine, resulting
in a revision of carrying amount of machine to Rs. 71,56,840. (i.e., Rs. 40,00,000* — Rs.
13,43,160 + Rs. 45,00,000).

*QOriginal cost of machine Rs. 1,00,00,000 reduced by accumulated depreciation (till the end
of 6 years) Rs. 60,00,000.

On 1st April 20X1, an item of property is offered for sale at Rs. 10 million, with payment terms
being three equal'installments of Rs. 33,33,333 over a two years period (payments are made
on 1st April 20X1, 31st March 20X2 and 31st March 20X3).

The property developer is offering a discount of 5 percent (i.e. Rs0.5 million) if payment is
made in full at the time of completion of sale. Implicit interest rate of 5.36 percent p.a.

Show how the property will be recorded in accordance of Ind AS 16.

Ind AS 16 requires that the cost of an item of PPE is the cash price equivalent at the recognition
date. Hence, the purchaser that takes up the deferred payment terms will recognise the
acquisition of the asset as follows:

On 1st April 20X1 (INR) (INR)
Property, Plant and Equipment Dr. 95,00,000
To Cash 33,33,333
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To Accounts Payable 61,66,667
(Initial recognition of property)

On 31st March 20X2
Interest Expense Dr. 3,30,533
Accounts payable Dr. 30,02,800
To Cash 33,33,333
(Recognition of interest expense and payment of second
installment)
On 31st March 20X3
Interest Expense Dr. 1,69,467
Accounts payable Dr. 31,63,867
To Cash 33,33,334
(Recognition of interest expense and payment of final
installment)

Pluto Ltd owns land and building which are carried in its balance sheet at an aggregate
carrying amount of Rs. 10 million. The fair value of such asset is Rs. 15 million. It exchanges
the land and building for a private jet, which has a fair value of Rs. 18 million, and pays
additional Rs. 3 million in cash.

Show the necessary treatment as per Ind AS 16

Provided that the transaction has commercial substance, the entity should recognised the
private jet at a cost of Rs. 18 million (its.fair value).and should recognise a profit on disposal
of the land and building of Rs. 5 millien, calculated as follow:

(Rs. 000)

Fair value of Asset acquired 18,000

Less: Carrying amount of land and building disposed (10,000)

Cash Paid (3,000)

Profit on exchange of assets 5,000

Therequired journal entry is therefore as follow:

Property, Plant and Equipment (Private Jet) . 18,000
To Property, Plant and Equipment (Land and Building) 10,000
To Cash 3,000
To Profit on exchange of assets 5,000

Jupiter Ltd. has an item of plant with an initial cost of Rs. 100,000. At the date of revaluation
accumulated depreciation amounted to Rs. 55,000. The fair value of asset, by reference to
transactions in similar assets, is assessed to be Rs. 65,000. Find out the entries to be passed?

Method — I
Accumulated depreciation Dr. 55,000

To Asset Cost
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Asset Cost Dr. 20,000
To Revaluation reserve 20,000

The net result is that the asset has a carrying amount of Rs. 65,000 (100,000 — 55,000 +
20,000).

Method —II:

Carrying amount (100,000 — 55,000) =

Fair value (revalued amount)

Surplus

% of surplus (20,000/ 45,000) 44.44%

Entries to be Made:

Asset (1,00,000 x 44.44%) Dr. 44,444

To Accumulated Depreciation (55,000 x 44.44%) 24,444
To Surplus on Revaluation 20,000

Venus Ltd. is a large manufacturing group. It-owns a considerable number of industrial
buildings, such as factories and warehouses, and office buildings in several capital cities. The
industrial buildings are located in industrial zones whereas the office buildings are in central
business districts of the cities. Venus’s Ltd. management want to apply the Ind AS 16
revaluation model to the subsequent measurement of the office buildings but continue to
apply the historical cost model to the industrial buildings. Is this acceptable under Ind AS 16,
Property, Plant and Equipment?

Venus's Ltd. management. can apply the revaluation model to just the office buildings. The
office buildings can be clearly distinguished from the industrial buildings in terms of their
function, their nature and their general location.

Ind AS 16 permits assets to be revalued on a class-by-class basis (Ind AS 16). The different
characteristics of the buildings enable them to be classified as different PPE classes. The
different measurement models can therefore be applied to these classes for subsequent
measurement. All properties within the class of office buildings must therefore be carried at
revalued amount. Separate disclosure of the two classes must be given in accordance with
Ind AS 16.

Anitem of PPE was purchased for Rs. 9,00,000 on 1 April 20X1. It is estimated to have a useful
life of 10 years and is depreciated on a straight line basis. On 1 April 20X3, the asset is revalued
to Rs. 9,60,000. The useful life remains unchanged at ten years.

Show the necessary treatment as per Ind AS 16.

Calculation of Additional Depreciation:

Actual depreciation for 20X3-20X4 based on revalued amount (9,60,000/8) 1,20,000
Depreciation for 20X4-20X5 based on historical cost (9,00,000/10) (90,000)
Additional Depreciation 30,000
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In the profit or loss for 20X3-20X4, a depreciation expense of Rs. 1,20,000 will be charged. A
reserve transfer, which will be shown in the statement of changes in equity, may be
undertaken as follows:

Revaluation surplus Dr. 30,000

To Retained earnings 30,000

The closing balance on the revaluation surplus on 31 March 20X4 will therefore be as follows:

Balance arising on revaluation (9,60,000 — 7,20,000) 2,40,000

Transfer to retained earnings (30,000)
2,10,000

An asset which cost Rs. 10,000 was estimated to have a useful life of 10 years and residual
value Rs. 2000. After two years, useful life was revised to 4 remaining years.

Calculate the depreciation charge.
INR
Year-1 Year-2 Year-3
Cost 10,000 10,000 10,000
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (800) (1,600) (3,200)
Carrying Amount 9,200 8,400 6,800
Charges for year (10,000-2000)/10 (10,000-2000)/10 (8,400-2,000)/4
800 800 1,600

An entity acquired an asset 3 years ago at a cost of Rs. 5 million. The depreciation method
adopted for the asset was. 10 percent reducing balance method.

At the end of Year 3, the entity estimates that the remaining useful life of the asset is 8 years
and determines to adopt straight —line method from that date so as to reflect the revised
estimated pattern of recovery of economic benefits.

Show the necessary treatment in accordance of Ind AS 16.

Change in'Depreciation Method shall be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate
in accordance of Ind AS 8 and hence will have a prospective effect.

Depreciation Charges for year 1 to 11 will be as follows:

Year 1 Rs. 500,000
Year 2 Rs. 450,000
Year 3 Rs. 405,000
Year 4 to Year 11 Rs. 456,000 p.a.

On April 1, 20X1, XYZ Ltd. acquired a machine under the following terms:
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List price of machine 80,00,000
Import duty 5,00,000
Delivery fees 1,00,000
Electrical installation costs 10,00,000
Pre-production testing 4,00,000
Purchase of a five-year maintenance contract with vendor 7,00,000

In addition to the above information XYZ Ltd. was granted a trade discount.of 10% on the
initial list price of the asset and a settlement discount of 5%, if payment for.the machine was
received within one month of purchase. XYZ Ltd. paid for the plant on April 20, 20X1. At what
cost the asset will be recognised?

In accordance with Ind AS 16, all costs required to bring an asset to its‘present location and
condition for its intended use should be capitalised. Therefore, the. initial purchase price of
the asset should be:

Rs.
List price 80,00,000
Less: trade discount (10%) (8,00,000)
72,00,000
Import duty 5,00,000
Delivery fees 1,00,000
Electrical installation costs 10,00,000
Pre-production testing 4,00,000
Total amount to be capitalised at April 1, 20X1 92,00,000

Maintenance contract is a separate contract to get service, therefore, the maintenance
contract cost of Rs. 7,00,000 should be taken as a prepaid expense and charged to the profit
or loss over/a period of 5 years.

In addition the settlement discount received of Rs. 3,60,000 (Rs. 72,00,000 x 5%) is to be
shown as otherincome in the profit or loss.

The term of an operating lease allows a tenant, XYZ Ltd. to tailor the property to meet its
specific needs by building an additional internal wall, but on condition that the tenant returns
the property at the end of the lease in its original state. This will entail dismantling the internal
wall. XYZ Ltd. incurs a cost of Rs. 25,00,000 on building the wall and present value of estimated
cost to dismantle the wall is Rs. 10,00,000. At what value should the leasehold improvements
be capitalised in the books of XYZ Ltd.

The leasehold improvement is not only the cost of building the wall, but also the cost of
restoring the property at the end of the lease. As such both costs i.e., Rs. 35,00,000 are
capitalised when the internal wall is built and will be recognised in profit and loss over the
useful life of the asset (generally the lease term) as a part of depreciation charge).

X Limited started construction on a building for its own use on April 1, 20X0. The following
costs are incurred:

|| Rs]
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Purchase price of land 30,00,000
Stamp duty & legal fee 2,00,000
Architect fee 2,00,000
Site preparation 50,000
Materials 10,00,000
Direct labour cost 4,00,000
General overheads 1,00,000

Other relevant information: Material costing Rs. 1,00,000 had been spoiled and therefore
wasted and a further Rs. 1,50,000 was spent on account of faulty design work. As a result of
these problems, work on the building was stopped for two weeks during November 20X0 and
it is estimated that Rs. 22,000 of the labour cost relate to that period. The building was
completed on January 1, 20X1 and brought in use April 1, 20X1. X Limited had taken aloan of
Rs. 40,00,000 on April 1, 20X0 for construction of the building (which meets the definition of
qualifying asset as per Ind AS 23). The loan carried an interest rate of 8% per annum and is
repayable on April 1, 20X2.

Calculate the cost of the building that will be included.in tangible non-current asset as an
addition?

Only those costs which are directly attributable to bringing the asset into working condition
for its intended use should be included. Administration and general costs cannot be included.
Abnormal cost also should be excluded. The cost of spoilt materials and faulty designs are
abnormal costs. The labour cost incurred during the stoppage is an abnormal cost and should
not to be included. The interest on loan should be capitalised from April 1, 20X0, and
capitalisation of interest on loan must cease when the asset is ready to use i.e., January 1,
20X1.

Amount to be included in.Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) :

Purchase price of land 30,00,000
Stamp duty & legal fee 2,00,000
Architect fee 2,00,000
Site preparation 50,000

Material (10,00,000 — 2,50,000)

7,50,000

Direct labour cost (4,00,000 — 22,000)

3,78,000

General overheads

Nil

Interest!(40,00,000 x 8%) x 9/12

2,40,000

Total to be capitalized 48,18,000

XYZ Ltd. purchased an asset on January 1, 20X0, for Rs. 1,00,000 and the asset had an
estimated useful life of ten years and a residual value of Rs. nil. The company has charged
depreciation using the straight-line method at Rs. 10,000 per annum. On January 1, 20X4, the
management of XYZ Ltd. Reviews the estimated life and decides that the asset will probably
be useful for a further four years and, therefore, the total life is revised to eight years. How
should the asset be accounted for remaining years?

Change in useful economic life of an asset is change in accounting estimate, which is to be
applied prospectively, i.e., the depreciation charge will need to be recalculated. On January
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1, 20X4, when the asset’s net book value is Rs. 60,000. The company should amend the annual
provision for depreciation to charge the unamortised cost (namely, Rs. 60,000) over the
revised remaining life of four years. Consequently, it should charge depreciation for the next
four years at Rs. 15,000 per annum.

On 1 April 20X1, Sun Itd purchased some land for Rs. 10 million (including legal costs of Rs. 1
million) in order to construct a new factory. Construction work commenced on 1 May 20X1.
Sun Itd incurred the following costs in relation with its construction:

- Preparation and levelling of the land — Rs. 3,00,000.
Purchase of materials for the construction — Rs. 6:08 million in total.
Employment costs of the construction workers — Rs. 2,00,000 per month.

Overhead costs incurred directly on the construction of the factory —Rs. 1,00,000 per
month.

Ongoing overhead costs allocated to the construction project using the company’s
normal overhead allocation model — Rs. 50,000 per month.

Income received during the temporary use of the factory premises as a car park during
the construction period — Rs. 50,000.

Costs of relocating employees to work at the new factory — Rs. 300,000.
- Costs of the opening ceremony on 31 January 20X1 — Rs. 150,000.

The factory was completed on 30 November 20X1 and production began on 1 February 20X2.
The overall useful life of the factory building was estimated at 40 years from the date of
completion. However, it is estimated that the roof will need to be replaced 20 years after the
date of completion and that the cost of replacing the roof at current prices would be 30% of
the total cost of the building.

At the end of the 40-year period, Sun Itd has a legally enforceable obligation to demolish the
factory and restore the site to.its original condition. The directors estimate that the cost of
demolition in'40 years’ time (based on prices prevailing at that time) will be Rs. 20 million. An
annual risk adjusted discount rate which is appropriate to this project is 8%. The present value
of Rs. 1 payable in 40 years’ time at an annual discount rate of 8% is 4-6 cents.

The construction.of the factory was partly financed by a loan of Rs. 17-5 million taken out on
1 April 20X1. The loan was at an annual rate of interest of 6%. During the period 1 April 20X1
to. 31 August 20X1 (when the loan proceeds had been fully utilised to finance the
construction), Sun Ltd received investment income of Rs. 100,000 on the temporary
investment of the proceeds.

Required:

Compute the carrying amount of the factory in the Balance Sheet of Sun Ltd at 31 March 20X2.
You should explain your treatment of all the amounts referred to in this part in your answer.
[Nov 2018]

Computation of the cost of the factory
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Description Included in | Explanation
P.P.E.
Rs.’000
Purchase of land 10,000 | Both the purchase of the land and the
associated legal costs are direct costs of
constructing the factory.
Preparation and levelling A direct cost of constructing the factory
Materials A direct cost of constructing the factory
Employment costs of construction A direct cost of constructing the factory
workers for a seven-month period

Direct overhead costs A direct cost of constructing the factory
for a seven-month period

Allocated overhead costs il | Not a direct cost.of construction

Income from use as a car park il | Not essential to the construction so
recognised directly in profit or loss
Relocation costs il | Not a direct cost of construction

Opening ceremony il | Not a direct cost of construction

Finance costs Capitalise the interest cost incurred in an
eight-month period (purchase of land
would trigger off capitalisation)
Investment income on temporary offset against the amount capitalised
investment of the loan proceeds
Demolition cost recognised as a Where an obligation must recognise as
provision part of the initial cost

Total 20,000
Computation of accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable amount 10,000 | All of the net finance cost of 600 (700 —
100) has been allocated to the depreciable
amount. Also acceptable to reduce by
allocating a portion to the non-
depreciable land element principle
Depreciation must be in two parts: 50 | 10,000 x 30% x 1/20 x 4/12

Depreciation of roof component 58 | 10,000 x 70% x 1/40 x 4/12

Depreciation of remainder
Total depreciation 108
Computation of carrying amount 19,892 | 20,000 — 108

Q 17. ABC Ltd. isinstalling a new plant at its production facility. It has incurred these costs:

Cost of the plant (cost per supplier’s invoice plus taxes) Rs.25,00,000
Initial delivery and handling costs Rs.2,00,000
Cost of site preparation Rs.6,00,000
Consultants used for advice on the acquisition of the plant Rs.7,00,000
Interest charges paid to supplier of plant for deferred credit Rs.2,00,000
Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 years Rs.3,00,000
Operating losses before commercial production Rs.4,00,000

Ans:  According to Ind AS 16, these costs can be capitalized:

| 1. | costof the plant | Rs. 25,00,000
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Initial delivery and handling costs Rs. 2,00,000
Cost of site preparation Rs. 6,00,000
Consultants’ fees Rs. 7,00,000
Estimated dismantling costs to be incurred after 7 years Rs. 3,00,000

Rs. 43,00,000

Note: Interest charges paid on “Deferred credit terms” to the supplier of the plant (not a
gualifying asset) of Rs. 2,00,000 and operating losses before commercial production
amounting to Rs. 4,00,000 are not regarded as directly attributable costs and thus cannot be
capitalized. They should be written off to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period they
are incurred.

B Ltd. owns an asset with an original cost of Rs. 2,00,000. On acquisition, management
determined that the useful life was 10 years and the residual.value would be Rs. 20,000. The
asset is now 8 years old, and during this time there have been no revisions to the assessed
residual value.

At the end of year 8, management has reviewed the useful life and residual value and has
determined that the useful life can be extended to 12 years in view of the maintenance
program adopted by the company. As a result, the residual value will reduce to Rs. 10,000.

How would the above changes in estimates be'made by B Ltd.?
The above changes in estimates would be effected in the following manner:

The asset has a carrying amount of Rs. 56,000 at the end of year 8 [Rs. 2,00,000 —Rs. 1,44,000]
i.e. Accumulated Depreciation.

Accumulated depreciation is calculated as

Depreciable amount {Cost less residual value} = Rs. 2,00,000 — Rs. 20,000 = Rs. 1,80,000.
Annual depreciation = Depreciable.amount / Useful life = 1,80,000 / 10 = Rs. 18,000.
Accumulated depreciation = 18,000 x No. of years (8) = Rs. 1,44,000.

Revision of the useful life to 12 years results in a remaining useful life of 4 years (12 —8).
The revised depreciable amount is Rs. 46,000. (56,000 — 10,000)

Thus, depreciation should be charged in future at Rs. 11,500 per annum (Rs. 46,000/4 years).

X Ltd. has a machine which got damaged due to fire as on January 31, 20X1. The carrying
amount of machine was Rs. 1,00,000 on that date. X Ltd. sold the damaged asset as scrap for
Rs. 10,000. X Ltd. has insured the same asset against damage. As on March 31, 20X1, the
compensation proceeds was still in process but the insurance company has confirmed the
claim. Compensation of Rs. 50,000 is receivable from the insurance company. How X Ltd. will
account for the above transaction?

Impairment or losses of items of property, plant and equipment and related claims for or
payments of compensation from third parties are separate economic events and should be
accounted for separately.

X Ltd. should account for the above transaction as given below:
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At the time of sale of scrap machine, X Ltd. should write off the carrying amount of asset from
books of account and provide a loss of Rs. 90,000. (i.e., carrying amount of Rs. 1,00,000 —
realised amount of Rs. 10,000)

As on March 31, 20X1, X Ltd. should recognise income of Rs. 50,000 against the compensation
receivable in its profit or loss.

An entity has a nuclear power plant and a related decommissioning liability. The nuclear
power plant started operating on April 1, 2017. The plant has a useful life of 40 years. Its initial
cost was Rs. 1,20,000 which included an amount for decommissioning costs of Rs. 10,000,
which represented Rs. 70,400 in estimated cash flows payable in 40 years discounted at a risk-
adjusted rate of 5 per cent. The entity’s financial year ends on March 31. On March, value of
the decommissioning liability has decreased by Rs. 8,000. The discount rate has not yet
changed.

How the entity will account for the above changes in decommissioning liability if it adopts
cost model?

On March 31, 2027, the plant is 10 years old. Accumulated depreciation is Rs. 30,000 (Rs.
120,000 x 10/years). Because of the unwinding of discount(5 per cent) over the 10 years, the
decommissioning liability has increased from Rs. 10,000 te Rs. 16,300.

On March 31, 2027, the discount rate has not changed. However, the entity estimates that,
as a result of technological advances, the net present value of the decommissioning liability
has decreased by Rs. 8,000. Accordingly, the entity.adjusts the decommissioning liability from
Rs. 16,300 to Rs. 8,300. On this date; the entity makes the following journal entry to reflect
the change:

Rs. Rs.
Decommissioning liability Dr. 8,000
To Cost of asset 8,000

Following this adjustment, the carrying amount of the asset is Rs. 82,000 (Rs. 1,20,000 — Rs.
8,000 — Rs. 30,000), which will be depreciated over the remaining 30 years of the asset’s life
giving a depreciation expense for the next year of Rs. 2,733 (Rs. 82,000 + 30). The next year’s
finance cost for the unwinding of the discount will be Rs. 415 (Rs. 8,300 x 5 per cent).

If the change in the liability had resulted from a change in the discount rate, instead of a
change in‘the estimated cash flows, the accounting for the change would have been the same
but the next year’s finance cost would have reflected the new discount rate.

An entity has a nuclear power plant and a related decommissioning liability. The nuclear
power plant started operating on April 1, 20X1. The plant has a useful life of 40 years. Its initial
cost was Rs. 1,20,000.; This included an amount for decommissioning costs of Rs. 10,000,
which represented Rs. 70,400 in estimated cash flows payable in 40 years discounted at a risk-
adjusted rate of 5 per cent. The entity’s financial year ends on March 31. Assume that a
market-based discounted cash flow valuation of Rs. 1,15,000 is obtained at March 31, 20X4.
Itincludes an allowance of Rs. 11,600 for decommissioning costs, which represents no change
to the original estimate, after the unwinding of three years’ discount. On March 31, 20X5, the
entity estimates that, as a result of technological advances, the present value of the
decommissioning liability has decreased by Rs. 5,000. The entity decides that a full valuation
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of the asset is needed at March 31, 20X5, in order to ensure that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from fair value. The asset is now valued at Rs. 1,07,000, which is net of
an allowance for the reduced decommissioning obligation.

How the entity will account for the above changes in decommissioning liability if it adopts
revaluation model? [MTP May 2019]

At March 31, 20X4: Rs.

Asset at valuation (1) 1,26,600
Accumulated depreciation Nil
Decommissioning liability (11,600)
Net assets 1,15,000
Retained earnings (2) (10,600)
Revaluation surplus (3) 15,600
Notes:

(1) Valuation obtained of Rs. 1,15,000 plus decommissioning costs of Rs. 11,600, allowed
for in the valuation but recognised as a.separate liability = Rs. 1,26,600.

(2) Three years’ depreciation on original cost Rs. 1,20,000 x 3/40 = Rs. 9,000 plus
cumulative discount on Rs. 10,000 at 5 per cent compound = Rs. 1,600; total Rs.
10,600.

(3) Revalued amount Rs. 1,26,600 less previous net book value of Rs. 1,11,000 (cost Rs.
120,000 less accumulated depreciation Rs. 9,000).

The depreciation expense for 20X4-20X5 is therefore Rs. 3,420 (Rs. 1,26,600 x 1/37) and the
discount expense. for20X5 is Rs.. 600. On March 31, 20X5, the decommissioning liability
(before any adjustment) is Rs. 12,200. However, as per estimate of the entity, the present
value of the decommissioning liability has decreased by Rs. 5,000. Accordingly, the entity
adjusts the decommissioning liability from Rs. 12,200 to Rs. 7,200.

The whole of this adjustment is taken to revaluation surplus, because it does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been recognised had the asset been carried under the cost
model. If it‘thad done, the excess would have been taken to profit or loss. The entity makes
the following journal entry to reflect the change:

Rs. Rs.
Decommissioning liability Dr. 5,000
To Revaluation surplus 5,000

As at March 31, 20X5, the entity revalued its asset at Rs. 1,07,000, which is net of an allowance
of Rs. 7,200 for the reduced decommissioning obligation that should be recognised as a
separate liability. The valuation of the asset for financial reporting purposes, before deducting
this allowance, is therefore Rs. 1,14,200. The following additional journal entry is needed:

Notes:
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Rs.
Accumulated depreciation (1)
To Asset at valuation 3,420
Revaluation surplus (2)
To Asset at valuation (3) 8,980
Note:

(1) Eliminating accumulated depreciation of Rs. 3,420 in accordance with the entity’s
accounting policy.

(2) The debit is to revaluation surplus because the deficit arising on the revaluation does
not exceed the credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus inrespect of the asset.

(3) Previous valuation (before allowance for decommissioning costs) Rs. 1,26,600, less
cumulative depreciation Rs. 3,420, less new valuation (before allowance for
decommissioning costs) Rs. 1,14,200.

Following this valuation, the amounts included in the balance sheet are:

Asset at valuation 1,14,200
Accumulated depreciation Nil
Decommissioning liability (7,200)
Net assets 1,07,000
Retained earnings (1) (14,620)
Revaluation surplus (2) 11,620
Notes:

(1) Rs. 10,600 at March 31, 20X4, plus depreciation expense of Rs. 3,420 and discount
expense of Rs. 600= Rs. 14,620.

(2) Rs. 15,600 at.March 31, 20X4, plus Rs. 5,000 arising on the decrease in the liability,
less'Rs. 8,980 deficit on revaluation = Rs. 11,620.

A Ltd. has'amounted to Rs. 55,000. The fair value of the asset, by reference to transactions in
similar assets, is assessed to be Rs. 65,000. an item of plant with an initial cost of Rs. 1,00,000.
At the date of revaluation, accumulated depreciation

Pass Journal Entries with regard to Revaluation?
The entries to be passed would be:

Rs.
Accumulated depreciation Dr. 55,000
To Asset A/c

(Being elimination of accumulated depreciation against the cost of the asset)
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Asset A/c Dr 20,000
To Revaluation Surplus 20,000
(Being increase of net asset value to Fair value)

Note: The net result is that the asset has a carrying amount of Rs. 65,000 [1,00,000 — 55,000
+20,000.]

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q23

A Ltd. purchased some Property, Plant and Equipment on 1st April, 20X1, and estimated their
useful lives for the purpose of financial statements prepared on the basis of Ind AS: Following
were the original cost, and useful life of the various components of property, plant, and
equipment assessed on 1st April, 20X1:

Property, Plant and Equipment Original Cost Estimated useful life

Buildings Rs. 15,000,000 15 years

Plant and machinery Rs. 10,000,000 10 years

Furniture and fixtures Rs.:3,500,000 7 years

A Ltd. uses the straight-line method of depreciation. On 1st April, 20X4, the entity reviewed
the following useful lives of the property, plant,and equipment through an external valuation
expert:

Buildings 10 years

Plant and machinery 7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

There were no salvagevaluesfor thethree components of the property, plant, and equipment
either initially or at the time the useful lives were revised.

Compute the impact/of revaluation of useful life on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ending/31st March, 20X4. [RTP May 2018]

The annual depreciation charges prior to the change in useful life were

Buildings Rs. 1,50,00,000/15 = Rs. 10,00,000

Plant and.machinery Rs. 1,00,00,000/10 = Rs. 10,00,000

Furniture and fixtures Rs. 35,00,000/7 = Rs. 5,00,000

Total = Rs. 25,00,000 (A)

The revised annual depreciation for the year ending 31st March, 20X4, would be

Buildings [Rs.1,50,00,000 — (Rs. 10,00,000 x 3)] / 10 Rs. 12,00,000

Plant and machinery [Rs. 1,00,00,000 — (Rs. 10,00,000 x 3)]/ 7 Rs. 10,00,000

Furniture and fixtures [Rs. 35,00,000 — (Rs. 5,00,000 x 3)] / 5 Rs. 4,00,000

Total Rs. 26,00,000 (B)

The impact on Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ending 31st March, 20X4
=Rs. 26,00,000 — Rs. 25,00,000 = Rs. 1,00,000

This is a change in accounting estimate which is adjusted prospectively in the period in which
the estimate is amended and, if relevant, to future periods if they are also affected.
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Accordingly, from 20X4-20X5 onward, excess of Rs. 1,00,000 will be charged in the Statement
of Profit and Loss every year till the time there is any further revision.

On 1st October, 2017, A Ltd. completed the construction of a power generating facility. The
total construction cost was Rs. 2,00,00,000. The facility was capable of being used from 1st
October, 2017 but A Ltd. did not bring the facility into use until 1st January, 2018. The
estimated useful life of the facility at 1st October, 2017 was 40 years. Under legal regulations
in the jurisdiction in which A Ltd. operates, there are no requirements to restore the land on
which power generating facilities stand to its original state at the end of the useful life of the
facility. However, A Ltd. has a reputation for conducting its business in an environmentally
friendly way and has previously chosen to restore similar land even.in the/absence of such
legal requirements. The directors of A Ltd. estimated that the cost of restoring the land in 40
years’ time (based on prices prevailing at that time) would be Rs. 1,00,00,000. A relevant
annual discount rate to use in any discounting calculations is 5%. When the annual discount
rate is 5%, the present value of Rs. 1 receivable in 40 years’ timeis approximately 0.142.

Analyse and present how the above events would be reported in the financial statements of
A Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2018 as per Ind AS. [RTP Nov 2018]

All figures are Rs. in “000.

The power generating facility should be depreciated from the date it is ready for use, rather
than when it would actually start being used. In this:.case, then, the facility should be
depreciated from 1st October, 2017.

Although A Ltd. has no legal obligation to restore the piece of land, it does have a constructive
obligation, based on its past practice and policies.

The amount of the obligation'will be 1,420, being the present value of the anticipated future
restoration expenditure (10,000 x 0.142).

This will be recognised as a provision under non-current liabilities in the Balance Sheet of A
Ltd. at 31st March, 2018.

As time passes the discounted amount unwinds. The unwinding of the discount for the year
ended 31st March, 2018 will be 35.5 (1,420 x 5% x 6/12).

The unwinding of the discount will be shown as a finance cost in the statement of profit or
loss and the closing provision will be 1,455.50 (1,420 + 35.5).

The initialamount of the provision is included in the carrying amount of the non-current asset,
which becomes 21,420 (20,000 + 1,420).

The depreciation charge in profit or loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018 is 267.75
(21,420 x 1/40 x 6/12).

The closing balance included in non-current assets will be 21,152.25 (21,420 — 267.75).

ABC Ltd is setting up a new refinery outside the city limits. In order to facilitate the
construction of the refinery and its operations, ABC Ltd. is required to incur expenditure on
the construction/development of railway siding, road and bridge. Though ABC Ltd. incurs (or
contributes to) the expenditure on the construction/development, it will not have ownership
rights on these items and they are also available for use to other entities and public at large.
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Whether ABC Ltd. can capitalise expenditure incurred on these items as property, plant and
equipment (PPE)?

If yes, how should these items be depreciated and presented in the financial statements of
ABC Ltd. as per Ind AS? [RTP Nov 2018]

Paragraph 7 of Ind AS 16 states that the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall
be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and

(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Further, paragraph 9 provides that the standard does not prescribe the unit of measure for
recognition, i.e., what constitutes an item of property, plant and equipment. Thus, judgement
is required in applying the recognition criteria to an entity’s specific circumstances.

Paragraph 16, inter alia, states that the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprise any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the mannerintended by management.

In the given case, railway siding, road and bridge are required to facilitate the construction of
the refinery and for its operations. Expenditure on these items is required to be incurred in
order to get future economic benefits from the project as a whole which can be considered
as the unit of measure for the purpose.of capitalisation of the said expenditure even though
the company cannot restrict the access of others for using the assets individually. It is
apparent that the aforesaid expenditure is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it.to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

In view of this, even though ABC Ltd. may not be able to recognize expenditure incurred on
these assets as.an individual item of property, plant and equipment in many cases (where it
cannot restrict others from using the asset), expenditure incurred may be capitalised as a part
of overall cost of the project. From this, it can be concluded that, in the extant case the
expenditure incurred on these assets, i.e., railway siding, road and bridge, should be
considered as the cost-of constructing the refinery and accordingly, expenditure incurred on
these items should be allocated and capitalised as part of the items of property, plant and
equipmentof the refinery.

Depreciation

As per-paragraph 43 and 47 of Ind AS 16, if these assets have a useful life which is different
from the useful life of the item of property, plant and equipment to which they relate, it
should be depreciated separately. However, if these assets have a useful life and the
depreciation method that are the same as the useful life and the depreciation method of the
item of property, plant and equipment to which they relate, these assets may be grouped in
determining the depreciation charge. Nevertheless, if it has been included in the cost of
property, plant and equipment as a directly attributable cost, it will be depreciated over the
useful lives of the said property, plant and equipment.

The useful lives of these assets should not exceed that of the asset to which it relates.
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Presentation
These assets should be presented within the class of asset to which they relate.

Company X performed a revaluation of all of its plant and machinery at the beginning of 2018-
2019. The following information relates to one of the machinery:

Amount (‘000)
Gross carrying amount Rs. 200
Accumulated depreciation (straight-line method) Rs. 80
Net carrying amount Rs. 120
Fair value Rs. 150

The useful life of the machineryis 10 years and the company uses Straight line method of
depreciation. The revaluation was performed at the end of the 4th year.

How should the Company account for revaluation of plant ‘and machinery and depreciation
subsequent to revaluation? [RTP May 2019]

According to paragraph 35 of Ind AS 16, when an item of property, plant and equipment
is revalued, the carrying amount of that asset.is.adjusted to the revalued amount. At the
date of the revaluation, the asset is treated in'one of the following ways:

The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of
the carrying amount of the asset. For.example, the gross carrying amount may be restated by
reference to observable market data or it may be restated proportionately to the change
in the carrying amount. The accumulated. depreciation at the date of the revaluation is
adjusted to equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount of the asset after'taking into account accumulated impairment losses; or

The accumulated depreciationis eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amount of the adjustment of accumulated depreciation forms part of the increase or
decrease in carrying amount that is accounted for in accordance with the paragraphs 39
and40 of Ind AS 16.

If the Company opts for the treatment as per option (a), then the revised carrying amount
of the machinery. will be:

Gross carrying amount Rs. 250 [(200/120) x 150]
Net carrying amount Rs.150

Accumulated depreciation Rs. 100 (Rs. 250 —Rs. 150)
Journal entry

Plant and Machinery A/c (Gross Block)

To Accumulated Depreciation

To Revaluation Reserve
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If the balance of accumulated depreciation is eliminated as per option (b), then the revised
carrying amount of the machinery will be as follows:

Gross carrying amount is restated to Rs.150 to reflect the fair value and Accumulated
depreciation is set at zero.

Journal entry

Accumulated Depreciation

To Plant and Machinery A/c (Gross Block)
Plant and Machinery A/c (Gross Block)
To Revaluation Reserve

Depreciation

Option (a) —Since the Gross Block has been restated, the depreciation charge will be Rs. 25
per annum (Rs. 250 / 10 years).

Option (b)— Since the Revalued amount is the revised. Gross Block, the useful life to be
considered is the remaining useful life of the asset'which results in the same depreciation
charge of Rs. 25 per annum as per Option ‘A (Rs. 150 /6 years).
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Intangible Assets (IND AS 38)

QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

Company XYZ Itd has provided training to its staff on various new topics like GST, Ind AS etc
to ensure the compliance as per the required law. Can the company recognise such cost of
staff training as intangible asset?

It is clear that the company will obtain the economic benefits from the work performed by
the staff as it increases their efficiency. But it does not have control over them because staff
could choose to resign the company at any time.

Hence the company lacks the ability to restrict the access of others to those benefits.
Therefore, the staff training cost does not meet the definition of an'intangible asset.

Pluto Ltd. intends to open a new retail store in a new location in the next few weeks. Pluto
Ltd has spent a substantial sum on a series of television advertisements to promote this new
store. The Company has paid an amount of Rs. 800,000 for advertisements before 31 March
20X1. Rs. 700,000 of this sum relates to advertisements shown before 31 March 20X1 and Rs.
100,000 to advertisements shown in April 20X1. Since 31 March 20X1, The Company has paid
for further advertisements costing Rs. 400,000.

Pluto Ltd is of view that such costs can be carried forward as intangible assets. Since market
research indicates that this new store is likely to be highly successful. Please explain and justify
the treatment of the above costs in.the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
20X1.

Under Ind AS 38 — Intangible Assets —intangible assets can only be recognised if they are
identifiable and have a cost which can be reliably measured. These criteria are very difficult
to satisfy for internally developed intangibles. For these reasons, Ind AS 38 specifically
prohibits recognising advertising expenditure as an intangible asset. The issue of how
successful the store is likely to be does not affect this prohibition. Therefore such costs should
be recognised as expenses. However, the costs would be recognised on an accruals basis.
Therefore, of the advertisements paid for before 31 March 20X1, Rs.700,000 would be
recognised as an expense and Rs. 100,000 as a pre-payment in the year ended 31 March 20X1.
The Rs. 400,000 cost of advertisements paid for since 31 March 20X1 would be charged as
expenses in the year ended 31 March 20X2.

Mercury Ltd is preparing its accounts for the year ended 31 March 20X2 and is unsure about
how.to treat the following items.

1. The company completed a grand marketing and advertising campaign costing Rs. 4.8
Lakh. The finance director had authorised this campaign on the basis that it would
create Rs. 8 lakh of additional profits over the next three years.

A new product was developed during the year. The expenditure totalled Rs. 3 lakh of
which Rs. 1.5 lakh was incurred prior to 30 September 20X1, the date on which it
became clear that the product was technically viable. The new product will be
launched in the next four months and its recoverable amount is estimated at Rs. 1.4
lakh.
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Staff participated in a training programme which cost the company Rs. 5 lakh. The
training organisation had made a presentation to the directors of the company
outlining that incremental profits to the business over the next twelve months would
be Rs. 7 lakh.

What amounts should appear as intangible assets in accordance with Ind AS 38 in Mercury’s
balance sheet as on 31 March 20X2?

The treatment in Mercury’s financials as at 31 March 20X2 will be as follows:

1. Marketing and advertising campaign: no intangible asset will be recognised, because it is
not possible to identify future economic benefits that are attributable’only due to this
campaign. All of the expenditure should be expensed in the statement of profit.and loss.

New product: development expenditure appearing in the balance sheet will be valued at
Rs. 1.5 lakh. The expenditure prior to the date on which the product becomes technically
feasible is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Training programme: no asset will be recognised, because there is no control of the
company over the staff and when staff leaves the benefits of the training, whatever they
may be, also departs.

Venus India Private Ltd acquired a software for.its internal_use costing Rs. 10,00,000. The
amount payable for the software was Rs. 600,000.immediately and Rs. 400,000 in one year
time. The other expenditure incurred were:-

Purchase tax : Rs. 1,00,000

Entry Tax : 10% ( recoverable later from tax department)
Legal fees: Rs. 87,000

Consultancy fees for implementation : Rs. 1,20,000

cost of capital of the company is. 10%.

Calculate the cost of the software on initial recognition using the principles of Ind AS 38
Intangible Assets.

Particulars Amount
Cash paid 600,000
Deferred consideration (Rs. 400,000/1.1) 3,63,636
Purchase Tax 1,00,000
Entry tax (not to be considered as it is a refundable tax) -
Legal fees 87,000
Consultancy fees for implementation 1,20,000
Total Cost to be capitalised 12,70,636

Sun Ltd acquired a software from Earth Ltd. in exchange for a telecommunication license. The
telecommunication license is carried at Rs. 5,00,000 in the books of Sun Ltd. The Software is
carried at Rs. 10,000 in the books of the Earth Ltd which is not the fair value.
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Advise journal entries in the following situations in the books of Sun Ltd and Earth Ltd:-

1) Fair value of software is Rs. 5,20,000 and fair value of telecommunication license is Rs.
5,00,000.

2) Fair Value of Software is not measureable. However similar Telecommunication
license is transacted by another company at Rs. 4,90,000.

3) Neither Fair Value of Software nor Telecommunication license could be reliably
measured.

INR in ‘000

Situation Sun Ltd. Earth Ltd.

1 Dr. Software 520 Dr. Telecommunication license 500
Cr. Telecommunication license 500 Cr. Software 10

Cr. Profit on Exchange 20 Cr. Profit on Exchange 490

Dr. Software 490 Dr. Telecommunication license 490
Dr. Loss on Exchange 10 Cr. Software 10
Cr. Telecommunication license 500 Cr. Profit on Exchange 480

Note: The company may first recognise
Impairment loss and then pass an entry.
The effect is the same as impairment loss
will also be charged to Income Statement.
Dr. Software 500 Cr. Software 10

Cr. Telecommunication license 500 Dr. Telecommunication license 10

Expenditure on a new production process.in 20X1-20X2: INR
1st April to 31st December 2,700

1st January to 31st March 900
3,600

The production process met the intangible asset recognition criteria for development on 1st
January 20X2. The amount estimated to be recoverable from the process is Rs. 1,000.

What is.the carrying.amount of the intangible asset at 31st March 20X2 and the charge to
profit or loss for 20X1-20X27?

Expenditure incurred in FY 20X2-20X3 is Rs. 6,000.

At 31st March 20X3, the amount estimated to be recoverable from the process (including
future cash outflows to complete the process before it is available for use) is Rs. 5,000.

What is the carrying amount of the intangible asset at 31st March 20X3 and the charge to
profit or loss for 20X2-X3?

Expenditure to be transfer to profit or loss in 20X1-20X2 INR
Total Expenditure 3,600
Less. Expenditure during Development phase 900

Expenditure to be transfer to profit or loss 2,700
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1) Carrying Amount of Intangible Asset on 31st March 20X2
Expenditure during Development Phase will be capitalised
(Recoverable amount is higher being Rs. 1,000, hence no impairment)
Expenditure to be charged to profit or loss in 20X2-20X3 INR
Opening balance of Intangible Asset 900
Add. Further expenditure during development phase 6,000
Expenditure for development phase 6,900
Recoverable Amount 5,000
Amount charged to profit or loss (Impairment Loss) 1,900
Carrying Amount of Intangible Asset on 31st March 20X3
Value of Intangible Asset will be recoverable amount i.e. Rs. 5,000

Saturn Ltd. acquired an intangible asset on 31st March?20X1 for Rs. 1,00,000. The asset was
revalued at Rs. 1,20,000 on 31st March 20X2and Rs:85,000 on 31st March 20X3.

Jupiter Ltd. acquired an intangible asset on 31st-March 20X1 for Rs. 1,00,000. The asset was
revalued at Rs. 85,000 on 31st March 20X2 and at Rs. 1,05,000 on 31st March 20X3.

Assuming that the year-end for both companies is 31st March, and that they both use the
revaluation model, show how each of these transactions should be dealt with in the financial
statements.

Saturn Ltd.

Rs. 20,000 revaluation increase on 31st March 20X2 should be credited to the revaluation
reserve and recognised in other. comprehensive income. Rs. 20,000 of the revaluation
decrease on 31st March 20X3 should be debited to revaluation reserve and remaining Rs.
15,000 should be recognised as an expense.

Jupiter Ltd.

Rs. 15,000 revaluation decrease on 31st March 20X2 should be recognised as an expense in
the Statement of Profit and loss. Rs. 15,000 out of the Rs. 20,000 increase on 31st March 20X3
should be'recognised as income. The remaining Rs. 5,000 should be credited to revaluation
reserve and recognised in other comprehensive income.

X Limited engaged in the business of manufacturing fertilisers entered into a technical
collabaration agreement with a foreign company Y Limited. As a result, Y Limited would
provide the technical know-how enabling X Limited to manufacture fertiliser in a more
efficient way. X Limited paid Rs. 10,00,00,000 for the use of know-how for a period of 5 years.
X Limited estimates the production of fertiliser as follows:

Year (in metric tons)
1
2
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3 1,00,000
4 1,20,000
5 1,10,000

At the end of the 1st year, it achieved its targeted production. At the end of 2nd year, 65,000
metric tons of fertiliser was being manufactured, and X Limited considered to revise the
estimates for the next 3 years. The revised figures are 85,000, 1,05,000 and 1,15,000 metric
tons for year 3, 4 & 5 respectively.

How will X Limited amortise the technical know-how fees as per Ind AS 38?

Based on the above data, it may be suitable for X Ltd. to use unit of production method for
amortisation of technical know-how.

The total estimated unit to be produced 4,50,00 MT. The technical know-how will be
amortised on the basis of the ratio of yearly production to total production.

The first year charge should be a proportion of 50,000/4,50,000 on Rs. 10,00,00,000
=Rs. 1,11,11,111.

At the end of 2nd year, as per revised estimate the total number of units to be produced are
4,20,000 MT.

The amortisation for second year will be 65,000/4,20,000, and so on for remaining years
unless the estimates are again revised:

The difference in amortisation for first year .due to revision in estimates would also be
provided in 2nd year. The actual amortisation provided for the 1st yearisRs. 1,11,11,111. The
amortisation that would have provided. on revised estimates is 50,000/4,20,000 on Rs.
10,00,00,000 = Rs. 1,19,04,762.

So, difference of Rs. 7,93,651 (Rs. 1,19,04,762 — Rs. 1,11,11,111) would also be provided in
2nd year.

X Ltd. purchased a patent right on April 1, 20X1, for Rs. 3,00,000; which has a legal life of 15
years. However, due to the competitive nature of the product, the management estimates a
useful life.of only 5 years. Straight-line amortisation is determined by the management to be
the best method. As at April 1, 20X2, management is uncertain that the process can actually
be made economically feasible, and decides to write down the patent to an estimated market
value of Rs. 1,50,000 and decides to amortise over 2 years. As at April 1, 20X3, having
perfected the related production process, the asset is now appraised at a value of Rs.
3,00,000. Furthermore, the estimated useful life is now believed to be 4 more years.
Determine the value of intangible asset at the end of each financial year?

Value as on March 31, 20X2
Original cost Rs. 3,00,000
Less: amortisation (Rs. 60,000)
Net Value Rs. 2,40,000
Value as on March 31, 20X1
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On April 1, 20X2, the impairment is recorded by writing down the asset to the estimated value
of Rs. 1,50,000, which necessitates a Rs. 90,000 charge to profit & loss (carrying value, Rs.
2,40,000 less fair value Rs. 1,50,000).

Amortisation provided for the financial year 20X2-20X3 is Rs. 75,000 (Rs. 1,50,000/2) Net
value is = Rs. 1,50,000 — Rs. 75,000 = Rs. 75,000.

Value as on March 31, 20X4

As of April 1, 20X3, the carrying value of the patent is Rs. 75,000. Revalued amount of patent
is Rs. 3,00,000.

Out of total revaluation gain of Rs. 2,25,000, Rs. 90,000 will be charged to profit & loss and
balance amount of Rs. 1,35,000 — (Rs. 2,25,000 — Rs. 90,000) will be credited to revaluation
reserve.

X Ltd. is engaged in the business of publishing Journals. They acquired 50% stake in Y Ltd., a
company in the same industry. X Ltd. paid purchase consideration of Rs. 10,00,00,000 and fair
value of net asset acquired is Rs. 8,50,00,000. The above purchase consideration includes:

(a) Rs. 30,00,000 for obtaining the skilled staff of Y Ltd.

(b) Rs. 50,00,000 by way of payment towards ‘Non-compete Fee’ so as to restrict Y Ltd.
to compete in the same line of business fornext 5 years.

How should the above transactions be accounted for by X Ltd?

X Ltd. should recognise an intangibleasset in respect of the consideration paid towards ‘Non-
Compete Fee’.

However, amount paid for obtaining skilled staff amounting to Rs. 30,00,000 does not meet
the definition of intangible asset since X Ltd. has not established any right over the resource
and should betexpensed. The entity has insufficient control over the expected future
economic benefits arising from.a team of skilled staff.

Therefore, Rs. 50,00,000 will be separately recognised as an intangible asset, whereas amount
paid for obtaining skilled staff does not meet the recognition criteria. However, since it is
acquired in a business combination, it forms part of the goodwill recognised at the acquisition
date.

The value of goodwill is Rs. 1,00,00,000 (Rs. 1,50,00,000 — Rs. 50,00,000).

X Ltd. purchased a franchise from a restaurant chain at a cost of Rs. 1,00,00,000 and the
franchise has 10 years life. In addition, the franchise agreement mentions that the franchisee
would also pay the franchisor royalty as a percentage of sales made. Can the franchise rights
be treated as an intangible asset under Ind AS 387

The franchise rights meets the identification criterion in the definition of an intangible asset
since it arises from the contractual rights. It is acquired separately and its cost can be
measured reliably. In addition X Ltd. will have future economic benefits and control over them
from the franchise rights.

X Ltd. should recognise the franchise right as intangible asset and amortise it over 10 years.
Royalty as a percentage of sales paid to the franchisor would be a charge to the profit and
loss in the books of the X Ltd.
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Q12.

An entity regularly places advertisements in newspapers advertising its products and includes
a reply slip that informs individuals replying to the advertisement that the entity may pass on
the individual’s details to other sellers of similar products, unless the individual ticks a box in
the advertisement.

Over a period of time the entity has assembled a list of customers’ names and addresses. The
list is provided to other entities for a fee. The entity would like to recognise an asset in respect
of the expected future economic benefits to be derived from the list. Can the customer list be
treated as an intangible asset under Ind AS 387

In this situation, the entity has no legal rights to the customer relationship; but exchange
transactions have taken place that evidence separability of the asset and the control that the
entity is able to exercise over the asset. Therefore, the list is an intangible asset. However, the
entity may not recognise the asset because the cost of generating the customer list internally
cannot be distinguished from the cost of developing the business as'a whole.

A software company X Ltd. is developing new software for the telecom industry. It employs
100 employs engineers trained in that particular discipline who are engaged in the
development of the software. X Ltd. feels that it has‘an _excellent HR policy and does not
expect any of its employees to leave in the near future. It wants to recognise these set of
engineers as a human resources asset in the form of an.intangible asset. What would be your
advice to X Ltd?

Although, without doubt the skill sets of the employees make them extremely valuable to the
company, however it does not have control over them. Merely having good HR policies would
not make them eligible to be recognised as an intangible asset.

X Ltd. has acquired a telecom license from Government to operate mobile telephony in two
states of India. Can the cost.of acquisition be capitalised as an intangible asset under Ind AS
38?

Cost of acquisition of the telecom license can be capitalised as an intangible asset under the
head Licenses, as it will lead to future economic benefits for X Ltd.

X Ltd. purchased a standardised finance software at a list price of Rs. 30,00,000 and paid Rs.
50,000 towards purchase tax which is non refundable. In addition to this, the entity was
granted a trade discount of 5% on the initial list price. X Ltd. incurred cost of Rs. 7,00,000
towards. customisation of the software for its intended use. X Ltd. purchased a 5 year
maintenance contract with the vendor company of Rs. 2,00,000. At what cost the intangible
asset will be recognised?

In accordance with Ind AS 38, the cost of a separately acquired intangible asset is its purchases
price and non refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and
any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use.

Therefore, the initial cost of the asset should be:

Amount (Rs.)

List price 30,00,000

Less: trade discount (5%) (1,50,000)

28,50,000

Non refundable purchase tax 50,000
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Customisation cost 7,00,000
Total cost 36,00,000

The maintenance contract of Rs. 2,00,000 is an expense and therefore should be taken as a
prepaid expense and charged to profit and loss over a period of 5 years

X Limited in a business combination, purchased the net assets of Y Limited for Rs. 4,00,000 on
March 31, 20X1. The assets and liabilities position of Y Limited just before the acquisition is
as follows:

Assets Cost (in Rs.)
Property, Plant & Equipment 1,00,000
Intangible asset 1 20,000
Intangible asset 2 50,000
Cash & Bank 1,30,000
Liabilities

Trade payable 50,000

The fair market value of the PPE, intangible asset'l andiintangible asset 2 is available and they
are Rs. 1,50,000, Rs. 30,000 and Rs. 70,000 respectively.

How would X Limited account for the net assets acquired from Y Limited?

X Limited will account for the assets acquired from Y Limited in following manner:

Assets Amount (Rs.)
Property, plant and equipment 1,50,000
Goodwill 70,000
Intangible asset 1 30,000
Intangible asset 2 70,000
Cash & Bank 1,30,000
Liabilities
Trade payable 50,000

Note 1- Goodwill is the difference between fair value of net assets acquired and purchase
consideration paid when is calculated as follow:

Goodwill = Rs. 4,00,000 - Rs. (1,50,000 + 70,000 + 30,000 + 1,30,000 — 50,000)= Rs. 70,000.

X Ltd. acquired Y Ltd. on April 30, 20X1. The purchase consideration is Rs. 50,00,000. The fair
value of the tangible assets is Rs. 45,00,000. The company estimates the fair value of “in-
process research projects” at Rs. 10,00,000. No other Intangible asset is acquired by X Ltd. in
the transaction. Further, cost incurred by X Ltd. in relation to that research project is as
follows:

(a) Rs. 5,00,000 — as research expenses
(b) Rs. 2,00,000 — to establish technological feasibility

(c) Rs. 7,00,000 - for further development cost after technological feasibility is established.
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At what amount the intangible asset should be measured under Ind AS 38?

X Ltd. should initially recognise the acquired “in house research project’”” at its fair value i.e.,
Rs. 10,00,000. Research cost of Rs. 5,00,000 and cost of Rs. 2,00,000 for establishing technical
feasibility should be charged to profit & loss. Costs incurred from the point of technological
feasibility/asset recognition criteria until the time when development costs are incurred are
capitalised.

So the intangible asset should be recognised at Rs. 17,00,000 (Rs. 10,00,000 + Rs. 7,00,000).

X Ltd. acquired a patent right of manufacturing drug from Y Ltd. In exchange X Ltd. gives its
intellectual property right to Y Ltd. Current market value of the patent/and. intellectual
property rights are Rs. 20,00,000 and Rs. 18,00,000 respectively. At what value patent right
should be initially recognised in the books of X Ltd. in following two situations?

(a) X Ltd. did not pay any cash to Y Ltd.
(b) X Ltd. pays Rs. 2,00,000 to Y Ltd.

If an entity is able to determine reliably the fair value of either the asset received or the asset
given up, then the fair value of the asset given up is used tomeasure cost unless the fair value
of the asset received is more clearly evident.

The transaction at the fair value of the asset received adjusted for any cash received or paid.
Therefore in case (a) patent is measured at Rs. 18,00,000, in case (b) it is measured at Rs.
20,00,000 (18,00,000 + 2,00,000).

X Garments Ltd. spent Rs. 1,00,00,000 towards promotions for a fashion show by way of
various on-road shows, contests etc.

After that event, it realised:that the brand name of the entity got popular and resultantly,
subsequent sales have shown a significant improvement. It is further expected that this hike
will have an effect over the next 2-3 years.

How the entity should account for the above cost incurred on promoting such show?

Expenditure of Rs. 1,00,00,000 though increased future economic benefits, but it does not
result in creation of an intangible asset.

Such promaotional cost should be expensed off.

An entity is developing a new production process. During 20X1-20X2, expenditure incurred
was Rs. 1,000, of which Rs. 900 was incurred before March 1, 20X2 and Rs. 100 was incurred
between March 1, 20X2 and March 31, 20X2. The entity is able to demonstrate that at March
1, 20X2, the production process met the criteria for recognition as an intangible asset. The
recoverable amount of the know-how embodied in the process (including future cash
outflows to complete the process before it is available for use) is estimated to be Rs. 500.

During 20X2-20X3, expenditure incurred is Rs. 2,000. At the end of 20X3, the recoverable
amount of the know-how embodied in the process (including future cash outflows to
complete the process before it is available for use) is estimated to be Rs. 1,900.

At the end of the financial year 20X2, the production process is recognised as an intangible
asset at a cost of Rs. 100 (expenditure incurred since the date when the recognition criteria
were met, i.e., March 1, 20X2). Rs. 900 expenditure incurred before March 1, 20X2 is
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recognised as an expense because the recognition criteria were not met until March 1, 20X2.
This expenditure does not form part of the cost of the production process recognised in the
balance sheet.

At the end of 20X3, the cost of the production process is Rs. 2,100 (Rs. 100 expenditure
recognised at the end of 20X2 plus Rs. 2,000 expenditure recognised in 20X3). The entity
recognises an impairment loss of Rs. 200 to adjust the carrying amount of the process before
impairment loss (Rs. 2,100) to its recoverable amount (Rs. 1,900). This impairment loss will be
reversed in a subsequent period if the requirements for the reversal of an impairment loss in
Ind AS 36 are met

X Ltd. is engaged is developing computer software. The expenditures incurred by X Ltd. in
pursuance of its development of software is given below:

(a) Paid Rs. 2,00,000 towards salaries of the program designers.

(b) Incurred Rs. 5,00,000 towards other cost of completion of program design.

(c) Incurred Rs. 2,00,000 towards cost of coding and establishing technical feasibility.
(d) Paid Rs. 7,00,000 for other direct cost after establishment of technical feasibility.
(e) Incurred Rs. 2,00,000 towards other testing costs.

(f) Cost of producing product masters for training material is Rs. 3,00,000.

(8) A focus group of other software developers was invited to a conference for the
introduction of this new software. Cost of the conference aggregated to Rs. 70,000.

(h) On March 15, 20X0, the development phase was completed and a cash flow budget
was prepared.

Net profit for the year was estimated to be equal Rs. 40,00,000. How X Ltd. should account
for the above mentioned cost?

Costs incurred in creating computer software, should be charged to research & development
expenses when incurred until technical feasibility/asset recognition criteria have been
established for the product. Here, technical feasibility is established after completion of
detailed program design.

In'this case, Rs. 9,00,000 (salary cost of Rs. 2,00,000, program design cost of Rs. 5,00,000 and
coding and technical feasibility cost of Rs. 2,00,000) would be recorded as expense.

Cost incurred from the point of technical feasibility are capitalised as software costs. But the
conference cost of Rs. 70,000 would be expensed off.

In this situation, direct cost after establishment of technical feasibility of Rs. 7,00,000, testing
cost of Rs. 2,00,000 and cost of producing product masters for training material of Rs.
3,00,000 will be capitalised.

The cost of software capitalised is = Rs. (7,00,000 + 2,00,000 + 3,00,000) = Rs. 12,00,000.

X Ltd. has started developing a new production process in financial year 20X1-20X2. Total
expenditure incurred till September 30, 20X3, was Rs. 1,00,00,000 . The expenditure on the
development of the production process meets the recognition criteria on July 1, 20X1. The
records of X Ltd. show that, out of total Rs. 1,00,00,000, Rs. 70,00,000 were incurred during
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July to September 20X1. X Ltd. publishes its financial results quarterly. How X Ltd. should
account for the development expenditure?

X Ltd. should recognise the intangible asset at Rs. 70,00,000 and Rs. 30,00,000 which was
already recognised as an expenses in first quarter should not be capitalised.

X Ltd. decides to revalue its intangible assets on April 1, 20X1. On the date of revaluation, the
intangible assets stand at a cost of Rs. 1,00,00,000 and accumulated amortisation is Rs.
40,00,000. The intangible assets are revalued at Rs. 1,50,00,000. How should X Ltd. account
for the revalued intangible assets in its books of account?

The intangible assets are revalued to Rs. 1,50,00,000 on an amortised.replacement cost basis,
which is a 150% increase from its original cost. Thereby applying the existing ratio of
accumulated depreciation to the cost the revalued gross amount would be Rs. 2,50,00,000
gross and Rs. 1,00,00,000 on amortisation.

X Pharmaceutical Ltd. seeks your opinion in respect of following accounting transactions:

1. Acquired a 4 year license to manufacture a specialised drug at a cost of Rs. 1,00,00,000
at the start of the year. Production commencedimmediately.

Also purchased another company at the start of year. As part of that acquisition the
company acquired a brand with a FV of Rs. 3,00,00,000 based on sales revenue. The
life of the brand is estimated at 15 years.

Spent Rs. 1,00,00,000 on an_advertising. campaign during the first six months.
Subsequent sales have shown a significant improvement and it is expected this will
continue for 3 years.

It has commenced developing a new drug ‘Drug-A’. The project cost would be Rs.
10,00,00,000. Clinical trial proved successful and such drug is expected to generate
revenue over the next 5 years.

Costjincurred (accumulated) till March 31, 20X1 is Rs. 5,00,00,000.
Balance cost incurred during the financial year 20X1-20X2 is Rs. 5,00,00,000.

It has also. commenced developing another drug ‘Drug B’. It has incurred Rs. 50,00,000
towards research expenses till March 31, 20X2. The technological feasibility has not
yet been established.

How the above transactions will be accounted for in the books of account of X Pharmaceutical
Ltd?

X Pharmaceutical Ltd. is advised as under:

1. It should recognise the drug license as an intangible asset, because it is a separate
external purchase, separately identifiable asset and considered successful in respect
of feasibility and probable future cash inflows.

The drug license should be recorded at Rs. 1,00,00,000.

It should recognise the brand as an intangible asset because it is purchased as part of
acquisition and it is separately identifiable. The brand should be amortised over a
period of 15 years.
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The brand will be recorded at Rs. 3,00,00,000.
The advertisement expenses of Rs. 1,00,00,000 should be expensed off.

The development cost incurred during the financial year 20X1-20X2 should be
capitalised.

Cost of intangible asset (Drug A) as on March 31, 20X2
Opening cost Rs. 5,00,00,000

Development cost Rs. 5,00,00,000

Total cost Rs. 10,00,00,000

Research expenses of Rs. 50,00,000 incurred for developing ‘Drug B’ should be
expensed off since technological feasibility has not yet established.

Q 25: On 31st March 20X1, Earth India Ltd paid Rs. 50,00,000 for a 100% interest in Sun India Ltd.
At that date Sun Ltd’s net assets had a fair value of Rs. 30,00,000. In addition Sun Ltd also held
the following rights:

Trade Mark named “GRAND” — valued at Rs. 180,000 using a discounted cash flow technique.

Sole distribution rights to an electronic product:-Future cash flows from which are estimated
to be Rs. 150,000 per annum for the next 6 years.

10% is considered an appropriate discount rate.
The 6 year, 10% annuity factor is 4.36.

Calculate goodwill and other Intangible assets arising on acquisition.

Particulars Amount Amount
Purchase Consideration (A) 50,00,000
Net Asset acquired 30,00,000
Trade Mark 1,80,000
Distribution Rights (1,50,000 x 4.36) 6,54,000
Total (B) 38,34,000
Goodwill on Acquisition 11,66,000

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q26 A Ltd.intends to open a new retail store in a new location in the next few weeks. It has spent
a substantial sum on a series of television advertisements to promote this new store. It has
paid for advertisements costing Rs. 8,00,000 before 31st March, 2018. Rs. 7,00,000 of this
sum relates to advertisements shown before 31st March, 2018 and Rs. 1,00,000 to
advertisements shown in April, 2018. Since 31st March, 2018, A Ltd. has paid for further
advertisements costing Rs. 4,00,000. The accountant charged all these costs as expenses in
the year to 31 March 2018. However, CFO of A Ltd. does not want to charge Rs.12,00,000
against 2017-2018 profits. He believes that these costs can be carried forward as intangible
assets because the company’s market research indicates that this new store is likely to be
highly successful.
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Examine and justify the treatment of these costs of Rs. 12,00,000 in the financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2018 as per Ind AS. [RTP Nov 2018]

Ind AS 38 specifically prohibits recognising advertising expenditure as an intangible asset.
Irrespective of success probability in future, such expenses have to be recognized in profit or
loss. Therefore, the treatment given by the accountant is correct since such costs should be
recognised as expenses.

However, the costs should be recognised on an accruals basis.

Therefore, of the advertisements paid for before 31st March, 2018, Rs. 7,00,000 would be
recognised as an expense and Rs. 1,00,000 as a pre-payment in. the year ended 31st
March 2018.

Rs. 4,00,000 cost of advertisements paid for since 31st March, 2018 would be charged as
expenses in the year ended 31st March, 2019.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY (IND AS 40)

QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

X Limited owns a building which is used to earn rentals. The building has a carrying amount of
Rs. 50,00,000. X Limited recently replaced interior walls of the building and the cost of new
interior walls is Rs. 5,00,000. The original walls have a carrying amount of Rs. 1,00,000. How
X Limited should account for the above costs?

Under the recognition principle, an entity recognises in the carrying amount of an investment
property the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is
incurred if the recognition criteria are met and the carrying amount of‘those parts that are
replaced is derecognised.

So, X Limited should add the cost of new walls and remove the carrying'amount of old walls.
The new carrying amount of the building = Rs. 50,00,000 + Rs. 5,00,000 — Rs."1,00,000 = Rs.
54,00,000.

X Limited purchased a building for Rs. 30,00,000 in_May.1, 20X1.The purchase price was
funded by a loan. Property transfer taxes and direct legal costsof Rs. 1,00,000 and Rs. 20,000
respectively were incurred in acquiring the building. In20X1-20X2, X Limited redeveloped the
building into retail shops for rent under operating leases to independent third parties.
Expenditures on redevelopment were:

Rs. 2,00,000 planning permission.
Rs. 7,00,000 construction costs (including Rs. 40,000 refundable purchases taxes).

The redevelopment was completed/and the retail shops were ready for rental on September
2, 20X1. What is the costof building at.initial recognition?

The cost of a_purchased investment property comprises its purchase price and any direct
attributable expenditure.

So, the cost of the building = Rs. (30,00,000 +1,00,000 + 20,000 + 2,00,000 + 7,00,000 - 40,000)
=39,80,000.

X Limited purchased a land worth of Rs. 1,00,00,000. It has option either to pay full amount
at the timeof purchases or pay for it over two years for a total cost of Rs. 1,20,00,000. What
should be the cost of the building under both the payments method?

Using either payment method, the cost will be Rs. 1,00,00,00. If the second payment option
is used, Rs. 20,00,000 will be treated as interest expenses over the period of credit i.e., 2
years.

X Limited (as the lessee) has taken a building under finance lease from the owner. It classifies
its interest in the leasehold building as investment property and after initial recognition
measures the property interest at fair value. The fair value is Rs. 50,000. The present value of
the minimum lease payment is Rs. 40,000. At what value, X Limited will recognise its
investment property?
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Ans:

X Limited shall initially recognise the property interest at Rs. 40,000 i.e., lower of fair value of
the property and present value of minimum lease payments. A corresponding lease liability
of Rs. 40,000 will be recognised as follows:

Investment Property A/c Dr. Rs. 40,000
To Finance lease obligation Rs. 40,000.

Moon Ltd has purchased a building on 1st April 20X1 at a cost of Rs. 10 million. The building
was used as a factory by the Moon Ltd and was measured under cost model. The expected
useful life of the building is estimated to be 10 years. Due to decline in demand of the product,
the Company does not need the factory anymore and has rented out the building to a third
party from 1st April 20X5. On this date the fair value of the building is Rs. 8 million. Moon Itd
uses cost model for accounting of its investment property.

(Rs. Millions)
Carrying amount of the building after depreciation of 4 years 6
(10-10/10%*4).
The company has applied cost model under Ind AS 16 till. now.
There is no impairment as the fair value is greater than the carrying amount of building.
Revaluation Surplus credited to Other Comprehensive Income
(not applicable since cost model is used underInd AS:16)
Building initially recognised as Investment Property.
(Cost model Ind AS 40)

On April 1, 20X1 an entity acquired an investment property (building) for Rs. 40,00,000.
Management estimates.the useful life of the building as 20 years measured from the date of
acquisition. The residual value of the building is Rs. 2,00,000. Management believes that the
straight-line depreciation method reflects the pattern in which it expects to consume the
building’s future economic benefits. What is the carrying amount of the building on March
31,220X2?

Cost of theasset is Rs. 40,00,000.

Depreciable amount = Cost less Residual value = Rs. (40,00,000 - 2,00,000) = Rs. 38,00,000
Depreciation for the year = Depreciable amount/useful life =Rs. 38,00,000/20

= Rs. 1,90,000.

Carrying amount = Cost less accumulated depreciation

= Rs. (40,00,000 - 1,90,000) = Rs. 38,10,000.

X Limited has an investment property (building) which is carried in Balance Sheet on March
31, 20X1 at Rs. 15,00,000. During the year X Limited has stopped letting out the building and
used it as its office premise. On March 31, 20X1, management estimates the recoverable
amount of the building as Rs. 10,00,000 and its remaining useful life as 20 years and residual
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value is nil. How should X Limited account for the above investment property as on March 31,
20X1?

At March 31, 20X1, X Limited must transfer the property from investment property to
property, plant and equipment since there is a change in use of the said building. The transfer
should be made at its carrying amount i.e., Rs. 15,00,000. Since recoverable amount of the
property as on March 31, 20X1 is Rs. 10 Lakhs, impairment loss Rs. 5 Lakhs should be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The entity must disclose the reclassification.

From April 20X1, X Limited will depreciate the building over its remaining useful life of 20
years.

In financial year 20X1-20X2, X Limited incurred the following expenditure in acquiring
property consisting of 6 identical houses each with separate legal title including the land on
which it is built.

The expenditure incurred on various dates is given below:
On April 1, 20X1 - Purchase cost of the property Rs. 1,80,00,000.

On April 1, 20X1 — Non-refundable transfer taxes Rs. 20,00,000 (not included in the purchase
cost).

On April 2, 20X1- Legal cost related to property acquisition Rs. 5,00,000.
On April 6, 20X1- Advertisement campaign to attract tenants Rs. 3,00,000.
On April 8, 20X1 - Opening ceremony.function for starting business Rs. 1,50,000.

Throughout 20X1-20X2, incurred Rs. 1,00,000 towards day-to-day repair maintenance and
other administrative expenses.

X Limited uses.one of the six houses for office and accommodation of its few staffs. The other
five houses are rented to various independent third parties.

How X Limited will account for all the above mentioned expenses in the books of account?
The cost of the property = Rs. (1,80,00,000 + 20,00,000 + 5,00,000) = Rs. 2,05,00,000.

Since five houses out of six are being rented, so 5/6th of the property cost will be accounted
for as an investment property and 1/6th of the property cost will be accounted for as owner
occupied property.

Cost of the investment property = Rs. 2,05,00,000 x 5/6 = Rs. 1,70,83,333
Cost of the owner occupied property = Rs. (2,05,00,000 - 1,70,83,333) = Rs. 34,16,667.

All other costs, i.e., Advertisement expenses, ceremony expenses and repair maintenance
expenses will be expensed off as and when incurred.

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q9. XlLtd.isengaged inthe construction industry and prepares its financial statements up to 31st
March each year. On 1st April, 2013, X Ltd. purchased a large property (consisting of land) for
Rs. 2,00,00,000 and immediately began to lease the property to Y Ltd. on an operating lease.
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Annual rentals were Rs. 20,00,000. On 31st March, 2017, the fair value of the property was
Rs. 2,60,00,000. Under the terms of the lease, Y Ltd. was able to cancel the lease by giving six
months’ notice in writing to X Ltd. Y Ltd. gave this notice on 31st March, 2017 and
vacated the property on 30th September, 2017. On 30th September, 2017, the fair value of
the property was Rs. 2,90,00,000. On 1st October, 2017, X Ltd. immediately began to convert
the property into ten separate flats of equal size which X Ltd. intended to sell in the ordinary
course of its business. X Ltd. spent a total of Rs. 60,00,000 on this conversion project between
30th September, 2017 to 31st March, 2018. The project was incomplete at 31st March, 2018
and the directors of X Ltd. estimate that they need to spend a further Rs. 40,00,000 to
complete the project, after which each flat could be sold for Rs. 50,00,000.

Examine and show how the three events would be reported in the financial statements of X
Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 2018. as per Ind AS. [RTP Nov 2018]

From 1st April, 2013, the property would be regarded as an investment property since it is
being held for its investment potential rather than being owner occupied or developed for
sale.

The property would be measured under the cost moadel. This'means it will be measured at Rs.
2,00,00,000 at each year end.

On 30th September, 2017, the property ceases to be an investment property. X Ltd. begins to
develop it for sale as flats. The increase in the fair value of the property from 31st March,
2017 to 30t September, 2017 of Rs.'30,00,000 (Rs. 29,00,000 — Rs. 26,00,000) would be
recognised in P/L for the year ended 31 March, 2018.

Since the lease of the property is an operating lease, rental income of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rs.
20,00,000 x 6/12) would bewrecognised in.P/L for the year ended 31st March, 2018.

When the property ceases to be an investment property, it is transferred into inventory at its
then fair value of Rs. 2,90,00,000. This becomes the initial ‘cost’ of the inventory.

The additional costs of Rs. 60,00,000 for developing the flats which were incurred up to and
including 31st March, 2018 would be added to the ‘cost’ of inventory to give a closing cost
of Rs..3,50,00,000.

The total selling price of the flats is expected to be Rs. 5,00,00,000 (10 x Rs. 50,00,000). Since
the further costs to develop the flats total Rs.40,00,000, their net realisable value is
Rs. 4,60,00,000 (Rs. 5,00,00,000 — Rs. 40,00,000), so the flats will be measured at a cost of
Rs. 3,50,00,000.

The flats will be shown in inventory as a current asset

UK Ltd. has purchased a new head office property for Rs. 10 crores. The new office building
has 10 floors and the organisation structure of UK Ltd. is as follows:

Floor Use

1t Waiting Area
2t Admin

3t HR

4th Accounts
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5th Inspection
6t MD Office
7t Canteen
8t 9th and 10t Vacant

Since UK Ltd. did not need the floors 8, 9 and 10 for its business needs, it has leased out the
same to a restaurant on a long-term lease basis. The terms of the lease agreement are as
follows:

- Tenure of Lease Agreement - 5 Years
Non-Cancellable Period - 3 years

Lease Rental-annual lease rental receivable from these floors are Rs. 10,00,000 per floor
with an escalation of 5% every year.

Based on the certificate from its architect, UK Ltd. has estimated the cost of the 3 top floors
as approximately Rs. 3 crores. The remaining cost of Rs. 7 crores can be allocated as 25%
towards Land and 75% towards Building.

As on 31st March, 2018, UK Ltd. obtained a valuation-report from an independent valuer who
has estimated the fair value of the property at Rs. 15 crores. UK Ltd. wishes to use the cost
model for measuring Property, Plant & Equipment.and the fair value model for measuring the
Investment Property. UK Ltd. depreciates the building over an estimated useful life of 50
years, with no estimated residual value.

Advise UK Ltd. on the accounting and disclosures for the above as per the applicable Ind AS.

Ind AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and/Equipment’ states that property, plant and equipment are
tangible items that are held for-use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, or for administrative purposes.

As per Ind AS 40 ‘Investment property’, investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business.

Further, as per para 8 oflind AS 40, the building owned by the entity and leased out under one
or more operating leases will be classified as investment property.

Here top three floors have been leased out for 5 years with a non-cancellable period of 3
years. The useful life of the building is 50 years. The lease period is far less that the useful life
of the building leased out. Further, the lease rentals of three years altogether do not recover
the fair value of the floors leased i.e. 15 crore x 30% = 4.50 crore. Hence the lease is an
operating lease. Therefore, the 3 floors leased out as operating lease will be classified as
investment property in the books of lessor ie. UK Ltd.

However, for investment property, Ind AS 40 states that an entity shall adopt as its accounting
policy the cost model to all of its investment property. Ind AS 40 also requires that an entity
shall disclose the fair value of such investment property(ies).

Total PPE (70%) Investment
property (30%)

Land (25%) |  Building (75%)
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Cost 1.75 5.25 3
FV 2.625 7.875 4.5
Valuation model followed Cost Cost Cost *
Value recognized in the books 1.75 5.25 3
(5.25/50) = (3/50) =0.06
0.105 crore
Carrying value as on 31st March, 2018 1.75 5.145 2.94

Impairment loss No impairment loss since fair value is more than the
cost

Less: Depreciation Ni

* (as per para 30 of Ind AS 40)

Venus Ltd. is a multinational entity that owns three properties. All three properties were
purchased on April 1, 20X1. The details of purchase price and.market values of the properties
are given as follows:

Particulars

Property 1

Property 2

Property 3

Factory

Factory

Let-Out

Purchase price

15,000

10,000

12,000

Market value 31.03.20X2

16,000

11,000

13,500

Life s

10 Years

10 Years

10 Years

Subsequent Measurement

Cost Model

Revaluation
Model

Revaluation
Model

Property 1 and 2 are used by Venus.Ltd. as factory building whilst property 3 is let-out to a
non-related party at a market rent. The management presents all three properties in balance
sheet as ‘property, plant and equipment’.

The Company does not depreciate any of the properties on the basis that the fair values are
exceeding their.carrying amount and recognise the difference between purchase price and
fair value in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Required: Analyse whether the accounting policies adopted by the Venus Ltd. in relation to
these properties is in accordance of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). If not, advise the
correct treatment along with working for the same. [May 2018]

The aboveissue needs to be examined in the umbrella of the provisions given in Ind AS 1
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, Ind AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ in relation
to property ‘1’ and ‘2’ and Ind AS 40 ‘Investment Property’ in relation to property ‘3’.

Property ‘1’ and ‘2’

Para 6 of Ind AS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ defines:
“Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:

(a) are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others,
or for administrative purposes; and

(b) are expected to be used during more than one period.”

Paragraph 29 of Ind AS 16 states that:
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“An entity shall choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy
and shall apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and equipment”.

Further, paragraph 36 of Ind AS 16 states that:

“If an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the entire class of property, plant
and equipment to which that asset belongs shall be revalued”.

Further, paragraph 39 of Ind AS 16 states that:

“If an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under-the heading of
revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised in profit oriloss to the extent
that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit or
loss”.

Further, paragraph 52 of Ind AS 16 states that:

“Depreciation is recognised even if the fair value of the asset exceeds its carrying amount, as
long as the asset’s residual value does not exceed its carryingamount”.

Property ‘3’
Para 6 of Ind AS 40 ‘Investment property’ defines:

“Investment property is property (land or a building—or part of a building—or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both, rather than for:

(a) use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
(b) sale in the ordinary course of business”.

Further, paragraph 30 of Ind AS 40 states that:

“An entity shalladopt as its.accounting policy the cost model to all of its investment property”.
Further, paragraph 79 (e) of Ind AS 40 requires that:

“Anentity shall disclose the fair value of investment property”.

Further, paragraph 54 (2) of Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ requires that:
“As a minimum, the balance sheet shall include line items that present the following amounts:
(a) property, plant and equipment;

(b) investment property;

As per the facts given in the question, Venus Ltd. has

(a) presented all three properties in balance sheet as ‘property, plant and equipment’;
(b) applied different accounting policies to Property ‘1’ and ‘2’;

(c) revaluation is charged in statement of profit and loss as profit; and

(d) applied revaluation model to Property ‘3’ being classified as Investment Property.
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These accounting treatment is neither correct nor in accordance with provision of Ind AS 1,
Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 40.

Accordingly, Venus Ltd. shall apply the same accounting policy (i.e. either revaluation or cost
model) to entire class of property being property ‘1’ and ‘2”. It also required to depreciate
these properties irrespective of that, their fair value exceeds the carrying amount. The
revaluation gain shall be recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of revaluation surplus.

There is no alternative of revaluation model in respect to property ‘3’ being classified as
Investment Property and only cost model is permitted for subsequent-measurement.
However, Venus ltd. is required to disclose the fair value of the property in the Notes to
Accounts. Also the property ‘3’ shall be presented as separate line“item as Investment
Property.

Therefore, as per the provisions of Ind AS 1, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 40, the presentation of these
three properties in the balance sheet is as follows:

Case 1: Venus Ltd. has applied the Cost Model to an entire class of property, plant and
equipment.

Balance Sheet extracts as at 31st March 20X2

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property ‘1’
Property ‘2’ 22,500
Investment Properties
Property ‘3’ 10,800

Case 2: Venus Ltd. has applied the Revaluation Model to an entire class of property, plant and
equipment./Balance Sheet extracts as at 31st March 20X2

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property ‘1’

Property 2’

Investment Properties
Property ‘3’

Equity and Liabilities
Other Equity
Revaluation Reserve
Property ‘1’ 2,500
Property ‘2’ 2,000 4,500

The revaluation reserve should be routed through Other Comprehensive Income
(subsequently not reclassified to Profit and Loss) in Statement of Profit and Loss and Shown
as a separate column in Statement of Changes in Equity.
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Borrowing Costs (IND AS 23)

QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

Marine Transport Limited ordered 3 ships for its fleet on April 1, 20XO0. It pays a down payment
of 25% of the contract value of each of the ship out of long term borrowings from a scheduled
bank. The delivery has to commence from the financial year 20X7. On March 1, 20X2, the ship
builder informs that it has commenced production of one ship. There is no progress on other
2 ships. Marine Transport Limited prepares its financial statements on financial year basis.

Is it permissible for Marine Transport Limited to capitalise any borrowing costs for the
financial year ended March 31, 20X1 or March 31, 20X2.

As per paragraph 5 of Ind AS 23, a qualifying asset is antasset/that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

As per paragraph 17 of Ind AS 23, an entity shall begin capitalising borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset on the commencement date. The commencement date for
capitalisation is the date when the entity first meets all of the following conditions:

(a) It incurs expenditures for the asset.
(b) It incurs borrowing costs.

(c) It undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. The ship is a qualifying asset as it takes substantial period of time for its
construction. Thus the related borrowing costs should be capitalised.

Marine Transport Limited borrows funds and incurs expenditures in the form of down
payment on April 1, 20X0. Thus condition:(a) and (b) are met. However, condition (c) is met
only on March:1, 20X1, and that too only with respect to one ship. Thus there is no
capitalisation of borrowing costs during the financial year ended March 31, 20X1. Even during
the financial year ended March 31, 20X2, borrowing costs relating to the ‘one’ ship whose
construction had commenced from March 1, 20X2 will be capitalised from March 1, 20X2 to
March 31, 20X2. All other borrowing costs are expensed.

X Limited. has a treasury department that arranges funds for all the requirements of the
Company including funds for working capital and expansion programs. During the year ended
March 31,20X2, the Company commenced the construction of a qualifying asset and incurred
the following expenses:

Date Amount (Rs. )
July 1, 20X1 2,50,000
December 1, 20X1 3,00,000

The details of borrowings and interest thereon are as under:

Particulars Average Balance (Rs. ) Interest (Rs. )
Long term loan @ 10% 10,00,000 1,00,000
Working capital loan 5,00,000 65,000
15,00,000 1,65,000
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Compute the borrowing costs that need to be capitalised.
The capitalisation rate is:

Total borrowing costs / Weighted average total borrowings: 1,65,000/15,00,000 = 11%
Interest will be capitalised as under:

— On Rs. 2,50,000 @ 11% p.a. for 9 months = Rs. 20,625
— On Rs. 3,00,000 @ 11% p.a. for 4 months = Rs. 11,000

Alpha Ltd on 1St April 20X1 borrowed 9% Rs. 30,00,000 to finance the construction of two
qualifying assets. Construction started on 1st April 20X1. The loan facility was availed on 1st
April 20X1 and was utilized as follows with remaining funds invested temporarily at 7%.

Factory Building Office Building
1st April 20X1 5,00,000 10,00,000
1st October 20X1 5,00,000 10,00,000

Calculate the cost of the asset and the borrowing cost to be capitalized.

Particulars Factory Building Office Building
Borrowing Costs (10,00,000*9%).90,000 (20,00,000*9%) 1,80,000
Less: Investment Income (5,00,000*7%*6/12) (17,500) (10,00,000*7%*6/12) (35,000)
72,500 1,45,000

Cost of the asset:
Expenditure incurred 10,00,000 20,00,000
Borrowing Costs 72,500 1,45,000
Total 10,72,500 21,45,000

Beta Ltd had the following loans in place at the end of 31st March 20X2:

(Amounts in Rs. 000s) Loan 1st April 20X1| 31st March 20X2
18% Bank Loan 1,000 1,000
16% Term Loan 3,000 3,000
14% Debentures - 2,000

14% debenture was issued to fund the construction of Office building on 1st July 20X1 but the
development activities has yet to be started.

On 1st April 20X1, Beta Itd began the construction of a Plant being qualifying asset using the
existing borrowings. Expenditure drawn down for the construction was: Rs 500,000 on 1st
April 20X1 and Rs 2,500,000 on 1st January 20X2.

Required

Calculate the borrowing cost that can be capitalised for the plant.

Capitalisation rate 16.5%
Borrowing Costs (500,000 x 16.5%)+(2,500,000 x16.5% x 3/12) Rs.1,85,625
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Qs

X Ltd is commencing a new construction project, which is to be financed by borrowing. The
key dates are as follows:

(i) 15 May 20X1: Loan interest relating to the project starts to be incurred

(i) 2 June 20X1 : Technical site planning commences

(iii) 19 June 20X1 : Expenditure on the project started to be incurred

(iv) 18 July 20X1 : Construction work commences

Identify commencement date.

In the above case, the three conditions to be tested for commencement date would be:
Borrowing cost has been incurred on : 15 May 20X1

Expenditure has been incurred for the asset on : 19 June 20X1

Activities necessary to prepare asset for its intended use or sale: 2 June 20X1

Commencement date would be the date when the above three conditions would be satisfied
in alli.e 19 June 20X1

XYZ Ltd. has taken a loan of USD 10,000 on April 1, 20X3, for a specific project at an interest
rate of 5% p.a., payable annually. On April 1, 20X3, the exchange rate between the currencies
was Rs. 45 per USD. The exchange rate; as at-March 31, 20X4, is Rs. 48 per USD. The
corresponding amount could have been borrowed by XYZ Ltd. in local currency at an interest
rate of 11 per cent per annum as on April:1, 20X3. Calculate borrowing cost and exchange
loss. What will be your answer if interest rate on local currency borrowings is assumed to be
13% [MTP May 2019]

The following computation would be made to determine the amount of borrowing costs for
the purposes of paragraph 6(e) of IND AS 23:

Interest for the period = USD 10,000 x 5%x Rs. 48/USD = Rs. 24,000/-

Increase in the liability towards the principal amount = USD 10,000 x (48-45) = Rs. 30,000/-
Interest that would have resulted if the loan was taken in Indian currency

= USD 10000 x 45 x 11%). = Rs. 49,500

Difference between interest on local currency borrowing and foreign currency borrowing
=Rs. 49,500 - Rs. 24,000 =Rs. 25,500

Therefore, out of Rs. 30,000 increase in the liability towards principal amount, only Rs. 25,500
will be considered as the borrowing cost. Thus, total borrowing cost would be Rs. 49,500 being
the aggregate of interest of Rs. 24,000 on foreign currency borrowings (covered by paragraph
6(a) of IND AS 23) plus the exchange difference to the extent of difference between interest
on local currency borrowing and interest on foreign currency borrowing of Rs. 25,500. Thus,
Rs. 49,500 would be considered as the borrowing cost to be accounted for as per IND AS 23
and the remaining Rs. 4,500 would be considered as the exchange difference to be accounted
for as per IND AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
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In the above example, if the interest rate on local currency borrowings is assumed to be 13%
instead of 11%, the entire exchange difference of Rs. 30,000 would be considered as
borrowing costs, since in that case the difference between the interest on local currency
borrowings and foreign currency borrowings (i.e., Rs. 34,500 (Rs. 58,500 - Rs. 24,000) is more
than the exchange difference of Rs. 30,000. Therefore, in such a case, the total borrowing cost
would be Rs. 54,000 (Rs. 24,000 + Rs. 30,000) which would be accounted for under IND AS 23
and there would be no exchange difference to be accounted for under IND AS 21.

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q7: An entity constructs a new head office building commencing on 1st September 20X1, which
continues till 31st December 20X1. Directly attributable expenditure at the beginning of the
month on this asset are Rs. 100,000 in September 20X1 and Rs. 250,000 in each of the months
of October to December 20X1.

The entity has not taken any specific borrowings to finance the construction of the asset, but
has incurred finance costs on its general borrowings during the construction period. During
the year, the entity had issued 10% debentures with a face value of Rs. 20 lacs and had an
overdraft of Rs. 500,000, which increased to Rs. 750,000 in.December 20X1. Interest was paid
on the overdraft at 15% until 1 October 20X1, then the rate was increased to 16%.

Calculate the capitalization rate for computation of borrowing cost in accordance with Ind AS
23 ‘Borrowing Costs’. [RTP May 2018]

Since the entity has only general borrowing hence first step will be to compute the
capitalisation rate. The capitalisation rate of the general borrowings of the entity during the
period of construction is calculated as follows:

Finance cost on Rs. 20 lacs 10% debentures during September — December 20X1 . 66,667
Interest @ 15% on overdraft of Rs. 5,00,000 in September 20X1 . 6,250

Interest @ 16% on overdraft of Rs..5,00,000 in October and November 20X1 . 13,333
Interest @16% on overdraft of Rs. 750,000 in December 20X1 . 10,000
Total finance costs in September — December 20X1 . 96,250

Weighted average borrowings during period
=(20,00,000 x 4) + (500,000 x 4) +(750,000 x 1) /4 = Rs. 25,62,500

Capitalisation rate = Total finance costs during the construction period / Weighted average
borrowings during the construction period

=96,250./ 25,62,500 = 3.756%

X Ltd. began construction of a new building on 1%tJanuary, 2007. It obtained Rs.1 lakh special
loan to finance the construction of the building on 15tJanuary, 2007 at an interest rate of 10%.
The company’s other outstanding two non—specific loans were:

Amount Rs.
Rs.5,00,000 11%
Rs.9,00,000 13%

The expenditure that were made on the building project were as follows:
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January 2007
April 2007

July 2007
December 2007

Rs.
2,00,000
2,50,000
4,50,000
1,20,000

+91-7731007722

Building was completed by 31st December, 2007. Following the principles prescribed in AS—
16 ‘Borrowing Cost,” calculate the amount of interest to be capitalized and pass one Journal
Entry for capitalizing the cost and borrowing cost in respect of the building.

(i) | Computation of average accumulated expenses
Rs.2,00,000 x 12 /12 =

Rs. 2,50,000x9/12 = 1,87,500
Rs. 4,50,000x6 /12 = 2,25,000
Rs.1,20,000x1/12= 10,000
6,22,500

2,00,000

Calculation of average interest rate other than for specific borrowings
Amount of loan (in Rs.) Rate of Amount of
interest | interest (in Rs.)
5,00,000 11% 55,000
9,00,000 13% 1,17,000
14,00,000 1,72,000
Weighted average rate of interest =(1,72,000/14,00,000)*100 = 12.285% (approx)

Interest on average accumulated expenses
Specific borrowings (Rs. 1,00,000 X 10%) = 10,000
Non-specific borrowings (Rs. 5,22,500* X 12.285%) = 64,189
Amount of interest to be capitalized = 74,189
*(Rs:6,22,500 — Rs. 1,00,000)

Total expenses to be capitalized for building
Cost of building Rs.(2,00,000 + 2,50,000 + 4,50,000 + 1,20,000) 10,20,000
Add: Amount of interest to be capitalised 74,189
10,94,189

Journal Entry

Date Particulars

31.12.2007 | Building account

-To Bank account

(Being amount of cost of building
and borrowing cost thereon
capitalized)

Dr. (Rs.) Cr. (Rs.)
10,94,189
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AGRICULTURE (IND AS 41)

ABC Ltd grows vines, harvests the grapes and produces wine. Which of these activities are in
the scope of Ind AS 41?

The grape vines are bearer plants that continually generate crops of grapes which are covered
by Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.

When the entity harvests the grapes, their biological transformation ceases and they become
agricultural produce covered by Ind AS 41, Agriculture.

Vine involves a lengthy maturation period. This process is similar to_the conversion of raw
materials to a finished product rather than biological transformation. hence treated as
inventory in accordance with Ind AS 2, Inventories.

A farmer owned a dairy herd, of three years old cattle as at April 1, 20X1 with a fair value of
Rs. 13,750 and the number of cattle in the herd was 250.

The fair value of three year cattle as at March 31, 20X2 was Rs. 60 per cattle. The fair value of
four year cattle as at March 31, 20X2 is Rs.75 per cattle.

Calculate the measurement of group of cattle as at March:31, 20X2 stating price and physical
change separately.

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Fair value as at April 1, 20X1 13,750
Increase due to Price change [250 x {60 - (13,750/250)}] 1,250
Increase due to'Physical change [250 x {75-60}] 3,750
Fair value as'at March 31, 20X2 18,750

XYZ Itd, on 1 December 20X3, purchased 100 sheep’s from a market for Rs 500,000 with a
transaction cost of 2%. Sheep’s fair value increased from Rs 500,000 to Rs 600,000 on 31
March 20X4.

Determine the fair value on the date of purchase and pass necessary journal entries.

The fair value less cost to sell of sheep’s on the date of purchase would be Rs 4,90,000
(5,00,000-10,000). Expense of Rs 10,000 would be recognised in profit and loss.

On date of Purchase

Biological Asset . 4,90,000

Expense on Purchase . 10,000

To Bank 5,00,000
(Being biological asset purchased)

On 31 March 20X4 sheep’s would be measured at Rs. 5,88,000 as Biological Asset (6,00,000-
12,000) and gain of Rs. 98,000 (5,88,000-4,90,000) would be recognised in profit or loss.
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At the end of reporting period
Biological Asset

To Gain — Change in fair value

98,000

+91-7731007722

98,000

(Being change in fair value recognised at the end of reporting period)

Moon Ltd prepares financial statements to 31 March each year. On 1 April 20X1 the company
carried out the following transactions:

--  Purchased a land for Rs. 50 Lakhs.
--  Purchased 200 dairy cows (average age at 1 April 20X1 two years)for Rs. 10 Lakhs.

--  Received a grant of Rs. 1 million towards the acquisition of the cows. This grant was non-
refundable.

For the year ending 31 March 20X2, the company has incurred following costs:
--  Rs. 6 Lakh to maintain the condition of the animals (food and protection).
--  Rs. 4 Lakh as breeding fee to a local farmer.

On 1 October 20X1, 100 calves were born. There were‘no other changes in the number of
animals during the year ended 31 March 20X2. As.of 31 March 20X2, Moon Ltd had 3,000
litres of unsold milk in inventory. The milk was soldshortly after the year end at market prices.

Information regarding fair values is as follows:

Iltem

Fair Value less cost to sell

1 April 20X1

1 October 20X1

31 March 20X2

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Land

50 Lakhs

60 Lakhs

70 Lakhs

New born calves (per calf)

1,000

1,100

1,200

Six month old calves (per calf)

1,100

1,200

1,300

Two year old cows (per cow)

5,000

5,100

5,200

Three year old.cows (per cow)

5,200

5,300

5,500

Milk.(per litre)

20

22

24

Prepare extracts from the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss that would be
reflected in the financial statements of the entity for the year ended 31 March 20X2.

Ans: Extract from the Statement of Profit & Loss

Income

Amount

Change in fair value of purchased dairy cow
Government Grant

Change in the fair value of newly born calves
Fair Value of Milk

Total Income

Expenses

Maintenance Costs

Breeding Fees
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10,00,000
1,30,000
72,000
13,02,000

6,00,000
4,00,000
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Total Expense (10,00,000)
Net Income 3,02,000

Extracts from Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Land 50,00,000
Dairy Cow 11,00,000
Calves 1,30,000

Inventory
Milk

Working Notes:

Land: The purchase of the land is not covered by Ind AS 41. The relevant standard which
would apply to this transaction is Ind AS 16. Under this:standard the land would initially
be recorded at cost and depreciated over its useful.economic life. This would usually be
considered to be infinite in the case.of land and so no depreciation would be appropriate.
Under Cost Model no recognition would be made for post-acquisition changes in the
value of land. The allowed alternative treatment under Revaluation Model would permit
the land to be revalued to market value with the revaluation surplus taken to the other
comprehensive income. We have followed the Cost Model.

Dairy Cows: Under the “fair value model’ laid down in Ind AS 41 the mature cows would
be recognised in the Balance Sheet at.31 March 20X2 at the fair value of 200 x Rs. 5,500
=Rs.11,00,000.

Increaseqin price change 200 x (5,200-5,000) = 40,000
Increase in physical change 200 x (5,500-5,200) = 60,000

The total difference between the fair value of matured herd and its initial cost (Rs.
11,00,000 —Rs. 10,00,000 = a gain of Rs. 1,00,000) would be recognised in the profit and
loss along with the maintenance costs and breeding fee of Rs. 6,00,000 and Rs. 4,00,000
respectively.

Grant: Grand relating to agricultural activity is not subject to the normal requirement of
Ind “AS 20. Under Ind AS 41 such grants are credited to income as soon as they are
unconditionally receivable rather than being recognised over the useful economic life of
the herd. Therefore, Rs. 10,00,000 would be credited to income of the company.

Calves: They are a biological asset and the fair value model is applied. The breeding fees
are charged to income and an asset of 100 x Rs. 1,300 = Rs. 1,30,000 recognised in the
Balance sheet and credited to Profit and loss.

Milk: This is agricultural produce and initially recognised on the same basis as biological
assets. Thus the milk would be valued at 3,000 x Rs. 24 = Rs. 72,000. This is regarded as
‘cost’ for the future application of Ind AS 2 to the unsold milk.
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QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q5 Asat31lst March, 2017, a plantation consists of 100 Pinus Radiata trees that were planted 10
years earlier. The tree takes 30 years to mature, and will ultimately be processed into building
material for houses or furniture. The enterprise’s weighted average cost of capital is 6% p.a.

Only mature trees have established fair values by reference to a quoted price in an active
market. The fair value (inclusive of current transport costs to get 100 logs to market) for a
mature tree of the same grade as in the plantation is:

As at 31st March, 2017: 171
As at 31st March, 2018: 165

Assume that there would be immaterial cash flow between now and point of harvest. The
present value factor of Rs. 1 @ 6% for 19th year = 0.331 20th year = 0.312

State the value of such plantation as on 31st March, 2017 and 2018 and the gain or loss to be
recognised as per Ind AS. [RTP Nov 2018]

As at 31st March, 2017, the mature plantation would have been valuedat 17,100 (171 x 100).
As at 31st March, 2018, the mature plantation would have beenvalued at 16,500 (165 x 100).

Assuming immaterial cash flow between now and the point of harvest, the fair value (and
therefore the amount reported as an asset on the statement of financial position) of the
plantation is estimated as follows:

As at 31st March, 2017: 17,100 x 0.312 = 5,335.20.
As at 31st March, 2018: 16,500 x 0.331 = 5,461.50.
Gain or loss

The difference in fair value of the plantation between the two year end dates is 126.30
(5,461.50 —(5,335.20), which will be reported as a gain in the statement or profit or loss
(regardless of the fact that it has not yet been realised).
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Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance
(IND AS 20)

QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MAATERIAL

Q1 Government gives a grant of Rs. 10,00,000 for research and development of HIN1 vaccine to
A Pharmaceuticals Limited. There is no condition attached to the grant. Examine how the
Government grant be realized.

The entire grant should be recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Government gives a grant of Rs. 10,00,000 for research and development of HIN1 vaccine to
A Pharmaceuticals Limited even though similar vaccines are available in the market but are
expensive. The entity has to ensure by developing a manufacturing process over a period of
2 years that the costs come down by at least 40%. Examine how the Government grant be
realized.

The entire grant should be recognised immediately as deferred income and charged to profit
or loss over a period of two years.

A village of artisans in a district got devastated because of an earthquake. A Limited was
operating in that district and was providing employment to the artisans. The government gave
a grant of Rs. 10,00,000 to A Limited so that 100 artisans are rehabilitated over a period of 3
years. Government releases Rs. 2,00,000. Examine how the Government grant be realized.

A Limited will recognise Rs. 10,00,000 as government grant and set it up as a deferred income
and will recognise it in its profit or loss'over the period of three years as per the principles
enunciated in Ind'/AS 20:

Once a government grant is recognised, any related contingent liability or contingent asset is
treated in accordance with Ind'AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The manner in which a grant is received does not affect the accounting method to be adopted
in regard to the grant. Thus a grant is accounted for in the same manner whether it is received
in cash or as a-reduction of a liability to the government or in the form of a non-monetary
asset.

A Limited received from the government a loan of Rs. 50,00,000 @ 5% payable after 5 years
in a bulleted payment. The prevailing market rate of interest is 12%. Interest is payable
regularly at the end of each year. Calculate the amount of government grant and Pass
necessary journal entry. Also examine how the Government grant be realized.

Ans: The fair value of the loan is calculated at Rs. 37,38,328.

Year Opening Balance | Interest calculated Interest paid @ 5% on Closing Balance
@ 12% Rs.50,00,000 + principal
paid
(a) (b) (c) = (b) x 12% (d) | (e)=(b)+(c)—(d)
1 37,38,328 4,48,600 2,50,000 39,36,928
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39,36,928 4,72,431 2,50,000 41,59,359
41,59,359 4,99,123 2,50,000 44,08,482
44,08,482 5,29,018 2,50,000 46,87,500
46,87,500 5,62,500 52,50,000 Nil

A Limited will recognise Rs. 12,61,672 (Rs. 50,00,000 — Rs. 37,38,328) as the government grant
and will make the following entry on receipt of loan:

Bank Account Dr. 50,00,000
To Deferred Income 12,61,672
To Loan Account 37,38,328

Rs. 12,61,672 is to be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which A Limited recognised as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to
compensate. (see lllustration 5 in this regard)

Continuing with the facts given in the Q 4, state how the grant will be recognized in the
statement of profit or loss assuming:

(a) the loan is an immediate relief measure to rescue the enterprise
(b) the loan is a subsidy for staff training expenses, incurred equally, for a period of 4 years
(c) the loan is to finance a depreciable asset.

Rs. 12,61,672 is to be recognised in profit or loss on.a systematic basis over the periods in
which A Limited recognised as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to
compensate.

Assuming (a), the loanis an immediate relief measure to rescue the enterprise. Rs. 12,61,672
will be recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Assuming (b), the loan'is.a subsidy for staff training expenses, incurred equally, for a period
of 4 years. Rs. 12,61,672 will be recognised in profit or loss over a period of 4 years.

Assuming (c), the loan is to finance a depreciable asset. Rs. 12,61,672 will be recognised in
profit or loss on the same basis as depreciation.

A Limited wants to establish a manufacturing unit in a backward area and requires 5 acres of
land. The government provides the land on a leasehold basis at a nominal value of Rs. 10,000
per acre. The fair value of the land is Rs. 100,000 per acre. Calculate the amount of the
Government grant to be recognized by an entity.

A limited will recognise Rs. 450,000 [(Rs. 100,000 — Rs. 10,000) x 5)] as government grant.

A Limited establishes solar panels to supply solar electricity to its manufacturing plant. The
cost of solar panels is Rs. 1,00,00,000 with a useful life of 10 years. The depreciation is
provided on straight line method basis. The government gives Rs. 50,00,000 as a subsidy.
Examine how the Government grant be realized.

A Limited will set up Rs. 50,00,000 as deferred income and will credit Rs. 5,00,000 equally to
its statement of profit and loss over next 10 years.

Alternatively, A Ltd. may deduct Rs. 50,00,000 from the cost of solar panel of Rs. 1,00,00,000.
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Q8: Continuing with the facts given in the Q 7 above, state how the same will be disclosed in the
Statement of cash flows.

A Limited will show Rs. 1,00,00,000 being acquisition of solar panels as outflow in investing
activities. The receipt of Rs. 50,00,000 from government will be shown as inflow under
financing activities.

QUESTIONS FROM RTP/MTP/EXAMS

Q9 AlLimited received from the government a loan of Rs.1,00,00,000 @ 5% payable after 5 years
in a bulleted payment. The prevailing market rate of interest is 12%. Interest is payable
regularly at the end of each year. Calculate the amount of government grant and Pass
necessary journal entry. Also examine how the Government grant be realized. Also state how
the grant will be recognized in the statement of profit or loss assuming that the loan is to
finance a depreciable asset.

The fair value of the loan is calculated at Rs. 74,76,656.

Year Opening | Interest calculated Interest paid @ 5% Closing Balance
Balance @ 12% onRs.1,00,00,000 +
principal paid

(b) (c) =(b) x 12% (d) | (e)=(b)+(c)—(d)
74,76,656 8,97,200 5,00,000 78,73,856
78,73,856 9,44,862 5,00,000 83,18,718
83,18,718 9,98,246 5,00,000 88,16,964
88,16,964 10,58,036 5,00,000 93,75,000
93,75,000 11,25,000 1,05,00,000 Nil

A Limited will recognise Rs. 25,23,344 (Rs. 1,00,00,000 — Rs. 74,76,656) as the government
grant and will make the following entry on receipt of loan:

Bank Account Dr. 1,00,00,000
To Deferred Income 25,23,344
To Loan Account 74,76,656

Rs.25,23,344 is to.be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which A Limited recognised as expenses the related costs for which the grant is intended to
compensate.

If the loan is to finance a depreciable asset. Rs. 25,23,344 will be recognised in profit or loss
onthe same basis as depreciation.

How will you recognize and present the grants received from the Government in the following
cases as per Ind AS 207

(i) A Ltd. received one acre of land to setup a plant in backward area (fair value of land Rs.
12 lakh and acquired value by Government is Rs. 8 lakhs).

(i) B Ltd. received an amount of loan for setting up a plant at concessional rate of interest
from the Government.

(iii) D Ltd. received an amount of Rs. 25 lakh for immediate start-up of a business without any
condition.
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(iv) S Ltd. received Rs. 10 lakh for purchase of machinery costing Rs. 80 lakh. Useful life of
machinery is 10 years. Depreciation on this machinery is to be charged on straight line
basis.

(v) Government gives a grant of Rs. 25 lakh to U Limited for research and development of
medicine for breast cancer, even though similar medicines are available in the market but
are expensive. The company is to ensure by developing a manufacturing process over a
period of two years so that the cost comes down at least to 50%. [Nov 2018]

The land and government grant should be recognized by A Ltd. at fair value of Rs.
12,00,000 and this government grant should be presented in the books as deferred
income. (Refer footnote 1)

As per para 10A of Ind AS 20 ‘Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance’, loan at concessional rates of interest is to be measured at fair
value and recognised as per Ind AS 109. Value of concession is the difference between
the initial carrying value of the loan determined in accordance with Ind AS 109, and the
proceeds received. The benefit is accounted for as Government grant.

(iii) Rs. 25 lakh has been received by D Ltd. for immediate start-up of business. Since this grant
is given to provide immediate financial support to an entity, it should be recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately with disclosure to ensure that its effect is
clearly understood, as per para 21 of Ind AS 20.

(iv) Rs. 10 lakh should be recognized by S Ltd. as deferred income and will be transferred to
profit and loss over the useful life of the asset. In this case, Rs. 1,00,000 [Rs. 10 lakh / 10
years] should be credited.to profit.and loss each year over period of 10 years. (Refer
footnote 2)

(v) As per para 12 of:Ind AS 20, the entire grant of Rs. 25 lakh should be recognized
immediately as deferred income and charged to profit and loss over a period of two years
based on the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate provided
that there is reasonable assurance that U Ltd. will comply with the conditions attached
to the grant.

Note 1: As per the amendment made by MCA in Ind AS 20 on 21st September, 2018,
alternatively if the company is following the policy of recognising non-monetary grants at
nominal value, the company will not recognise any government grant. Land will be shown in
the financial statements at Rs. 1.
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Impairment of Assets (IND AS 36)

QUESTIONS FROM ICAI STUDY MATERIAL

Practical Questions on IND AS 36

Q1l: A mining entity owns a private railway to support its mining activities. The private railway
could only be sold for scrap value and it does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from the other assets of the mine.

It is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the private railway because its value
in use cannot be determined and is probably different from scrap value. Consequently, the
entity estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the private
railway belongs (ie the mine as a whole).

A bus company provides services under contract with a municipality that requires minimum
service on each of five separate routes. Assets devoted to each route and the cash flows from
each route can be identified separately. One of the routes operates at a significant loss.

Because the entity does not have the option to curtail any one bus route, the lowest level of
identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets are the cash inflows generated by the five routes together. The cash-
generating unit for each route is the bus company as a whole.

An entity owns three hotels in the same location. The hotels use the same pricing structure
and are advertised by the owner as alternatives. They all use the entity’s central reservations
system. Guests are regularly transferred between hotels. The entity also owns a hotel in
another location. This hotel -uses/the central reservation system but does not share
advertising or guests with the other hotels.

The three hotels in the'same location would form a single cash-generating unit because they
are managed as one business. The fourth hotel, in a separate location, would be another cash-
generating unit because.it is likely to be managed independently of the entity’s other hotels
and its management are likely to be held accountable for the profitability of the hotel as an
independent business.

A.publisher.owns 150 magazine titles of which 70 were purchased and 80 were self-created.
The price paid for a purchased magazine title is recognised as an intangible asset. The costs
of creating magazine titles and maintaining the existing titles are recognised as an expense
when incurred. Cash inflows from direct sales and advertising are identifiable for each
magazine title. Titles are managed by customer segments. The level of advertising income for
a magazine title depends on the range of titles in the customer segment to which the
magazine title relates. Management has a policy to abandon old titles before the end of their
economic lives and replace them immediately with new titles for the same customer segment.
What is the cash-generating unit?

It is likely that the recoverable amount of an individual magazine title can be assessed. Even
though the level of advertising income for a title is influenced, to a certain extent, by the other
titles in the customer segment, cash inflows from direct sales and advertising are identifiable
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for each title. In addition, although titles are managed by customer segments, decisions to
abandon titles are made on an individual title basis.

Therefore, it is likely that individual magazine titles generate cash inflows that are largely
independent one from another and that each magazine title is a separate cash-generating
unit.

A significant raw material used for plant Y’s final production is an intermediate product
bought from plant X of the same enterprise. X's products are sold to Y at a transfer price that
passes all margins to X. 80% of Y’s final production is sold to customers outside of the
reporting enterprise. 60% of X’s final production is sold to Y and the remaining 40% is sold to
customers outside of the reporting enterprise.

For each of the following cases, what are the cash-generating units for X and Y?

Case 1: X could sell the products it sells to Y in an active market. Internal transfer prices are
higher than market prices.

Case 2: There is no active market for the products X sells to Y.
Case 1

X could sell its products on an active market and, so, generate cash inflows from continuing
use that would be largely independent of the cashinflows from Y. Therefore, it is likely that X
is a separate cash-generating unit, although part of its production is used by Y.

Itis likely that Y is also a separate cash-generating unit. Y sells 80% of its products to customers
outside of the reporting enterprise. Therefore, its. cash inflows from continuing use can be
considered to be largely independent.

Internal transfer prices do not reflect market prices for X’s output. Therefore, in determining
value in use of both X and Y, the enterprise adjusts financial budgets/forecasts to reflect
management’s best estimate of future market prices for those of X’s products that are used
internally.

Case 2

It is'likely that the recoverable amount of each plant cannot be assessed independently from
the recoverable amount of the other plant because:

(a) the‘majority of X’s production is used internally and could not be sold in an active
market. So, cash inflows of X depend on demand for Y’s products. Therefore, X cannot
be considered to generate cash inflows that are largely independent from those of Y;
and

(b) the two plants are managed together.

As a consequence, it is likely that X and Y together is the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent.

Enterprise M produces a single product and owns plants A, B and C. Each plant is located in a
different continent. A produces a component that is assembled in either B or C. The combined
capacity of B and C is not fully utilised. M’s products are sold world-wide from either B or C.
For example, B’s production can be sold in C’s continent if the products can be delivered faster
from B than from C. Utilisation levels of B and C depend on the allocation of sales between
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Ans:

the two sites. For each of the following cases, what are the cash-generating units for A, B and
c?

Case 1: There is an active market for A’s products.
Case 2: There is no active market for A’s products.
Case 1

It is likely that A is a separate cash-generating unit because there is an active market for its
products.

Although there is an active market for the products assembled by B and C, cashiinflows for B
and C depend on the allocation of production across the two sites. It is unlikely that the future
cash inflows for B and C can be determined individually. Therefore, it is likely that B.and C
together is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash. inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent.

In determining the value in use of A and B plus C, M adjusts financial budgets/forecasts to
reflect its best estimate of future market prices for A’s products.

Case 2

It is likely that the recoverable amount of each plant cannot be assessed independently
because:

(a) there is no active market for A’s products. Therefore, A’s cash inflows depend on sales
of the final product by B and C; and

(b) although there is an active market for the products assembled by B and C, cash inflows
for B and C depend on the allocation of production across the two sites. It is unlikely
that the future cash inflows for Bland C can be determined individually.

As a consequence, it-is likely that A, B and C together (i.e., M as a whole) is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent.

Apex Ltd. is engaged in manufacturing of steel utensils. It owns a building for its headquarters.
The building used to.be fully occupied for internal use. However, recently the company has
undertaken:a massive downsizing exercise as a result of which 1/3rd of the building became
vacant. This vacant portion has now been given of on lease for 6 years. Determine the CGU of
the building.

CGU of the building is Apex Ltd. as a whole as the primary purpose of the building is to serve
as a corporate asset.

Saturn India Ltd is reviewing one of its business segments for impairment. The carrying value
of its net assets is 40 million. Management has produced two computations for the value-in-
use of the business segment. The first value of Rs. 36 million excludes the benefit to be derived
from a future reorganization, but the second value of Rs. 44 million includes the benefits to
be derived from the future reorganization. There is not an active market for the sale of the
business segments. Whether the business segment needs to be Impaired?

The benefit of the future reorganization should not be taken into account in calculating value-
in-use. Therefore, the net assets of the business segment will be impaired by Rs. 4 million
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because the value-in-use of Rs. 36 million is lower than the carrying value of Rs. 40 million.
The value-in-use can be used as the recoverable amount as there is no active market for the
sale of the business segment.

Mars Ltd. gives the following estimates of cash flows relating to property, plant and
equipment on 31-03-20X4. The discount rate is 15%

Year Cash Flow (INR Lakhs)
20X4-20X5 2,000
20X5-20X6 3,000
20X6-20X7 3,000
20X7-20X8 4,000
20X8-20X9 2,000
Residual Value at 31.03.20X9 500
Property, plant & equipment was purchased on 1.04.20X1 for Rs. 20,000 lakhs
Useful Life was 8 Years

Residual Value estimated at the end of8 years Rs. 500 lakhs

Fair value less cost to disposal Rs. 10,000 lakhs

Ram ltd. acquired plant on 1-4-1995.for Rs. 50 lakhs having 10 years useful life and provides
depreciation on straight line basis.with nil residual value. On 1-4-2000, Ram Ltd. revalued the
plant at Rs. 29 lakhs against its book value of Rs. 25 lakhs and credited Rs. 4 lakhs to
revaluation reserve. Additional depreciation on revalued amount was transferred to revenue
reserve as per AS 10.

On 31-3-2002 the plant was impaired and its recoverable amount on this date was Rs. 14 lakhs
calculated the impairment loss and how this loss should be treated in accounts.

Impairment loss (17.40 — 14.00) 3.40
Impairment loss to be debited to revaluation Reserve 2.40
Impairment loss to be debited in Profit and Loss A/c as expense  1.00

XYZ Limited has a cash-generating unit ‘Plant A’ as on April 1, 20X1 having a carrying amount
of Rs. 1,000 crores. Plant A was acquired under a business combination and goodwill of Rs.
200 crores was allocated to it. It is depreciated on straight line basis. Plant A has a useful life
of 10 years with no residual value. On March 31, 20X2, Plant A has a recoverable amount of
Rs. 600 crores. Calculate the impairment loss on Plant A. Also, prescribe its allocation as per
Ind AS 36.

(Rs. in crores)
Particulars Goodwill Identifiable assets Total
Historical cost 200 1,000 1,200
Depreciation (20X1-20X2) - (100) (100)
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Ans.

Carrying amount 200 900 1,100

Since, the recoverable amount is Rs. 600 crores, there is an impairment loss of Rs. 500 crores.
The impairment loss of Rs. 500 crores should be allocated to goodwill first, and then to the
other identifiable assets, i.e., Rs. 200 crores to goodwill and Rs. 300 crores to identifiable
assets of Plant A.

(Rs. in crores)
Particulars Goodwill Identifiable assets Total
Impairment loss (200) (300) (500)
Carrying amount after impairment loss - 600 600

ABC Ltd. has three cash-generating units: A, B and C, the carrying.amounts of which as on
March 31, 20X1 are as follows:

Cash-generating units Carrying amount Remaining useful life
(Rs. in crore)
A 500
B 750
C 1,100
ABC Ltd. also has two corporate assets having a.remaining useful life of 20 years.
(Rs. in crore)
Corporate asset Carrying amount
X 600
Y 200
Remarks

The carrying amount of X can be allocated on a reasonable basis (i.e., pro rata basis) to the
individual cash-generating units.

The carrying amount of Y cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to the individual cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount as on March 31, 20X1 is as follows:

Cash-generating units Recoverable amount (Rs. in crore)

A 600

B 900

C 1400

ABC Ltd. 3200

Calculate the impairment loss, if any. Ignore decimals. [Nov 2018]

Allocation of corporate assets
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The carrying amount of X is allocated to the carrying amount of each individual cash-
generating unit. A weighted allocation basis is used because the estimated remaining useful
life of A’s cash-generating unit is 10 years, whereas the estimated remaining useful lives of B
and C’s cash-generating units are 20 years.

Particulars A B C Total
Carrying amount 500 750 1,100 2,350
Useful life 10 years 20 years 20 years —
Weight based on useful life 1 2 2 —
Carrying amount (after assigning
weight) 500 1,500 2,200
Pro-rata allocation of X 12% 36% 52%
(500/4,200) | (1,500/4,200) | (2,200/4,200)
Allocation of carrying amount of X 72 216 312
Carrying amount (after allocation of
X) 572 966 1,412

Calculation of impairment loss

Step I: Impairment losses for individual cash-generating units and its allocation

(a) Impairment loss of each cash-generating units (Rs. in crore)
Particulars

Carrying amount (after allocation of X)
Recoverable amount

Impairment loss 12
(b) Allocation of the impairment loss (Rs. in crore)

Allocation to B C
X 15 (66 x 216/966) 3 (12x312/1,412)
Other assets in cash- generating units 51 (66 x 750/ 966) 9| (12x1,100/1,412)
Impairment loss 66 12

Step II: Impairment losses for the larger cash-generating unit, i.e., ABC Ltd. as a whole

Particulars A B C X Y ABC Ltd.
Carrying amount 500 750 1,100 600 200 3,150
Impairment loss (Step |) - | (51) (9) | (18) - (78)
Carrying amount (after Step 1) 500 699 | 1,091 582 200 3,072
Recoverable amount 3,200
Impairment loss for the ‘larger’ cash-generating unit Nil

Q 13: Parent acquires an 80% ownership interest in Subsidiary for Rs. 2,100 on April 1, 20X1. At that
date, Subsidiary’s net identifiable assets have a fair value of Rs. 1,500. Parent chooses to
measure the non-controlling interests as the proportionate interest of Subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets. The assets of Subsidiary together are the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. Because other cash-generating units of Parent are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, the goodwill of Rs. 500 related to those synergies has been
allocated to other cash-generating units within Parent. On March 31, 20X2, Parent determines
that the recoverable amount of cash-generating unit Subsidiary is Rs. 1,000. The carrying
amount of the net assets of Subsidiary, excluding goodwill, is Rs. 1,350. Allocate the
impairment loss on March 31, 20X2.
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Ans:

Non-controlling interests is measured as the proportionate interest of Subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets, i.e., Rs. 300 (20% of Rs. 1,500). Goodwill is the difference between the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount of the non-controlling interests
(Rs. 2,100 + Rs. 300) and the net identifiable assets (Rs. 1,500), i.e., Rs. 900.

Since, the assets of Subsidiary together are the smallest group of assets that generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets,
therefore, Subsidiary is a cash-generating unit. Because other cash-generating units of Parent
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, the goodwill of Rs. 500 related
to those synergies has been allocated to other cash-generating units within Parent. Because
the cash-generating unit comprising Subsidiary includes goodwill within its carrying amount,
it should be tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if there.is an indication that
it may be impaired.

Testing Subsidiary (cash-generating unit) for impairment

Goodwill attributable to non-controlling interests is included in Subsidiary’s recoverable
amount of Rs. 1,000 but has not been recognised in Parent’s consolidated financial
statements. Therefore, the carrying amount of Subsidiary should begrossed up to include
goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests, before being compared with the
recoverable amount of Rs. 1,000. Goodwill attributable to Parent’s 80% interest in Subsidiary
at the acquisition date is Rs. 400 after allocating Rs..500 to other cash-generating units within
Parent. Therefore, goodwill attributable to:the 20% non-controlling interests in Subsidiary at
the acquisition date is Rs. 100.

Testing subsidiary for impairment on March 31, 20X2

On March 31, 20X2 Goodwill of | Net identifiable
subsidiary assets (Rs.)
(Rs.)

Carrying amount 400 1,350

Unrecognised non-controlling interests 100 -

Adjusted carrying amount 500 1,350

Recoverable amount

Impairment loss

Allocating the impairment loss

The impairment loss of Rs. 850 should be allocated to the assets in the unit by first reducing
the carrying amount of goodwill.

Therefore, Rs. 500 of the Rs. 850 impairment loss for the unit is allocated to the goodwill. If
the partially-owned subsidiary is itself a cash-generating unit, the goodwill impairment loss
should be allocated to the controlling and non-controlling interests on the same basis as that
on which profit or loss is allocated. In this case, profit or loss is allocated on the basis of relative
ownership interests. Because the goodwill is recognised only to the extent of Parent’s 80%
ownership interest in Subsidiary, Parent recognises only 80% of that goodwill impairment loss
(i.e., Rs. 400).

The remaining impairment loss of Rs. 350 is recognised by reducing the carrying amounts of
Subsidiary’s identifiable assets.

Allocation of the impairment loss for Subsidiary on March 31, 20X2
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On March 31, 20X2 Goodwill of Net identifiable Total (Rs.)
subsidiary (Rs.) assets (Rs.)
Carrying amount 400 1,350 1,750
Impairment loss (400) (350) (750)
Carrying amount after impairment loss - 1,000 1,000

Q14 A Ltd. purchased an asset of Rs. 100 lakh on April 1, 20XO0. It has useful life of 4 years with no
residual value. Recoverable amount of the asset is as follows:

As on Recoverable amount
March 31, 20X1 Rs. 60 lakh
March 31, 20X2 Rs. 40 lakh
March 31, 20X3 Rs. 28 lakh

Calculate the amount of impairment loss or its reversal, if any, on March 31, 20X1, March 31,
20X2 and March 31, 20X3.

As on March 31, 20X1

Carrying amount of the asset (opening balance) Rs. 100 lakh

Depreciation (Rs. 100 lakh /4 years)

Carrying amount of the asset (closing balance)

Recoverable amount (given)

Rs. 25 lakh
Rs. 75 lakh
Rs. 60 lakh

Therefore, an impairment loss of Rs. 15 lakh should be recognised as on March 31, 20X1.
Depreciation for subsequent years should be charged on the carrying amount of the asset
(after providing for impairment loss),i.e., Rs. 60 lakh.

As on March 31, 20X2

Carrying amount of the asset (opening balance) . 60 lakh
Depreciation (Rs. 60 lakh /3.years) . 20 lakh
Carrying amount of the asset (closing balance) . 40 lakh
Therefore, no impairment loss should be recognised as on March 31, 20X2.

As on March 31, 20X3

Carrying amount of the asset (opening balance) Rs. 40 lakh
Depreciation (Rs. 40 lakh / 2 years) Rs. 20 lakh
Carrying amount of the asset (closing balance) Rs. 20 lakh
Recoverable amount (given) Rs. 28 lakh

Since, the recoverable amount of the asset exceeds the carrying amount of the asset by Rs. 8
lakh, impairment loss recognised earlier should be reversed. However, reversal of an
impairment loss should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years.
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Carrying amount as on March 31, 20X3 had no impairment loss being recognised would have
been Rs. 25 lakh. Therefore, the reversal of an impairment loss of Rs. 5 lakh should be done

as on March 31, 20X3.

On March 31, 20X1, XYZ Ltd. makes following estimate of cash flows for one of its asset located

in USA:
Year

Cash flows
20X1-20X2
20X2-20X3
20X3-20X4

USS 80
US S 100
USS 20

Following information has been provided:

Particulars
Applicable discount rate

Exchange rates are as follows:

India

15%

As on Exchangerate

March 31, 20X1 Rs. 45/US'S

Expected Exchange rate

March 31, 20X2 Rs.48/US S

March 31, 20X3 Rs. 51/US S

March 31, 20X4 Rs. 55/US $

Calculate value in use as on.March 31, 20X1.

Year

Cash flows

(US9)

Present value factor
@ 10%

Discounted cash
flows (US S)

20X1-20X2

80

0.9091

72.73

20X2-20X3

100

0.8264

82.64

20X3-20X4

20

0.7513

15.03

Total Discounted cash flows in

US $170.40

Exchange rate as on March 31, 20X1, i.e., date of calculating value in use

Rs. 45/US S

Value'in use as on March 31, 20X1

Rs. 7,668

Q16 Cash flow is Rs. 100, Rs. 200 or Rs. 300 with probabilities of 10%, 60% and 30%, respectively.
Calculate expected cash flows.

Ans:

Cash flow

Probability

Expected cash
flow

100

10%

10

200

60%

120
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300 90
Total

The expected cash flow is Rs. 220.

Cash flow of Rs. 1,000 may be received in one year, two years or three years with probabilities
of 10%, 60% and 30%, respectively. Calculate expected cash flows assuming applicable
discount rate of 5%, 5.25% and 5.5% in year 1, 2 and 3, respectively.

Cash flow

P.V.F.

Present value

Probability

Expected cash
flow

1

1,000

0.95238

952.38

10%

95.24

2

1,000

0.90273

902.73

60%

541.64

3

1,000

0.85161

851.61

30%

255.48

Total 892.36

The expected present value is Rs. 892.36.
Calculate expected cash flows in each of the following cases:

(a) the estimated amount falls somewhere between Rs. 50 and Rs. 250, but no amount in
the range is more likely than any other amount.

(b) the estimated amount falls somewhere between Rs. 50 and Rs. 250, and the most likely
amount is Rs. 100. However, the probabilities attached to each amount are unknown.

(c) the estimated amount will be Rs. 50 (10 per. cent probability), Rs. 250 (30 per cent
probability), or Rs. 100 (60 per cent probability).

(a) the estimated expected cash flow is Rs. 150 [(50 + 250)/2].

(b) the estimated expected cash flow is Rs. 133.33 [(50 + 100 + 250)/3].

(c) the estimated expected cash flow is Rs. 140 [(50 x 0.10) + (250 x 0.30) + (100 x 0.60)].

A Ltd. purchased a machinery of Rs. 100 crore on April 1, 20X1. The machinery has a useful
life of 5 years. It-has nil residual value. A Ltd. adopts straight line method of depreciation for
depreciating the machinery. Following information has been provided as on March 31, 20X2:

Estimated future cash flows
(Rs. in crore)

20X2-20X3 15

20X3-20X4 30

20X4-20X5 40

20X5-20X6 10

Financial year

Discount rate applicable : 10%
Fair value less costs to sell as on March 31, 20X2 : Rs. 70 crore
Calculate the impairment loss, if any.

Value in use of the machinery as on March 31, 20X2 can be calculated as follows:

Estimated cash flows | Present value factor @ Present value

(Rs. in crore) 10%

Financial year
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20X2-20X3 15 0.9091 13.64
20X3-20X4 30 0.8264 24.79
20X4-20X5 40 0.7513 30.05
20X5-20X6 10 0.6830 6.83

75.31

The recoverable amount of the machinery is Rs. 75.31 crore (higher of value in use of Rs. 75.31
crore and fair value less costs to sell of Rs. 70 crore). Carrying amount of the machinery is Rs.
80 crore (after providing for one year depreciation @ Rs. 20 crore). Therefore, the impairment
loss of Rs. 4.69 crore should be provided in the books.

A company operates a mine in a country where legislation requires that the owner must
restore the site on completion of its mining operations. The cost of restoration includes the
replacement of the overburden, which must be removed before mining. operations
commence. A provision for the costs to replace the overburden wasrecognised as soon as the
overburden was removed. The amount provided was recognised as part of the cost of the
mine and is being depreciated over the mine’s useful life. The carrying amount of the provision
for restoration costs is Rs. 500, which is equal to the present value of the restoration costs.

The entity is testing the mine for impairment. The cash-generating unit for the mine is the
mine as a whole. The entity has received various offers to buy the mine at a price of around
Rs. 800. This price reflects the fact that the buyer will assume the obligation to restore the
overburden. Disposal costs for the mine_.are negligible. The value in use of the mine is
approximately Rs. 1,200, excluding restoration costs. The carrying amount of the mine is Rs.
1,000.

The cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs of disposal is Rs. 800. This amount considers
restoration costs that have already been provided for. As a consequence, the value in use for
the cash-generating unit is determined after consideration of the restoration costs and is
estimated to be Rs. 700 (Rs. 1,200 less Rs. 500). The carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit is Rs. 500, which'is the carrying. amount of the mine (Rs. 1,000) less the carrying amount
of the provision for restoration costs (Rs. 500). Therefore, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit exceeds its carrying amount.

Earth Infra Ltd has two cash-generating units, X and Y. There is no goodwill within the units’
carrying values. The carrying values of the CGUs are CGU A for Rs. 20 million and CGU B for
Rs. 30 million. The company has an office building which it is using as a office headquarter has
not been included in the above values and can be allocated to the units on the basis of their
carrying values. The office building has a carrying value of Rs. 10 million. The recoverable
amounts are based on value-in-use of Rs. 18 million for CGU A and Rs. 38 million for CGU B.

Required: Determine whether the carrying values of CGU A and B are impaired.

The office building is a corporate asset which needs to be allocated to CGU A and B on a
reasonable and consistent basis:

Total
Carrying value of CGUs 50
Allocation of office building 10

(office building is allocated in the ratio of
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Carrying value of CGU’s

Carrying value of CGU after Allocation of

corporate asset

Recoverable Amount 18 38 56
Impairment Loss 6 - -

The impairment loss will be allocated on the basis of 4/24 against the building (Rs. 1 million)
and 20/24 against the other assets (Rs. 5 million).

A machine has suffered physical damage but is still working, although not as well as before it
was damaged. The machine’s fair value less costs of disposal is less than'its carrying amount.
The machine does not generate independent cash inflows. The smallest identifiable group of
assets that includes the machine and generates cash inflows that are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets is the production line to which the machine belongs. The
recoverable amount of the production line shows that the production line taken as a whole is
not impaired.

Assumption 1: budgets/forecasts approved by management reflect no commitment of
management to replace the machine.

Assumption 2: budgets/forecasts approved by management reflect a commitment of
management to replace the machine and sell.it in'the near future. Cash flows from continuing
use of the machine until its disposal are estimated to be negligible.

1. The recoverable amount of.the machine alone cannot be estimated because the
machine’s value in use:

a) may differ from its fair value less costs of disposal; and

b)  can be determined only for the cash-generating unit to which the machine belongs
(the production line).

The production line'is not impaired. Therefore, no impairment loss is recognised for the
machine. Nevertheless, the entity may need to reassess the depreciation period or the
depreciation method for the machine. Perhaps a shorter depreciation period or a faster
depreciation method is required to reflect the expected remaining useful life of the
machine or the pattern in which economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity.

The machine’s value in use can be estimated to be close to its fair value less costs of
disposal. Therefore, the recoverable amount of the machine can be determined and no
consideration is given to the cash-generating unit to which the machine belongs (i.e. the
production line). Because the machine’s fair value less costs of disposal is less than its
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised for the machine.

At the end of 2000 an entity tests a machine for impairment. The machine was bought five
years earlier for Rs. 300,000, when its useful life was estimated to be 15 years and the
estimated residual value was nil. At 31 December 2000, after recognising the depreciation
charge for 2000, the machine’s carrying amount was Rs. 200,000 and its remaining useful life
was estimated at 10 years. The machine’s value in use calculated using a pre-tax discount rate
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of 14 per cent per year is Rs. 179,310. Management believes “fair value less cost to sell” is
lower than the value in use.

At 31 December 2004, management has reassessed the future cash flows based on changed
circumstances since the end of 2000 and determined value in use at the end of 2004 to be Rs.
122,072 at 31 December 2004. Management believes “fair value less costs to sell” is less than
value in use. Calculate impairment loss at the end of 2000 and reversal of impairment loss at
the end of 2004.

End of 2000 Machine
Carrying amount before impairment loss Rs. 200,000
Less: Recoverable amount (Rs.179,310)
Impairment loss Rs..20,690
Carrying amount after impairment loss (ie recoverable amount) Rs. 179,310

Note: In this case, in subsequent periods (ie 2001-2010), assuming all variables remain the
same as at the end of 2000, the depreciable amount will.be Rs. 179,310, so the depreciation
charge will be Rs. 17,931 per year (ie Rs. 179,310 + 10 years).

End of 2004

Recoverable amount Rs. 122,072
Carrying amount, before the reversal of the impairment loss recognised at 31/12/04
Carrying amount as on 01/01/2001 Rs.1,79,310

Less: Accumulated depreciation till 2004 (17,931 x 4) Rs.71,724 Rs. 107,586
Difference Rs. 14,486

The difference.is only anindication of the amount of the reversal because the reversal cannot
increase the carrying amount of the asset above the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Endof 20X4 Machine
Cost 300,000
Less Notional depreciation since acquisition until 31/12/20X4 [3,00,000/15 x 9] (180,000)
Notional carrying amount at 31/12/20X4 if no impairment loss

been Recognised for the asset in 2000 120,000
Less: Carrying amount at the year ended 31/12/2004,

before the reversal of the impairment loss recognised in prior reporting periods 107,586
Maximum Reversal of prior year’s impairment loss 12,414

Note: In subsequent periods (ie 2005—-2010), assuming that all variables remain the same as
at the end of 2004, the depreciable amount will be Rs. 120,000, so the annual depreciation
charge will be Rs. 20,000 (ie Rs. 120,000 depreciable amount + 6 years remaining useful life).
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Q 24: On 1st April 20X1, Venus Itd acquired 100% of Saturn Itd for Rs. 4,00,000. The fair value of the
net identifiable assets of Saturn Itd was Rs. 3,20,000 and goodwill was Rs. 80,000. Saturn Itd
is in coal mining business. On 31st March 20X3 the government has cancelled licenses given
to it in few states.

As a result Saturn’s Itd revenue is estimated to get reduce by 30%. The adverse change in
market place and regulatory conditions is an indicator of impairment. As a result Venus ltd
has to estimate the recoverable amount of goodwill and net assets of Saturn Itd on 31st March
20X3.

Venus Itd uses straight line depreciation. The useful life of Saturn’s Itd assets.is estimated to
be 20 years with no residual value. No independent cash inflows can be identified to any
individual assets. So the entire operation of Saturn Itd is to be treated as.a CGU. Due to the
regulatory entangle it is not possible to determine the selling price of Saturn Itd as a CGU. Its
value in use is estimated by the management at Rs. 2,12,000.

Suppose by 31st March 20X5 the government reinstates the licenses of Saturn Itd. The
management expects a favourable change in net cash flows. This is.an indicator that an
impairment loss may have reversed. The recoverable amount of Saturn’s Itd net asset is re-
estimated. The value in use is expected to be Rs. 3,04,000 and.net selling price is expected to
be Rs. 2,90,000.

Since the fair value less costs of disposal'is not determinable the recoverable amount of the
CGU is its value in use. The carrying amount of the assets of the CGU on 31st March 20X3 is
as follows:

Calculation of Impairment loss INR

Goodwill Other assets Total
Historical Cost 80,000 3,20,000 4,00,000
Accumulated Depreciation (3,20,000/20) x 2 - (32,000) (32,000)
Carrying Amount 80,000 2,88,000 3,68,000
Impairment Loss (80,000) (76,000) (1,56,000)
Revised Carrying Amount

Impairment Loss = Carrying Amount — Recoverable Amount (Rs. 3,68,000 - Rs. 2,12,000) = Rs.
1,56,000 is charged in statement of profit and loss for the period ending 31st March 20X3 as
impairment loss.

Impairment loss is allocated first to goodwill Rs. 80,000 and remaining loss of Rs. 76,000 (Rs.
1,56,000 — Rs. 80,000) is allocated to the other assets.

Reversal of Impairment loss
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised subject to:-
The impairment loss on goodwill cannot be reversed.

The increased carrying amount of an asset after reversal of an impairment loss not to exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Calculation of carrying amount of identifiable assets had no impairment loss is recognised
INR
Historical Cost 3,20,000
Accumulated Depreciation for 4 years (3,20,000/20) x 4 (64,000)
Carrying amount had no impairment loss is recognised on 31st March 20X5 2,56,000
Carrying amount of other assets after recognition of impairment loss INR
Carrying amount on 31st March 20X3 2,12,000
Accumulated Depreciation for 2 years (2,12,000/18) x 2 (24,000)
[rounded off to nearest thousand for ease of calculation]
Carrying amount on 31st March 20X5 1,88,000

The impairment loss recognised previously can be reversed.only to the extent of lower of re-
estimated recoverable amount is Rs.3,04,000 (higher of fair value less costs of disposal Rs.
2,90,000 and value in use Rs. 3,04,000) the carrying amountthat would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods ie., Rs. 2,56,000

Impairment loss reversal will be Rs. 68;000 i.e. (Rs..2,56,000 — Rs. 1,88,000). This amount is
recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 20X5.

The carrying amount of other assets at'31st March 20X5 after reversal of impairment loss will
be Rs. 2,56,000.

From 1st April 20X5 the depreciation charge will be Rs. 16,000 i.e. (Rs. 2,56,000/16)

Mercury ltd has an identifiable asset with a carrying amount of Rs. 1,000. Its recoverable
amount is Rs. 650. The tax rate is 30% and the tax base of the asset is Rs. 800. Impairment
losses are not.deductible for tax purposes. The effect of the impairment loss is as follows:

Carrying amount 1,000 - 350 650
Tax Base 800
Deductible temporary difference 150
Deferred tax asset at 30% 45

In accordance with Ind AS 12, the entity recognises the deferred tax asset to the extent that
it is.probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be utilised.

Sun Itd is an entity with various subsidiaries. The entity closes its books of account at every
year ended on 31st March. On 1st July 20X1 Sun Itd acquired an 80% interest in Pluto Itd.
Details of the acquisition were as follows:

- Sun ltd acquired 800,000 shares in Pluto Itd by issuing two equity shares for every five
acquired. The fair value of Sun Ltd’s share on 1st July 20X1 was Rs. 4 per share and the
fair value of a Pluto’s share was Rs. 1:40 per share. The costs of issue were 5% per
share.

www.cachiranjeevjain.com Page 122




QUESTIONS BANK

+91-7731007722

Sun Itd incurred further legal and professional costs of Rs. 100,000 that directly related
to the acquisition.

The fair values of the identifiable net assets of Pluto Ltd at 1st July 20X1 were
measured at Rs. 1:3 million. Sun Itd initially measured the non-controlling interest in
Pluto Itd at fair value. They used the market value of a Pluto ltd share for this purpose.
No impairment of goodwill arising on the acquisition of Pluto Itd was required at 31st
March 20X2 or 20X3.

Pluto Itd comprises three cash generating units A, B and C. When Pluto Itd was acquired the
directors of Sun Itd estimated that the goodwill arising on acquisition could.reasonably be
allocated to units A:B:C on a 2:2:1 basis. The carrying values of the assets in these cash
generating units and their recoverable amounts are as follows:

Unit

Carrying value (before goodwill allocation) Recoverable amount

Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000

A

600 740

B

550 650

C

450 400

Required:

(i)

Compute the carrying value of the goodwill arising on acquisition of Pluto Ltd in the
consolidated Balance Sheet of Sun ltd at 31st March 20X4 following the impairment
review.

Compute the total impairment loss arising as a result of the impairment review,

identifying how much of this loss. would be allocated to the non-controlling interests
in Pluto Itd.

Computation of goodwill on‘acquisition

Particular

Amount
(Rs.“000)

Cost of investment (8,00,000 x 2/5 x Rs.4)

1,280

Fair value of non-controlling interest (2,00,000 x Rs.1:4)

280

Fair value of identifiable net assets at date of acquisition

(1,300)

So goodwill equals

260

Acquisition costs are not included as part of the fair value

of the consideration given under

Ind AS 103, Business Combination.

Calculation of impairment loss

Unit

Recoverable
Amount

Carrying value Impairment

Loss

After
Allocation

Allocation of
goodwill
(2:2:1)

Before
Allocation

600 104 704

550 104 654
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e || 400* | 52 | 452 | 400 | 52 |

* After writing down assets in the individual CGU to recoverable amount

Calculation of closing goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition (W1)
Impairment loss (W2)
So closing goodwill equals

Calculation of overall impairment loss

on goodwill (W3) 56
on assets in unit C (450 — 400) 50
So total loss equals 106

Rs. 21:2 (20%) of the above is allocated to the NCI with the balance allocated to the
shareholders of Sun Itd.

Great Ltd., acquired a machine on 1st April, 2012 for Rs. 7 crore that had an estimated useful
life of 7 years. The machine is depreciated on straight line basis and does not carry any
residual value. On 1st April, 2016, the carrying value of the machine was reassessed at Rs.
5.10 crore and the surplus arising out of the revaluation’being credited to revaluation reserve.
For the year ended March 2018, conditions indicating an.impairment of the machine existed
and the amount recoverable ascertained to be only Rs. 79 lakhs.

Calculate the loss on impairment of the machine and show how this loss is to be treated in
the books of Great Ltd. Great Ltd., had followed the policy of writing down the revaluation
surplus by the increased charge of depreciation resulting from the revaluation.

Statement Showing Impairment Loss

(Rs. in crores)
Carrying amount of the machine as on 1st April, 2012 7.00
Depreciation for 4 years.i.e. 2012-2013 to 2015-2016 (4.00)
(7 crores/7 years) x4 years
Carrying amount.as on 31.03.2016 3.00
Add: Upward Revaluation (credited to Revaluation Reserve account) 2.10
Carrying amount of the machine as on 1st April 2016 (revalued) 5.10
Less: Depreciation for 2 years i.e. 2016-2017 & 2017-2018 (3.40)
(5.10 crores/3 years) x2 years
Carrying amount as on 31.03.2018 1.70
Less: Recoverable amount (0.79)
Impairment loss 0.91

Less: Balance in revaluation reserve as on 31.03.2018:

Balance in revaluation reserve as on 31.03.2016 2.10

Less: Enhanced depreciation met from revaluation reserve
2016-2017 & 2017-2018 = [(1.70 — 1.00) x 2 years] (1.40)

Impairment loss set off against revaluation reserve balance as per para 58 of AS (0.70)
28 “Impairment of Assets”

Impairment Loss to be debited to profit and loss account 0.21
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Q 28: X Ltd. purchased a fixed asset four years ago for Rs. 150 lakhs and depreciates it at 10% p.a.
on straight line method. At the end of the fourth year, it has revalued the asset at Rs. 75 lakhs
and has written off the loss on revaluation to the profit and loss account. However, on the
date of revaluation, the market price is Rs. 67.50 lakhs and expected disposal costs are Rs. 3
lakhs. What will be the treatment in respect of impairment loss on the basis that fair value for
revaluation purpose is determined by market value and the value in use is estimated at Rs. 60
lakhs? [MTP, May 2019]

Treatment of Impairment Loss: As per IND AS 36 “Impairment of assets”, if the recoverable
amount (higher of net selling price and its value in use) of an asset is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset should be reduced to its.recoverable amount. In
the given case, net selling price is Rs. 64.50 lakhs (Rs. 67.50 lakhs — Rs. 3 lakhs) and value in
use is Rs. 60 lakhs.

Therefore, recoverable amount will be Rs. 64.50 lakhs. Impairment loss will be calculated as
Rs. 10.50 lakhs [Rs. 75 lakhs (Carrying Amount after revaluation - Refer Working Note) less Rs.
64.50 lakhs (Recoverable Amount)].

Thus impairment loss of 10.50 lakhs should be recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss immediately since there was downward revaluation of asset which was already
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Working Note: Calculation of carrying amount of the fixed.asset at the end of the fourth year
on revaluation

(Rs. in lakhs)
Purchase price of a fixed asset 150.00
Less: Depreciation for four years [(150 lakhs/ 10 years) x 4 years] (60.00)
Carrying value at the‘end of fourth year 90.00
Less: Downward revaluation charged to profit and loss account (15.00)
Revalued carrying amount 75.00

An asset does not meet the requirements of environment laws which have been recently
enacted. The asset has to be destroyed as per the law. The asset is carried in the Balance
Sheet at the year end at Rs. 6,00,000. The estimated cost of destroying the asset is Rs. 70,000.
How is the asset to.be accounted for?

As per IND AS .36 “Impairment of Assets”, impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, where, recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s net selling price* and its value in use-. In the given case, recoverable amount will
be nil [higher of value 